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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
AGENDA - REGULAR MEETING
November 20,2018 - 6:00 p.m.

District Headquarters
999 Rush Creek Place

Novato, California

lnformation about and copies of supporting materials on agenda items are available for public review at 999 Rush
Creek Place, Novato, at the Reception Desk, or by calling the District Secretary at (415) 897-4133. Afee may be
charged for copies. District facilities and meetings comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act. lf special
accommodations are needed, please contact the District Secretary as soon as possible, but at least two days prior to
the meetino.

Time ltem Subiect
Est.

6:00 p.m CALL TO ORDER

APPROVE MINUTES FROM REGULAR MEETING, November 6,2018

G EN ERAL MANAG ER'S REPORT

OPEN TIME: (Please observe a three-minute time limit)

This section of the agenda is provided so that the public may express comments on any issues not
listed on the agenda that are of interest to the public and vùithin the jurisdiction of the North Marin Water
District. When comments are made about matters not on the agenda, Board members can ask
questions for clarification, respond to statements or questions from members of the public, refer a
matter to staff, or direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. The public may also
express comments on agenda items at the time of Board consideration.

ST A F Fl D I RECTORS REPOR TS

M O NT H LY PROGRESS REPORT

CO'VSEVT CALENDAR

The General Manager has reviewed the following items. To his knowledge, there is no
opposition to the action. The items can be acted on in one consolidated motion as
recommended or may be removed from the Consent Calendar and separately considered at
the request of any person.

Consent- Approve: Renewal of Horizon CATV License Agreement

ACTION CALENDAR

Accept: Outside Auditor's FY18 Report and Management Report

INFORMATION ITEMS

WAC/TAC Meeting - November 5, 2018

NBWRA Meeting - October 22,2018

First Quarter FY 2018119 Update - Operations and Maintenance

First Quarter FY 2018119 - Water Quality Report

MISCELLAA'EOUS
Disbursements - Dated November 8, 2018
Disbursements - Dated November 15,2018

All times are approximate and for reference only.
The Board of Directors may consider an item at a different time than set forth herein
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Est.
Time Item Subject

13

8:00 p.m. 14. ADJOURNMENT

Press Release - Army Corps of Engineers approves request to allow more winter storage
in Lake Mendocino

News Articles:
Bond rejected for water infrastructure - PROPOSITION 3
lnverness Public Utility District general manager resigns, staff steps up
Appeal shrinks Paradise Ranch water tank
MMWD taps new general manager

CLOSED SESSlOftl; Conference with Labor Negotiators (Joe Wiley, Christopher Boucher,
Drew Mclntyre and Julie Blue) to Provide Direction, California Government Code Section
54957).
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Item #1

DRAFT
NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 6, 2018

CALL TO ORDER

President Fraites called the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of North Marin Water

District to order at 6:00 p.m. at the District Headquarters and the agenda was accepted as

presented. Present were Directors Jack Baker, Rick Fraites, Michael Joly, James Grossi, and

Stephen Petterle. Also present were General Manager Drew Mclntyre, District Secretary Terrie

Kehoe, Auditor-Controller Julie Blue and Chief Engineer Rocky Vogler.

District employees, Robert Clark (Operations/Maintenance Superintendent), TonyArendell

(Construction/Maintenance Superintendent) and Ryan Grisso (Water Conservation Coordinator),

were also in attendance.

ln the audience was Novato resident Tina McMillan and Chris Boucher, Labor Negotiator.

Also in the audience were District employees: Jeff Corda, Marc Reischmann, Lia Solar, Sarah

Baccei, Rich Roberto, Nancy Holton, Nancy Williamson, Stacie Goodpaster, Chris Rodriquez, Pablo

Ramudo, Kyle Bergstrom, Kent LeBrun, Dan Garrett, and Corey Reed.

MINUTES

On motion of Director Joly, seconded by Director Petterle the Board approved the minutes

from the October 16,2018 meeting as presented by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

GEN ERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

WAC/TAC Meetinq

Mr. Mclntyre stated that he, Mr. Vogler and Director Baker attended the WAC/TAC meeting

on November 5,2018. Mr. Mclntyre commented that FY18 Sonoma County Water Agency water

sales exceeded budget by 1 1o/o and a complete report will be available at a future meeting.

Water Rate Studv

Mr. Mclntyre announced that he and Ms. Blue will be meeting with Mr. Bentley to start work

on the District's Cost of Service Study updateto review in advance of the FY19 budgeted Peer

NMWD Draft Minutes 1 o'l 7 November 6' 2018
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review for Prop 2018 compliance.

Dillon Beach Villaqe

Mr. Mclntyre stated that he will be attending a Dillon Beach Village community meeting on

November 13th. The County of Marin will be discussing water supply, septic concerns, sea level rise

and other issues. Mr. Mclntyre reviewed the Board's current policy with respect to expansion of

wastewater service in West Marin. Director Grossi commented that the Dillon Beach Resoft recently

changed ownership and he has their contact information if needed.

SB 998

Director Joly inquired about SB 998 (Dodd), which will limit public agencies ability to

discontinue residential water service for nonpayment. Mr. Mclntyre stated that the Board will be

receiving more information on this in 2019, and that the legislation does not take effect until

February 2020.

OPEN TIME

President Fraites asked if anyone in the audience wished to bring up an item not on the

agenda. Marc Reischmann and Jeff Corda addressed the Board as members of the Employee

Association supported by 12 other employees in the audience. Mr. Reischmann and Mr. Corda

again stated reasons for the Board to consider their proposals in the negotiations. Mr. Vogler, Mr.

Clark and Mr. Arendell also commented on recruitment and retention difficulties. Mr. Mclntyre

expressed his appreciation to the employees for coming to the meeting, stating that it is always good

to have open dialog. Mr. Reed added to the conversation supporting the Employee Association's

proposal. Director Fraites thanked the employees for sharing their concerns, and stated that it helps

the Board in making their decision.

S T A F F/ D I REC TORS REPOR TS

President Fraites asked if staff or Directors wished to bring up an item not on the agenda

and the following were discussed. Mr. Vogler commented that the County of Marin Multi-

jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan was recently approved by Cal OES, and it is now ready to

submit to FEMA for review. He added that when approved, future NMWD Oceana Marin projects

will be eligible for grant funding. Ms. Blue discussed the current Employee Assisted Housing Loan

program and advised the Board that staff will be reviewing the program with legal counsel to make

sure the program benefits both the District and the employee. Director Joly inquired as to the

balance of funds available now. Ms. Blue stated there are currently four loans, with a total of

$714,000 and we have about $800,000 unallocated in the program.

NMWD Draft Minutes 2of7 November 6, 2018
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OUARTERLY FINA STATEMENT

During the Quarterly Financial Statement, Ms. Blue noted that we are on target with our

revenue and operating expenses came in7% over budget. Potable water consumption in Novato

was 17o more than the prior year and 1Vo less in West Marin. Recycled water consumption for the

first quarter was up 18% compared to last year. Director Joly complimented Ms. Blue that the repod

was well presented and in great detail.

co^/sENr LENDAR

On the motion of Director Petterle, seconded by Director Joly the Board approved the

following items on the consent calendar by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT' None

CUSTOMER SERY/CE O TIONNAIRE INCENTIVE

The Board approved continuation of the Customer Service Questionnaire lncentive program

that provides a $2 incentive as a credit on the customer's water bill when filling out a customer

survey.

NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR RECYCLED TER EXPANS/OAI CENTRAL SERVICE AREA _

ONSITE PRIVATE RETROFIT PROJECT MILDCAT ENGINEERINGI

The Board approved the General Manager to execute and file a Notice of Completion for

Recycled Water Expansion for the Central Service Area - Onsite Private Retrofit Project.

ACTION CALENDAR

Director Petterle recused himself from the meeting for Agenda ltem I and left the room.

LAKE MASTER PLAN DRAFT

Mr. Mclntyre provided the Board with an update on the Stafford Lake Master Plan Draft

lnitial Study and stated that County Parks is providing the District with an opportunity to comment on

the subject Environmental Review. Mr. Mclntyre noted that the Stafford Lake Master Plan, very

similar to the draft 2016 plan, proposes a new vehicular entry and exit with a new gate house, an

event meadow with pavilion stage and garden areas, enhancement of the existing picnic

playground, and a new back meadow including a swimming lagoon and picnic areas. There was a

general discussion regarding overnight camping. Mr, Mclntyre stated that special event camping

NMWD Draft Minutes 3of7 November 6, 201 I
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has been done it in the past and there has not been a problem. Mr. Clark added that we have good

communication with Marin County Parks staff. Director Grossi commented that there should be

more county staff even for unscheduled events and also expressed concern regarding sanitation in

the park, especially when there are large crowds in attendance. Mr. Mclntyre replied that the District

continues to advocate for a sewer connection to Novato Sanitary District and that we are against any

onsite wastewater disposal. Director Joly wanted to know how we keep an eye on park activities

and Mr. Clark replied that we drive by it all the time. Both Director Fraites ,nd 8"k"r. had water

quality concerns with the proposed swimming lagoon.

On the motion of Director Joly, and seconded by Director Grossi the Board moved to

approve the comment letter as presented by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, and Joly

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: Director Petterle

ABSENT: None

Director Petterle returned for the next item on the agenda'

PARTY COA FORSTP CLEARWELLS

_ BRELJE AND RACE CON SULTING EA/G'A/EERS

Rocky Vogler advised the Board that the Stafford Treatment Plant Coat Concrete Cleanruells

Project consists of coating two clearwells; the Acti-Floc Clean¡vell and the Finished Clearwell. He

stated that staff requested proposals for third party coating inspection from two coating inspectors;

Brelje and Race and D.B. Gaya for inspection of contractor coating work. He added that although

Gaya submitted a proposal, they later informed the District that they were unable to perform

inspection due to schedule conflicts, therefore staff recommends awarding the inspection contract to

Brelje and Race.

On the motion of Director Baker, and seconded by Director Joly, the Board approved an

agreement with Brelje and Race Consulting Engineers for coating inspection services for the

Stafford Treatment Plant Concrete Clearwells project by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None
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INFORMATION ITEMS

AMI PROJECT TE AND PUBLIC OUTREA FOLLOW UP

Mr. Clark presented an update on the AMI Project. He stated that we are in week 34 of the

full implementation phase with nine Ferguson employees performing approximately 500 installations

per week. To date, Ferguson staff has converted 65% or 13,000 services to the new AMI system.

Director Baker asked if there was a geographical pattern in the installations, and Mr. Clark stated

that it is based on the existing route reading schedule. Director Joly asked if we had 7,000 services

left to do since we have done 13,OOO so far, and Mr. Clark confirmed. Mr, Clark also stated that at

this time we have spent 85% of the project's budget but that includes all materials. Director Baker

asked if there was a problem with the antenna transmitting information if a car or debris was on top

of the lid. Mr. Clark responded that this hasn't been an issue to-date. Director Joly asked how many

people opted out so far and Ms. Blue replied 43. Mr. Grisso then talked about his public outreach

efforts to customers regarding their water use and bills noting that staff found no mechanical

deficiencies out of the 27 inspected residences. He added that many of the high bills were

attributed to automatic irrigation controller problems and toilet leaks. Director Fraites praised Mr,

Grisso for a job well done.

WATER CON TION AUARTERLY UPDATE UUL 2018)

Mr. Grisso presented the Water Conservation Quarterly Update for July through September

2018. He stated that participation numbers are down as we are still in a post drought period with the

exception of the Watersmart program due to the new AMI meter installation awareness. Mr. Grisso

said he will be coming back to the Board at a later date to propose changes to some of the existing

rebate programs. Mr. Grisso also mentioned the Fall Waterline will be going out on November 7th.

ln addition he noted that staff will become more active on social media and other outreach events.

FY18.19 AUA Y PROGRESS REPORT- DEPARTMENT

Mr. Vogler presented the FY18-19 Quarterly Progress Repoft for the Engineering

Department. He stated that CIP expenditures for the Novato Water, Novato Recycled Water and

West Marin service areas are forecasted to be approximately the same as the approved budget. A

total of 31 projects were originally budgeted and two new projects have been added, with two

projects being carried over, and none have been deleted or deferred. Mr. Vogler stated thatthe two

new projects include the Bel Marin Keys- Hwy 101 onramp pipeline repair and the West Marin

Lagunitas Creek Bridge Pipeline Relocation Project. Director Joly asked if with the two added

projects the total budget will be the same. Mr. Vogler responded yes, since some of the other

existing projects were less costly than anticipated.

NMWD Draft Minutes 5of7 November 6, 2018



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

I
I

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

COASTAL PERMIT APPEAL _ PRE NK 4A CEMENT

Mr. Vogler announced that during the permitting/design phase of the project, staff submitted

a Coastal Permit application and met with County Planning staff to discuss the project and respond

to County comments. A public hearing was held and the Deputy Zoning Administrator adopted a

resolution approving the Coastal Permit. The owner of the two nearby parcels of land at 25 and 26

Buck Point Road appealed the project on the basis that the new tank would significantly degrade

their view and that the planned 20.8 foot tank elevation would violate Marin County Code Section

22.57 .0861(2Xe) which refers height limits for to coastal residential single-family planned districts.

Marin County Planning Commission upheld the appeal and required that the water tank be no

greater than 18 feet in height above existing grade. Mr. Vogler noted that lowerihg the tank height

will decrease tank storage thereby compromising our ability to provide water supply for fire

protection and will be in conflict with Marin County Fire Deparlment storage requirements and will

result in reduced service pressure to our customers. He added that NMWD staff filed an appealwith

the Marin County Board of Supervisors, and the hearing date has yet to be determined. Director

Baker stated he hoped that the Marin County Fire Marshall could assist us at the appeal. Director

Petterle stated that he would like to know when the hearing date is scheduled so he can attend.

Directors Baker, Fraites, Grossi and Joly expressed interest as well.

MIS US

The Board received the following miscellaneous items: Disbursements - Dated October 18,

2018, Disbursements - Dated October 25, 2018 and Disbursements - Dated November 1 , 2018,

Self-lnsured Workers' Comp - 1't Quarter Status Report, FY19 1't Quarter Labor Cost Report, and

Sonoma-Marin Saving Water Partnership Wins National Awards for it Training, Outreach and

Education Programs.

The Board received the following news articles; Major utilities shut off power amid fire risks;

Potter Valley project on Mendocino County board of supervisors' agenda Tuesday; Why This

Winter's El Nino Will not Bring More Rain to California; Housing plan gets boost by county; Why

tariffs threaten to raise the cost of drinking water; Special districts' costly obscurity; What's public

cost of boards' obscurity?; George Domingo Grossi Obituary; lnverness water under scrutiny after

tests show high lead levels; and Sanitary District names new administrators.

CLOSED SESSTOru
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President Fraites adjourned the meeting at 7:35 p.m. and the Board began the closed

session at7'.47 p.m. in accordance with Government Code Section 54957 Conference with Labor

Negotiators (Christopher Boucher, Drew Mclntyre and Julie Blue) to Provide Direction.

oPEN SESSTO^/

Upon returning to regular session at 8:31p.m., President Fraites stated that during the

closed session the Board discussed the issue and no final reportable action had been taken.

ADJOURNMENT

President Fraites adjourned the meeting at 8:32 p.m'

Submitted by

Theresa Kehoe

District Secretary
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
MONTHLY PROGRESS REPORT FOR Ocúober 2018

November 20,2018

Novato Potable Water Prod* - RR & STP Combined - in Million Gallons - FYTD
Month FY18/19 FY17/18 FY16/17 FY15/16 19vs18%

Item #5

July
August
September
October

341.1

300.9
255.0
265,6

331 .0

303.0
292.4
273.7

31 0.3
299.6
302.3
202.8

227.2 3%

235.2 -1o/o

210.0 -13%

298.6 -3o/o

FYTD Total 1 ,162.6 1,200.1 1,114.9 971.1 -3o/o

West Marin Potable Water Production - in Million Gallons - FY to Date
Month FY18/19 FY17/18 FY16/17 FY15/16 19 vs 18 %

July
August
September
October

10.4
10.2

9.7
8.4

9.5
8.8
8.4
7.9

7.9
7.4
6.4
5.2

6.6
7.0
o.4
6.5

10o/o

16%
17o/o

7%

FYTD Total 38.8 34.5 26.9 26.5 13o/o

Stafford Treatment Plant Production - in Million Gallons ' FY to Date
Month FY|B/19 FY17/18 FY16/17 FY15/16 19 vs 18 %

July
August
September
October

78.6
79.3
60.5
74.5

112.6
81.5

122.7
102.3

69.9
90.4
96.9
93.9

107.6
79.4
38.3
49.5

-30o/o

-J70

-51o/o

9o/o

FYTD Total 292.9 419.1 351.1 274.8 -30%

Recycled Water Production* *- in Million Gallons - FY to Date
Month FYl B/19 FY17/18 FY16/17 FY15/16 19 vs 18 %

July
August
September
October

30.0
30.6
33.5
20.1

27.7
26.1

25.0
19.1

27,1

26.0
23.5

8.3

21.3
26.2
15.7
15. B

8%

17%
34%
5o/o

FYTD Total* 114.2' 97.9 85.0 79.1 17o/o

*Conected July- Septemberwater delivery data to use SCWA billing meter records not process flow meter records.

**Excludespotablewater¡nputtotheRWsystem: FY19=19,3MG;FYlB=15.35MG;FY17=1.4MG;FY16=7.4MG

t:\ac\excel\w tr use\[production.x lsx]mo rpt

2. Stafford Lake Data

. Spillway elevation is 196.0 feet
"* Lake storage less 390 ¡y¡6 = quantity available for delivery

Temperature (¡n degrees)

Minimum Maximum Averaqe
October 2017 (Novato) 47 86 70

October 2018 (Novato) 43 98 70

1

October Average

1.40 lnches
1.72 lnches

181.1 Feet
509 MG

October 2017 October 2018

Rainfallthis month
Rainfall this FY to date
Lake elevation*

0.29
0.32

181 .0
507

lnches
lnches
Feet
MG

1.16
1.16

177.4
372

lnches
lnches
Feet
MGLake sto

t:\gm\progress reporl\current progress report november 201 8.doct:\gm\progress report\current progress reporl november 201 B doc



3. Number of Services

4. Oceana Marin Monthlv us Reno¡t lOctoberl

*Pond drained for sludge removal
**Sludge removal in process.

5. Developer Proiects Status Report (October)

October 31

NovatoWater Recvcled Water West Marin Water Oceana Marin Swr
FY1 9 FY1 8 lncr % FY1 9 FY1 B lncr % FY1 9 FY1 B lncr Vo FY1 9 FY1 B lncr Yo

Total meters installed
Total meters actiw
Actiw dwelling units

20,747 20,777 -0.1% 95 56 69.6% 790 789 O.1o/o

20,535 20,550 -0.1% 91 53 71.7% 782 781 0.1o/o

24,068 24,007 O.3o/o 0 0 832 831 0.1% 234 234 0.0%

r:\0c\cxcal\v¡' uÊc\lf ¡oduolion.¡rsrì6' vc6 m r pl

Description October 2017 October 2018

Effluent Flow Volume (MG) 0.415 0.399

lrrigation Field Discharge (MG) 0.540 1.024

Treatment Pond Freeboard (ft) 7.0 7.5

Storage Pond Freeboard (ft) 9.0 5.9

Job No. Proiect % Complete % This month

1.2784.00
1.2817 .01
1.2817 .02

Novato Village (801 State Access)
College of Marin - Admin Bldg. 11

College of Marin - Organic Farm

98
99
20

1

0
5

District Proiects Status ort - Const. Denf- lOcfolrerl

Job No. Proiect % Complete % This month

1.1 93.1 I
1.660.89
1.6112.24

B'ARV Relocation- Hwy 101

STP Clearwells Coating
Lynwood Pump Station MCC

00
5
5

00
5
5

1

Emplovee Hours to Date, FY 18/19

As of Pay Period Ending October 31,2018
Percent of Fiscal Year Passed = 33%

6. Safety/Liability \\nmwdserver'l\administ rat ion\AC\EXC EL\ Personnel\wc\WC,X LS

FY '19 through October
FY 'lB through October

Days without a lost time accident through October, 2018 31 Days

2

Developer
Projects Actual Budget

% YTD
Budget

District
Projects Actual Budqet

% YTD
Budget

Construction 13 1,400 1% ffi Construction 1134 4,654 24o/o

Enqineering 253 1.404 18% ffiffi Enqineerinq 798 3,370 24%

lndustrial lnjury with Lost Time
Liability Claims

Paid

Lost Days
OH Cost of
Lost Days

($)

No. of
Emp.

lnv¡lved

No. of
lncidents

lncurred
(FYTD)

Paid
(FYrD)

($)

6
51

$2, 1 60

$24,336

1

2

3

0
$5,223

$0

I \gm\progress report\current progress report november 201 I doct:\gm\progress report\current progress report november 20'l B.doc



7. Energy Gost
October

ø/kwh
Fiæal Year-to-Date thru October

FYE

2019 Stafford TP

Pumping
Othef

2018 Stafford TP

Pumping
Other*

2017 Stafford TP

Pumping
Other*

kwh
78,764

1 39,01 9

44,942 7

58,31 4
141,312

40,821

Cost/Day kwh Wh Cost/Day
s26 293,308 19.9ø 7520.0é

21.1ç,

27.9ø

|e.7þ
22.8ø
26.6ø

$979
$41 I

$371

$1,111

$3BB

275,547
660,408
191,565

245,065
493,59'1
'163, 1 13

$435

$1,1 34

$429

$364
$734
$357

1e.4ø
21.1ø

18.3ø

17.8ø

663,964 20.7ø 91J24
196,1 14 ' Z6Jç ' $+eO

262,725 22.0ø $1,923 1,153,385 21.5ø $2,033

240,447 22.7ø

27.3

$1,881 1,127,520 21.8ø ,011

51,666
1 1 7,059
37,829

18.6ø

17.5ø
$31 0

$706
$359

1 ,384

26
206,554 19.4ø

25
901,769 19.4ø 1,458

*Other includes West Marin Facilities

Month of
October 2018

Fiscal Year to
Date

Program Total
to Date

Hiqh Efficiency Toilet (HET) Rebates b 3B 3920

Retrofit Certificates Filed '15 67 6137

Cash for Grass Rebates Paid Out 2 B 911

Washing Machine Rebates 1 5 6786

Water Smart Home Survey 37 140 3346

t:\ac\board reports\pgs\pg&e usage\fy 18.19\[pge usage 10.2018.xlsx]mo rpt

8. Water Conservation Update

9. Utilitv Perfo rmance Metric

3

SERVICE DISRUPTIONS
(No. of Customers lmpacted)

October
2018

October
2017

FiscalYear
to Date 2018

Fiscal Year
to Date 2017

PLANNED

Duration Between 0.5 and 4 hours o 35 58 34

Duration Between 4 and 12 hours 3 ÕJ

Duration Greater than 12 hours
UNPLANNED
Duration Between 0.5 and 4 hours 5 21 25

Duration Between 4 and 12 hours 6 o

Duration Greater than 12 hours

SERVICE LINES REPLACED
Polvbutvlene o 10 39 47

Copper (Replaced or Repaired) 0 I 1 5

t:\gm\progress report\current progress report november 201 B.doct:\gm\progress report\currenl progress report november 201 B.doc



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

Summary of Complaints & Service Orders Octoþer 2018

Oct-17 Action Taken October 2018
11t1312018

Type Oct-18

Consumers' Svstem Problen
Service Line Leaks
House Valve / Meter Off
Nothing Found
Low Pressure
High Pressure

Total

Service Repair Reports
Meter Replacement
Box and Lids
Water Off/On Due To Repairs
Misc, Field lnvestigation

Total

Leak NMWD Facilities
Service- Leak
Servlces-Nothing Found
Fire Hydrant-Leak
Washer Leaks

Total

Hiqh Bill Complaints
Consumer Leaks
Meter Mlsread
Nothing Found
Excessive lrrigation

Total

Water Qual Comolaints
Taste and Odor

Color
Turbidity
Suspended Solids
Other

Total

54
Õ

26
1

J

21 Notified Consumer
Notified Consumer
Notified Consumer
A 14 PSI drop. Failed PRV.
Pressure @ 90 PSl. Failed PRV.

Pressure @ 105 PSl. Failed PRV.
Pressure @ 85-90 PSl. Failed PRV

Replaced
Replaced
Notified Consumer
Notified Consumer

Repaired
Notified Consumer
Repaired
Repaired

Notified Consumer
Notified Consumer
Notified Consumer
Notified Consumer

Customer repoñed distinct taste in filter water.
(San Marin Dr.)

Measured chlorine and other parameters were
normal for NMWD supply. Customer was notified
of results.

Customer reporfed odor from water.
(Rica Vis.)

Measured"sampled chlorine and was normal for
NMWD supply. Customer was notified.

Customer reported strong odor from water.
(Owen Dr.)

Measured sampled chlorine and was normal for
NMWD supply. No odor detected. Customer
was notified.

7

2

1

n

J

1

10

3

2
0

11

0

92

17

17

41

13

()

1

1

aJ

o

I
2

b
1',l

14'10

2
16

J

52
0

31

aJ

67

I
0

0

1

0

0

0
n

3

160 135

3

TOTAL FOR MONTH:

c-1
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

Summary of Complaints & Service Orders October 2018

Type Oct-18 Oct-17 Action Taken October 2018
11t13t2018

FiscalYTD Summarv
Consumer's System Problems
Service Repair Report
Leak NMWD Facilities
High Bill Complaints
Low Bills
Water Quality Complaints
Total

"ln House" Generated and
Gompleted Work Orders

Check Meter: possible
consumer/District leak, high
bill, flooded, need read, etc.

Change Meter: leaks,
hard to read

Possible Stuck Meter
Repair Meter: registers,

shut offs
Replace Boxes/Lids
Hvdrant Leaks
Trims
Dig Outs
Letters to Consumer:

meter obstruction, trims,
bees, gate access, etc.
get meter number,
kill service, etc.

Bill Adjustments Under Board Policy

October 18 vs. October 17

339
tto
103

tol
1

11

167

43
OJ

269
I

12

103%
170%
24%
-40%
o%
-B%
27%

Change Primarilv Due To
lncrease ln Nothing Found

lncrease ln Water On/Off for Repairs

lncrease ln Service Leaks
Decrease ln Nothing Found

Decrease ln Other

t:\cons sryc\compla¡nl reporl\fcomplain 1 I aopy.xlsloctl I

732 575

I

tt

U

il

tt

7

U

1

196

10

0
tt

2
tt

o

24
0

346

240 380

$11,281
$29,586

$40,055
$58,846

Oct-18
Oct-I7

47
7B

Fiscal Year vs Prior FY

18/19 FY
17118 FY

143
175

c-2



IIIEiIIORANDUM

To: Board of Directors November 16, 2018

From: Julie Blue, Auditor-Controller PZ
Nancy Hoiton, Senior Áòcountånt 7?,H

Subj: Auditor-Controller's Monthly Report of lnvestments for October 2018
t:\ac\word\invest\1 9\¡nvsstmênt rêport 101 8.doc

RECOi,IMENDED AGTION: lnformation

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None

At month end the District's lnvestment Portfolio had an amortized costvalue (i.e., cash balance)

of $18,257 ,622 and a market value of $18,229,466. During October the cash balance increased by

$1,736,540. The market value of securities held decreased $28,156 during the month. The ratio of total

cash to budgeted annual operating expense stood at 1O4o/o, up 10% from the prior month.

At October 31 , 2018, 39% of the District's Portfolio was invested in California's Local Agency

f nvestment Fund (LAIF),24o/o in Time Certificates of Deposit, 11o/oin FederalAgency Securities, 19%

in US Treasury Notes, 5% in the Marin County Treasury, and 2o/o retained locally for operating

purposes. The weighted average maturity of the portfolio was 167 days, compared to 203 days at the

end of September. The LAIF interest rate for the month was2.14o/o, compared to2.060/o the previous

month. The weighted average Portfolio rate was 1.92o/o, compared to 1.86% the previous month.



Type Description

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
AUDITOR.CONTROLLER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

October 31,2018
Purchase Maturity

Date Date
Various Open $7,065,972 $7,050,656 2.14o/o 3 39o/o

S&P
Rating
AA-

Cost
Basisr

10/31/2018
Market Value

o/o of
Yield2 Portfolio

LAIF

Time
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
ïcD
TCD
TCD
ïcD

11t15t18
12t17t18
5t22t19
7119119

8t9t19
916119

10t11t19
11t12t19
12t5t19
1t10t20
2124t20
3130t20
4t13120
6t1t20
5t18t20
6t15t20
8t17t20
9t28t20

248,000
248,000
248,000
247,OOO
247,000
247,000
247,OOO

247,O00
247,OOO
247,OO0
247,O00
248,000
246,000
249,000
249,000
246,000
246.000

248,000
248,000
248,000
247,000
247,000
247,000
247,O00
247,000
247,000
247,O00
247,O00
248,000
246,000
249,000
249,000
246,000
246,000

000

1.20o/o

1.35o/o

1.600/o

1.70%
1.7Oo/o

1.75%
1.70o/o

1.75%
1.90%
2.20Yo
2.35Yo
2,55%
2.55Yo
2.70%
2.75o/o

2.75o/o

2.75o/o

2.80%w

1o/o

1o/o

1%
1%
1o/o

1o/o

1o/o

1o/o

1o/o

1o/o

1Yo

1o/o

1%
1o/o

1%
1o/o

1o/o

1o/o-w

State of CA Treasury

Ce¡tificate of Depos¡t
Everbank
lnvestors Bank
Morgan Stanley Private Bank
CapitalOne Bank
CapitalOne NA
American Express FSB
Goldman Sachs Bank USA
Morgan Stanley Bank
American Express Centurion
Sallie Mae Bank
Discover Bank
Wells Fargo Bank
Citibank
UBS Bank
Enerbank
BMW Bank
Bank of America
Ally Bank

nla 11117116
nla 12116116
nla 11122117

nla 7119117
nla 819117

nla 916117

nla 10111117
nla 1119117

nla 1215117

nla 1110118
nla 2113118
nla 3128118
nla 4111118
nla 5/30/'18
nla 6118118
nla 6115118
nla 8115118
nla 9128118 246 000 246

US Treasury Notes
Treas 1.375o/o
Treas 1.5OO%
Treas 1.380o/o
Treas 2.25jo/o

Federal Agency Securities
FHLB 1.625% MTN
FFCB 2.OO MTN%

Other
Agency Marin Co Treasury
Other Various

nla 11117116
nla 1l11l17
nla 1110118
nla 7126118

nla 11121117

nla 4112118

1.65% 19%

0.75% 5o/o

0.41o/o 2%

@_ _fõ0%

lnterest
Rate

999,782 999,450

$957,605 $957,605
289,650

12131t18
2t28t19
7131t19
3t31t20

6t14t19
5t8t19

$'1,000,542
1,000,872

498,157

Original
Loan Amount

$998,571
997,031
495,430

Principal
Outstanding

1.05%
1.24Yo

1.87%
2.560/o344

5o/o

5o/o

3o/o

5o/o

1.7jo/o 5%
2.24o/o 5%_Tfr% _M

AAA Various Open
nla Various Open

TOTAL IN PORTFOLIO

Weighted Average Maturity = 167 Days

LAIF: State of California Local Agency lnvestment Fund.
TCD: Time Certificate of Deposit, Treas: US Treasury Notes with maturity of S years or less.
FHLB: Federal Home Loan Bank, FFCB: Federal Farm Credit Bank
Agency: STP State Revolving Fund Loan Reserye.
Other: Comprisod of 4 accounts used for operating purposes. US Bank Operat¡ng Account, US Bank STP SRF Loan

Account, Bank of Marin AEEP Checking Account & NMWD Petty Cash Fund.
1 Or¡ginal cost less repayment of principal and amortization of premium or discount.
2 Yield defined to be annualized interest earnings to maturity as a percentage of invested funds.
3 Eârnings are calculaled daily - this represents the average yield for the month ending October 31, 2018.

Loan Maturity
lnterest Bearing Loans Date Date

StoneTree Golf Loan 6/30/06 2128124
Marin Country Club Loan 111118 1111t47
Marin Country Club Loan 111118 1111127
Employee Housing Loans (4) Various Various

TOTAL''VTEREST B EARI NG IOA'VS

$3,612,640
$1,265,295

$430,463

2.40o/o

1.00%
2.80Vo

Contingent71

$1,229,368
$1,235,027

$399,004
71

The District has the ebil¡ty to meet the next six months of cash flow requirements.
I r\accountantÈ\investments\'l 9\ 1 0 I LxlslintêmEl mo rpt





To:

From

Subj:

('k-

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Robert Clark Operations / Maintenance Superintendent

Renewal of Horizon CATV License Agreement

Item #6

November 16,2018

x;\maint sup\201g\bod\bod horizon êxt memo.doc

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve one year extension

FINANCIAL IMPACT: $5,150 annual income

The Horizon CATV license agreement with the District allowing use of PRE tank site #4

to place a 40' high antenna, 5' x 7' equipment shed and a propane tanl< and emergency

generator expired on October 31 . The antenna was first moved to this site in 1995 after the Mt.

Vision fire, Horizon has requested to exercise its' current agreement option to extend the

contract.

Horizon is a small company, with a current cable TV subscriber base in West Marin from

Stinson Beach extending to Dillon Beach, Their customer base is in large part the same as

North Marin Water District, although the number of Horizon customers has been shrinking due

to competition with satellite TV dish companies. Historically the license fee paid to the District

by Horizon had been 1o/o of Horizon's annual basic revenue generated from its total number of

cable customers served by the antenna at the PRE 4 tank site, Basic revenue is the monthly

minimum charge levied for the basic service package, and did not include premium charges for

additional channels or features. This complicated annual adjustment to the agreement was

revised last year to a $5,000 annual fee with an annual increase of 3o/o moving fonvard.

The District requires that Horizon limit the extension term to one year so that the District

can conclude the design impacts from the new PRE 4 water tank design. Staff, proposes the

renewed license agreement be for one year from November 1 , 2018 to October 31,2019.

RECOMMENDATION

Board approval renewal of license agreement with Horizon CATV for a one year

extension term.

Approved by

oate ll .lQ.lâ



LICENSE AGREEME NT

THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT, by and between NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT, a
local governmental agency of the State of California, herein called "District," and HORIZON
CABLE TV lnc., a California corporation, herein called " Horizon," is effective as of November 1,

2018.

1. Grant of License

The District hereby grants to Horizon a revocable license to enter the District's Paradise
Ranch Estates water tank site number four, adjacent to 420 Drakes View Drive ("the site"), for
the purpose of operating, maintaining and replacing facilities for off-air television signal
receiving. Said facilities shall consist of:

a. one antenna tower approximately 4O-feet tall on steel poles set in concrete;

b. underground cables for electricity, telephone and television;

c. one equipment shed approximately 7-feet in length by S-feet in width; and

d. propane tank and stand-by generator for emergency power.

e. such other facilities as Horizon may deem necessary or advisable from time to time,
provided that Horizon shall obtain the written consent of District before any
additional facilities are installed.

The facilities shall be located on the site described on "Exhibit A" attached hereto,
incorporated herein, in the respective locations depicted on "Exhibit 8."

2. Term

The term of this license is one (1)years, beginning on November 1,2018, and ending on
October 31, 2019. The parties agree to discuss renewal of this agreement no later than August
31,2019.

3. Option to Extend Term

The District will evaluate the option to extend the term of this license with the renewal of
the agreement in September 2019.

4. Limitations on Use of License

a. Horizon shall be responsible for acquiring and maintaining all necessary permits and
approvals from the County of Marin for installation, operation and maintenance of
facilities described in Section t hereof.

Horizon's use of the site shall not hinder or interfere with the District's operation and
maintenance of its Paradise Ranch Estates tanks. Accordingly all facilities installed
by Horizon on the site shall be a minimum of five-feet from the District's water tanks,

b
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Horizon shall not do any grading or excavation on the site and shall not erect any
structure thereon except the facilities described in Section t hereof. Said work shall

be done at Horizon's sole expense and in accordance with plans and specifications
reviewed and approved in writing by the District and with permits issued by the
County of Marin. Horizon will not permit any lien or encumbrance to be placed on the
site.

Horizon shall not permit the facilities or Horizon's use of the site to interfere with
public reception or transmission of radio or television signals, nor with the District's
radio communications or communications used by its SCADA system. lf intederence
is traceable to Horizon's equipment or operations on the site, Horizon shall eliminate
the intederence without delay.

Horizon will use the license and operate the facilities in accordance with all

applicable city, county, state and federal regulations, ordinances and statutes now or
hereafter in effect and shall, at its expense, maintain in effect throughout the term of
this license all permits, licenses and authorizations required by law for its operations.
Horizon shall submit to the District a copy of its Federal Communications
Commission license and if applicable a copy of its Bay Area Air Quality Management
District ABA 6 standby generator emission permit upon renewal of this agreement.

f. Horizon shall maintain the facilities at all times in a safe, clean and orderly condition

g The District may require Horizon to shut down its electrical equipment and
microwave facility from time to time to permit construction and maintenance of water
tank(s) or other facilities. Said shutdown will only be required for safety reasons as

determined by the District at its sole discretion. Future projects contemplated on the
site include construction of a new water storage tank, which may require Horizon to
relocate its facilities, and installation of a Z-way radio transmitter on the antenna
tower, which the District warrants will not interfere with Horizon's cable television
reception signal., The District shall endeavor to give Horizon a 30-day minimum
notice before any required shut down.

To ensure the safety of District employees, Horizon shall provide the District with an
EMF exposure report for the facility. This study shall show all EMF exposure levels
at the site during normal operations. Any area where the EMF exposure level
exceeds the safe exposure level as adopted by the FCC shall be clearly identified.
At least 60 days before modifying the facilities or their operation in a manner that
changes the exposure levels, Horizon will submit an updated EMF exposure report
to the District for approval.

5. Pavments bv Horizon

a. Horizon agrees to pay as consideration for the license the sum of Five Thousand
one hundred and fifty Dollars ($5,150.00) in a single annual payment. The annual
payment shall be increased each year hereafter by three percent (3%) over the then
existing rental rate. The payment for the term of the license shall be made
simultaneously with the execution of this agreement.

Horizon further agrees to provide at no charge to the District two extra fiber optic
cables for use by the District in the fiber-optic telecommunications line installed

c

d

e

h

b
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between Horizon's antenna facility at the site and its facilities in Point Reyes Station,
ln the event Horizon extends its underground telecommunication line further,
Horizon agrees to install underground conduit purchased by the District alongside its
telecommunications line. Said underground conduit shall be for the exclusive use of
the District.

6. Termination

Horizon acknowledges that its rights under this license are subordinate to the prior and
superior right of the District to use the site for the purpose of providing a public water supply.
The District reserves to itself the right to terminate the license at any time it determines that it is
reasonably necessary to carry out its said purpose. Except in an emergency the District shall
give Horizon 90 day's prior written notice of termination. The annual payment shall be prorated

to the date of such termination. ln addition, the District may terminate this license if Horizon fails
to perform any of its undertakings herein and fails to remedy such default within 30 days after
written notice from the District to do so.

7. Removal of Personal P rooertv and Structures

Upon the expiration of the term of the license or the sooner termination thereof, Horizon
shall coordinate removal of its facilities with the District. ln the event the District has installed a
Z-way radio transmitter on the antenna, the antenna shall be left on the site. lf the 2-way radio
transmitter is not installed on the antenna, Horizon shall at its expense remove all the facilities
and personal property, including piers and bases, which it has placed on the site, leaving it

vacant and clean, and shall restore the site as nearly as possible to the condition it was in at the
commencement of this license.

lf Horizon fails to remove its facilities and/or to restore the site, the District may cause the
work to be done and Horizon shall reimburse the District for its costs thereby incurred within 30
days of receipt of an invoice therefor.

ln lieu of removal, the District may, at its option, elect to retain Horizon facilities remaining
on the property 30 days from expiration or termination of this agreement in exchange for
Horizon not being required to pay removal and/or clean-up costs

8. lnsurance, Hold-HarmlessandlndemnificationRequirements

a. Liabilitv I surance: Horizon shall hold the District harmless from and defend District
against any claims, liability, loss, damage, including defense costs or expenses, in

any way arising or occurring on account of injuries to persons or property sustained
or alleged to have been sustained that arise out of or are connected with Horizon's
use of this license. For the duration of this license, Horizon shall continuously
maintain and pay for vehicle liability and general liability insurance written by
insurer(s) licensed to do business in California and having Best's ratings of not less
than A:Vll. Said policies will provide coverage for the District and Horizon on an
occurrence basis in amounts not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per
occurrence, combined single limit. Such insurance policy(s) shall be endorsed to (1)

add the District as an "additional insured"; (2) provide that said coverage is primary
and underlying insurance to any insurance carried by the District, which insurance
shall not contribute with Horizon's insurance; (3) provide that any insurance carried
by the District shall be excess to any insurance provided by Horizon to cover the
District under this section; and (4) provide that said policy(s) shall not be canceled

3



nor shall there be any material reductions in coverage without 60 days' notice in

writing to the District. Forthwith upon the execution of this agreement and before the
license shall commence, Horizon shall deliver to the District a certified copy of such

insurance policy including the endorsements described above. Horizon shall also

deliver to the District a certificate by the insurance company(s) stating that the
insurance has been issued and is in good standing.
Workers Compensation: Horizon will provide evidence that it has in full force and

effect Workers' Compensation lnsurance as required by the Labor Code of the State

of California and Employers Liability lnsurance in amounts not less than one million

dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence.

c. Propertv I nsurance: Horizon agrees that it will include within its property insurance
policy(s) coverage for all facilities owned or leased by Horizon and that will at any

time be on the site in amounts sufficient to replace all such facilities.

9 . Non-assiqnabilitv

This license shall not be assignable by Horizon or by operation of law without the prior

written consent of District, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

10. Notices

All notices herein provided to be given or made or which may be given or made by either
parly to the other, shall be deemed to have been duly given when made in writing and deposited
in the United States mail postage prepaid and addressed as follows:

b

To District:
North Marin Water District
Attn: Operations/Maintenance
Superintendent
PO Box 146
Novato, CA 94948

To Horizon:
Horizon Cable TV lnc
PO Box 937
Fairfax, CA 94978

The address to which notices may be given or made by either party may be changed by

written notice given by such party to the other pursuant to this paragraph.

4



lN WITNESS THEREOF, the parlies hereto have caused this license to be executed as of
the day and year first above written.

ATTEST NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

I
Terrie Kehoe,
District Secretary

Rick Fraites, President Date

HORIZON CABLE TV INC

Kevin Daniels, President Date

T:\GMlAgreements\Horizon\DLB Horizon\Horlzon CATV License 201 9.doc
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"Exhibit A"

Tank Site

That certain real property in the County of Marin, State of California, bounded and
described as follows:

Beginning at a point that bears South 54' 56' East 8.17 feet from the most northerly corner
of Parcel Two as described in the deed from Marin County Abstract and Title Company, a

corporation, to James J. Zydonis, et ux, recorded lt(ay 25,1959, in Liber 1281, O.R., page 462
and running thence Nofth 35" 00' East 144.71 feet to the true point of beginning, thence North

43o 50' 20" West 73.41 feet, thence North 23' 53' 54" East 40.69 feet, thence South 78o 59'

East 87.41 feet, thence South 35o 00'West 89.69 feet to the true point of beginning.

T:\Gl\4\Agreemenls\Horizon\DLB Horizon\Hor¡zon CATV License 2017 with edils.doc
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GENERAL NOTES

I, ALL MATERIALS AND APPURTENÀNCES ¡N CONTACT V\4IH

POTABLE WATER SHALL BE NSF-61 CERTIFIED,

2. ALL BURIED STEEL PIPE SHALL HAVE A COAL TAR COATING
IN ACCORDANCE WTH AVWVA C203,

C KEYNoTES

1. RELOCATE (E) FIRE HYDRANT. (BY N[/V\D)

PROVIDE (N) CONCRETE VAULT, SEE
(BY Nl\¡\¡Ð)

1 2. FLEXTBLE EXPANSTON JO|NT CryP OF 2).

4. PROVIDE (N) 24' x24' oVERFLoW/ DRAIN VAULT

5. PROVIDE 6' TILTING DISC CHECK VALVE CryP OF 2), SEE
DETATL ,,'r\ (BY Nililr,Ð)

\c 50r./

6. PROVIDE 6' GATÉ VALVE CIYP OF 4). (BY N¡i\,r/D)

7, PROVIDES"GATEVALVË,
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:.:l:ì::î:ï.,ffi*-,,.
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Item #7

MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors

From: JulieBlue,Auditor/Controller¿$

Subject: Accept - Outside Auditor's FY18 Report and Management Report
t:\finance\audit\aud¡t18\bod accept outsida aud¡tor's 2018 report.doc

November 15,2018

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept FY18 Financial Report and Management Letter

FINANGIAL IMPAGT: None with this Review. AnnualAudit Cost is $17,638,

Chris Brown of Fedak & Brown LLP will attend the meeting to present the Comprehensive

Annual Financial Report (CAFR) (Attachment 1) and the Management Report (Attachment 2).

The key statement in the lndependent Auditor's Report found on page 8 is that: "ln our

opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material aspects, the financial

position of the North Marin Water District as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 , and the changes in its net

position and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America." This "unmodified opinion" is the best, or

highest, opinion that an outside auditor can render on an entity's financial statements.

The Management Report (Attachment 2) states that the auditor did not identify any

deficiencies in the District's internal control that might result in material misstatement of the District's

financial position. For the ninth year running the independent auditor did not have any comments or

recommendations regarding internal controls,

Accounting adjustments were made by staff after submitting the ledger to the outside

auditor and are disclosed on the last nine pages of the Management Report. The following changes

make up the majority of the adjusting entries:

1) A GASB 68 increase in pension expense o1$2,217,067 and an increase in the Pension

Liability of $1,733,935 to $12,774,724.

2) lmplementation of GASB 75 resulted in a change to the recording of the retiree medical

liability and numerous adjusting entries. As of FY18 this liability will be fully recognized on

the Statement of Net Position at $4,123,565.

Staff has reviewed the audited financial report and finds it acceptable.

RECOMMENDATION

Accept the Outside Auditor's FY18 Financial Report and Management Letter.



NORTH ÍTIARIN

WATER DISTRICT
Novato, Galifornia

Gomprehensive Annual Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

E

ffi ti-

w EEEI

-¡'J-l

æs
E

I@

=]

E

ATTACHMENT 1



NON,TH ftTARIN

WATER D¡STNICT

: .. i.r
a

Name Title

j',

.r ' 1,

Elected/
Appôinted

Elected

,Elected

'APPointed
Appointed

Elected

12t13 - 12118

12t15 - 12120

08117 - 12118

02t17 - 12118

12115 - 12120

Current
Term

Rick Fraites

Jack Baker

James Grossi

Michael Joly

Stephen Petterle

President

Vice-President,, ..

Director

Directór

Director

.,:,.
i,..'...

.l

..tl

Drew Mclntyre, General Manager
North Marin Water District

999 Rush Greek Place
Novato, Galifornia 94945

(415) 897-4133 - www.nmwd.com



North Marin Water District

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
999 Rush Creek Place

Novato, California 94945

Prepared by:
Finance DePartment

J u I ie Bl ue, Au dito r-Contro I le r



North Marin Water District
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Table of Contents

Table of Contents

lntroductory Section

Letter of Transmittal

Organizational Chart

District Service Area MaP

GFOA's Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting

Financial Section

lndependent Audttor's RePort

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Requi red Su pplementary lnformation:
Schedule.of Changes in the District Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

schedules of the District's Proportionate share of Net Pension Liability

Schedules of Pension Plan Contribution's

Supplemental I nformation :

Combining Schedule of Net Position - June 30' 2018
Combinin! Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - June 30, 2018

Statistical lnformation Section:
Statistical Section - Table of Contents
Changes in Net Position by Component - Last Ten Fiscal Years
Operating Revenues by Source - Last Ten Fiscal Years
Operating Expenses by Activity - Last Ten Fiscal Years
Non-Operating Revenue and Expenses - Last Ten Fiscal years

Revenue Base - Last Ten Fiscal Years
Customers by Type - Last Ten FiscalYears
Revenue Rates - Last Ten Fiscal Years
Ten Largest Water Customers by Revenue - Current Fiscal Year and Ten Years Ago

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type - Last Ten Fiscal Years
Pledged-Revenue Coverage - Last Ten Fiscal Years
Demographic and Economic Statistics - Last Ten Fiscal Years

. Demographic and Economic Statistics - Ten Largest Employers - Current Year

Operating and Capacity lndicators - Total Employees - Last Ten Fiscal Years

Other Operating and Capacity lndicators - Last Ten Fiscal Years

Report on lnternal Controls and Gompliance

lndependent Auditor's Report on lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting

And on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Gove rnment Auditing Sfandards

Paqe No.

8-9

10-15

16-17
'18

19-20
21-51

57
58-59

60
61

62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

52
53
54

55
56

-t-

73-74



lntroductory Section



iloRTH fttAHr{
WATEA ÐtSrRlCf

9!t$ Rush Creck Phce
P-O- Box 146
Novatq C4949¿18-0f46

plþt¡E
415€97.4133

Eû¡IAIT

infu@nmwd.com

WEB
www-nmwd.com

November 20,2018

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) require that management provide a

narrative introduction, overview and analysis'to' âccompany the financial statements in

the form of the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section. This letter of
transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with
it. The District's MD&A can be found on page 10 of this report.

District Structure and Leadership

The District is an independent special district, which operates under the authority of
Division 12 of the California Wáter Code. The District has been providing waterservice
to its customers since 1948. The District is governed by a five-member Board of
Directors, elected at-large from within the District's service area. The General Manager
administers the day-to-day operations of the District in accordance with policies and

procedures established by the Board of Directors. As of June 30, 2018, the District
employed 54 regular employees, plus temporary and seasonal employees as the
workload dictätes. There are currently 21 ottice positions and 32 field positions.. The
District's Board' of Directors meets on the first and third Tuesday of each month.
Meetilgs are publicly noticed and citizens are encouraged to attend.

District Services

The District provides water service to the greater Novato area and to areas of West
Marin (Point Reyes Station, Olema, Bear Valley, lnverness Park and Paradise Ranch
Estates). The District provides sewer service to the Oceana Marin subdivision adjacent
to Dillon Beach.

The District provides water service to approximately 61,000 residents in the greater
Novato area through 20,543 potable water service connections and 66 recycled water
connections. The District also provides water service to approximately 1,800 residents in
the Point Reyes service area of West Marin County through 783 service connections
and sewer service to approximately 500 residents in the Oceana Marin service area of
West Marin County through 232 service connections.
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District Services, contin ued

Residential customers comprise approximately 93% of the District's customer base and

consume approximately BO% of the water produced annually by the District. The District
purchases approximately B0% of its Novato water supply from the Sonoma County Water
Agency (Agency) with the balance derived from the District's Stafford Lake Reservoir and some

recycled water. The District purchased approximalely 2.1 billion gallons of water in fiscal year
2018 and 1 .7 billion gallons in 2017 from the Agency.

Economic Gondition, Outlook and Major lnitiatives

The District carries out its Mission with a highly-motivated and competent staff empowered to
conduct the District's business by placing customer needs and welfare first. Each day, District

employees strive to carry out their work mindful of these basic principles: Good Water, Good

Service, Good Value, and A Safe Place to Work.

The Russian River water delivery system operated by the Agency typically provides B0% of
Novato's water supply. Novato rainfall in fiscal year 2018 totaled 20.5" which was about 76% of
the historical average annual rainfall. ln fiscal year 2018 ample water was available in Lake

Sonoma for fish, agriculture and urban use on the lower Russian River system and no

restrictions on the Russian River water deliveries were imposed. North Marin's Stafford Lake

water treatment plant produced 646 million gallons of water to augment Russian River supplies

with local water supply during the fiscal year. Recycled water treatment facilities at Novato

Sanitary District, Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District and North Marin's Deer lsland treatment
facilities combined to provide 156 million gallons of highlytreated recycled wastewater to

irrigate landscape within the District's service territory. '

The Agency has deferred its plan to construct,previously contemplated Russian River water
production and delivery facilities (pumps and pipelines) to fulfill the Restructured Agreement
contract requirements for increased Russian River water. The Agency is now focused on

compliance with the Biological Opinion in the Russian River watershed issued by the National

Marine Fisheries Service, laying out'the requirements to preserve, protect and restore the
fisheries and maintain the existing'Russian River water supplies. Additionally, state legislation
passed in November 2009 (SB7X-7) ¡equires a20o/o reduction in per capita water use by 2020.
The District has already achieved the SBTX-7 goal, but continues to strive to achieve more

water conservation and development of recycled water to furlher stretch its local source of
supply in future years.

A 45% rate increase for customers in the Novato service area was authorized by the Board of
Directors effective June,1, 2018. At $718 per year, the cost of water service for a typical Novato

detached single-family home using 86,600 gallons of water a year remains a good value for
Novato customels.

ln West Marin, normal year water supply conditions existed on Lagunitas Creek.
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District Water SuPPIY

Stafford Lake - Local Source Provides 20%o of the District's Supply

Stafford Lake lies four miles west of downtown Novato and collects the runoff from B'3 square

miles of watershed land adjacent to the upper reaches of Novato Creek. The lake has a surface

area of 230 acres and holds 4,450 AF (acre-feet) (1,450 MG) of water. Water from Stafford Lake

is fed into the 6 million gallons per day (mgd) treatment plant located just below the dam. ln

fiscat year 2018 and Zú11,1,9b2 AF (646 MG) and 2,320 AF (756 MG) respectively, was

produóed by the Stafford Lake Water Treatment Plant'

Russian River - Provides B0% of the District's Annual supply

Russian River water originates from both the Eel River and the Russian River watersheds

northeast of the City of U'¡¡an (Lake Mendocino) and west of Healdsburg (Lake Sonoma). Lake

Mendocino's Coyote Dam imp'ounds the Eel River diversions and winter runoff from the local

watershed. Lake Sonomu', W"tr Springs Dam impounds winter runoff from'the Dry Creek and

Warm Springs watersheds. Lakes Mendocino and Sonoma combined càn store 367,500 acre

feet to meet the regions' water supply needs, which totaled 46,100 acre feet in fiscal year 2018.

Releases from the lakes flow to a point about 10 miles upstream of Guerneville where six deep

Ranney Collector wells collect river water that has been filtered through 60 to 90 feet of natural

sand and gravel to perforated pipes located at the bottom of èach well. The thick layer of sand

and gravel through which the water must pass before reaching the intake pipes provides a

highlf-efficient, nãtural filtration process which, with chlorination treatment, produces a clear,

po"táóte, bacteria-free water. This water is then fed directly into the Agency's aqueduct system'

During the fiscal years 2018 and 2017 , the District received 6,104 AF (2,054 MG) and 5,158 AF

(1,6g1 MG) respectively, of Russian River water. The District has an agreement in place with

ihe Agency to provide sufficient supply to meet the District's current and future water supply

needs. There continues to be compeiing interests for Russian River water, principally to protect

steelhead and salmon listed as threatened sþecies under the Endangered Species Act. The

Biological Opinion for water supply in the Russian River watershed has been issued by the

Natio-nal Maiine Fisheries Service iaying out the requirements to preserve, protect and restore

the fisheries and maintain the existing ñussian River water supplies. The District continues to

actively support the necessary develoþment of the Russian River water supply and protection of

the Russian River fisheries.

I nternal Gontrol Structu re

District management is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of the internal

control structule that ensures the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse.

The internal control structure also ensures that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow

for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting

pi¡nã¡pl"r-. ih" Dirtri.t's internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable assurance

ihut th"r",objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost

;i-; ;";ñii'rroulo not exceed the benefii tikety to be derived, and (2) the valuation of costs and

benefits requires estimates and judgments by management'

Budgetary Control

The District Board of Directors annually adopts an operating and capital budget prior to the new

fiscal year. The budget authorizes and provides the basis for reporting and control of financial

op"ruúon, and accoîntability for the District's enterprise operations and capital projects. The

budget and reporting applieá to the District is consistent with the accrual basis of accounting

and the financial statement basis.
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lnvestment Policy

The Board of Directors has adopted an investment policy that conforms to state law, District

ordinance and resolutions, prudent money management, and the "prudent person" standard.

The objective of the lnvestment Policy is safety, maturity and yield. District funds are invested in

the Státe Treasurer's Local Agency lnvestment Fund, corporate medium-term notes and time

certificates of deposit.

Water Rates and District Revenues

Revenue from user charges generated from District customers supports District operations.

Accordingly, water and sewer rates are reviewed annually. Water and sewer rates are user

charges imposeO on customers for services and are the primary component of the District's

reveñue. Water rates are comprised of a commodity (water use) charge and a bi-monthly

service charge; whereas, sewer rates are comprised exclusively of a fixed charge, 
'

Audit and Financial RePorting

State Law and Bond covenants require the District to obtain an annual audit of its financial

statements by an independent Certified Public Accountant. The accounting firm of Fedak and

Brown LLP has conducted the audit of the District's financial statements. Their unmodified

lndependent Auditor's Report appears in the Financial Section'

Awards and Acknowledgements

For the eighth consecutive year, the District was awarded the Government Finance Officers

Associatioñ of the United States and Canada's (GFOA) Ceftificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting for its 2017 and 2016 Consolidated Annual Financial Report
(CAFR). To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an

easily ieadable and efficiently organized CAFR. The report must satisfy both generally accepted

accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. We believe that this CAFR meets

the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to

determine its eligibility for 2018.

Preparation of this report was accomplished by the combined efforts of District staff. We

appreciate the dedicated efforts and professionalism that these staff members contribute to the

Distr¡ct. We would also like to thank the members of the Board of Directors for their continued

support in planning and implementation of the North Marin Water District's fiscal policies.

Respectfully submitted,

,{}-u'r¿¡ c-,1' é-4¿-n-¿-'

Drew Mclntyre

General Manager

ulie BIue

Auditor-Controller
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lndependent Auditor's RePoÉ

Board of Directors
North Marin Water District
Novato, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the North Marin Water District (District), which

comprises the statement of net positìon as of June 30, 2018, and the related statement of rêvenues, expenses

and changes in net position, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial

statementé, which coliectively comprise the District's basic financial statements.

M an a g em enf 's Respons i b i I ity f o r th e F i n a n ci al SfafemenÚs

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance

with ãccounting piinciples generaily accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,

implementationl and maintenãnce of internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Audito r's Responsi b i lity
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial statements based on our audit. We conducted

our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the

standards applicable to financial audlt contained in Government Auditing Sfandards, issued by the Comptroller

General of the United States; and the State Controller's Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special

Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements. The proiedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. ln making those risk

assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the

financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no

iuih opinion.' Rn auO¡t also 'includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

Opinion ,

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

position of the North Marin Water District as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in its net position and its cash

ilows for ttre year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America,

Req u i red S upptementary I nformati on

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management's discussion

and analyãis on p"geð 10 through 15 and the required supplementary information on pages 52 through 54 be

presented to supplément the bãsic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic

iinancial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an

essential part of financial'reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,

economic, or historical context.
8



lndependent Auditor's Report, continued

We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing

standards gäneratty accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires of management about

the methoãs of preparinþ the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's

responses to our inquireJ, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of

the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information

because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any

assurance.

Emphasis of Malter
As part of our audit of the June 30, 20'18, financial statements, we audited the adjustments described in note 13.

An adjustment was recognized for the District's total other post-employment benefits liability; and has reclassified

its employer pension 
"oñtributions 

from expense to deferred outflows of resources and recorded a prior period

adjustment to restate net position as of June 30,2017 .

As discussed in Note 1.C to the financial statements, in June 30,2018, the District adopted new accounting

guidance Governmental Accounting Standarcts Board Statement lVos. 75 and 74, Our opinion is not modified with

respect to this matter

Other Matters

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California
November 20,2018

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise

the District's basic financial statements as a whole. The introductory section on pages '1 through 7, the

supplementary information of combining schedules on pages 55 through 56, and the.statistical section on pages

5T ihrough 7à are presented for purpoões of additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial

statemeñts. The supplementary information of combining schedules are the responsibility of management and

were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting'and other records used to prepare the basic

financial statements. The informatioñ has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the

basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such

information direc¡y to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements

or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing

standards generally accepted in the United States of America. ln our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all

material reãpects ih relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical

sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements

and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

ln accordancewith GovernmentAucliting Sfandards, we have also issued a reportdated November20,2018, on

our consideration of the District's ¡nterñat control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with

certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report

is to describe the scope of oùr testing of internal c-ontrol over financial reporting and compliance and the results of

that testing, and not io provide'an o[inion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That

report is a-n integrat pari of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering

the District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. This repod can be found on pages 73 and

74.
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North Marin Water District
Managemenf's Discus sion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial performance of

the North Marin Water District (District) provides an introduction to the financial statements of the District

for the fiscal year ended June 30, zoiA. We encourage readers to consider the information presented

here in conjuîction with the transmittal letter in the lntroductory Section and with the basic financial

statements and related notes, which follow this section.

Financial Highlights

¡ ln fiscal year 2}18,the District's net position increased 2.8o/o or $2,911 ,4731o $106,823,445' The

increase of $2,911,473 was primariiy due to increases of $'1,860,518 from ongoing _op9lali9!:
and $4,265,04'1 from capitai contributions, which was offset by the effect of a $3,214,086

restatement to net position related to the implementation of GASB 75. (See note 13 for further

information).

. ln fiscal year 2018, the District's operating revenues increased 18.1% or $3,390,618 to

$22,094,094.

. ln fiscal year 2018, the District's operating expenses before depreciation increased 9.0% or

$1,361,343 to $1 6,46'1,030.

Required Financial Statements

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position, Statement

of Revenues, Èxpenses and Changes in Net Position and Statement of Cash Flows provide information

about the activities and performanóe of the District using accounting methods similar to those used by

private sector comPanies.

The Statement of Net Position includes all of the District's investments in resources (assets) and the

obligations to creditors (liabilities). lt also provides the basis fol computing a rate of return, evaluating the

.upì'tul structure of the òistrict and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District. All of the

current year's revenue and expenses are aicounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and

Changeå in Net position. This statement measures the success of the District's operations over the past

year ãnd can be used to determine if the District has successfully recovered all of its costs through its

iates and other charges. This statement can also þe used to evaluate profitability and credit worthiness

The final required finãncial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows, which provides information about

the District's cash receipts and cash payments during the reporling period. The Statement of Cash Flows

reports cash receipts, cash payments and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, non-

capital financing, and capital and related financing activities and provides answers to such questions as

where did cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in cash balance during the

reporting period.

FinancialAnalysis of the District

One of the most important questions asked about the District's finances is, "ls the District better off or

worse off as a result of this year's activities?" The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of

Revenues, Eipenses and Chánges in Net Position report information about the District in a way that

helps the r""d"r 
"n.*er 

this quðstion. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows, liabilities

and deferred lnflows using the accrual basrs of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by

most priváte sector compãnies. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account

regardless of when the cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the District's net position and changes in it. One can think of the District's

net position - the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and

deferred inflows of resources - as one way to measure the District's financial health, or financial position

Over time, rncreases or decreases in the District's net position are one indicator of whether its financial

health is improving or deteriorating. However, one will need to consider other non-financial factors such

as changes in eðonomic conditiõns, population growth, new or changed government legislation or

accountiñg standards, as well as changes in Federal and State water quality standards.
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North Marin Water District
Managemenú's Díscus sion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in

the basic financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 21

through 51.

Statements of Net Position

Condensed Statements of Net Position

2018 20'.17

Assets:
Current assets
Non-current assets
Capitalassets, net

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities:
Current liabilities
Non-current liabi lities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources

Net position:
Net investment in capitalassets
Restricted for capital projects and debt
Unrestricted

Totalnet position

163,356,535 151 397

$ 19,686,189
7,0B0,538

136 589 808

16,343,722

6,473,193
128,580,395

Change 
,

3;342,467
' 607,345

: 8,009,413

310 11,959.225

3,538,325 2, 931,861 606,464

6,218,548
52,966,629

6,429,846
43 331 998

59,185,177 49 761 844

(211,298)
9,634,631

I 423 333

886,238 655 355 230 883

102,392,652
2,183,812
2 246 981

98,131,574
2,140,681
3,639,717

4,261,078
43,131

(1, 392.736)

$ 106,823,445 103,911,972 2, 911,473

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial
position. ln the case of the Distr:ict, assets and deferred outflows of the District exceeded liabilities and
deferred inflows by $106,823 ,445 as of June 30, 2018.

By far the largest portion of the District's net position (96% as of June 30, 2018) reflects the District's
investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to provide services to customers
within the District's service area; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.

At the end of fiscal year 2018, the District showed a positive balance in its unrestricted net position of
52,246,981. See note 12 for the amount of spendable net position that may be utilized in future years.
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North Marin Water District
Management's Discussíon and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

2018 2017 Chanqe

Revenue:
Operating revenue

Non-operating revenue

Total revenue

Expense:
Operating epense
Depreciation and amortization
Non-operating expense

Total expense

Net income(expense) before

capital contributions

Capital contributions

Change in net position

Net position, beginning of Year

Prior period adjustment

Net position, beginning of Year
- as restated

$ 22,094,094 18,703,476
505,230

3,390,618
503 856 1 374

22,597,950 19, 208,706 3,389,244

16,461,030
3,434,069

842 JJJ

15,099,687
3,416,411

.1,361,343

17,658
32,273810 060 .

20,

'1,860,518 (117,452)

11,643,388

411 274

1,977,970

737.432 19,326,158

4, 265,041 (7, 378.347\

6 125 559 11,

103,911,572 92,386,036

14,086)

525,936 (5,400,372I

(3,2

11,525,936

(3,214,086)

100,697,886 92,386,036

__193p11fz2_

8,311,850

Net position, end of year $ 106,823,445 ___2p11fl3_

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes of net position shows how the District's net position

changed during the fiscalyears. ln the case of the District, net position increased 2.8o/o or $2,911,4731o
$106-,823,445 which was due to increases of $1,860,5'18 from ongoing operations and $4,265,041 from
capital contributions, which was offset by the effect of a $3,2'14,086 restatement to net position related to

the implementation of GASB 75. (See note 13 for further information)'

A closer examination of the sources of changes in net position:

ln 2018, the District's total revenues increased by 17.60/o or $3,389,244 to $22,597,950. The District's

operating revenues increased by 18.1o/o or $3,390,618 to $22,094,094 due primarily to increase of

$2,962,703 in water consumption sales, $229,466 in bi-monthly service charges, and $155,846 in water
sales to other agency.

ln 2018, the District's non-operating revenues decreased by 0.3% or $1,374 to $503,856 due primarily to
a decrease of $88,285 in other non-operating revenues, offset by increases of $52,822 in investment

earnings and fi22,255 in rental revenue.

tn 2018, the District's capital contributions decreased by 63.4% or $7,378,347 to $4,265,041 due primarily

to decreases of 96,556,345 in state and local capital grants and $2,662,698 in federal capital grants,

offset by increases of $1 ,419,881 in developer contributions and $420,8'15 in connection fees.

12



North Marin Water District
Managemenf's Discus sion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, continued

ln 2018, the District's total expenses including depreciation increased by 7.3o/o or $'1,411,274 to

920737,432. The District's operating expenses increased 9.0% or $1,361,343 to $16,461,030 due
primarily to increases of $990,407 in source of supply, $220,197 in water treatment, 5164,322 in

iransmiôsion and distribution, $142,358 in water facilities operations, $75,014 in pumping expense, and

$65,975 in customer service expense, which were offset by a decrease of $292,732 in general

administrative expense.

ln 2018, the District's depreciation and amodization increased by 0.5% or $17,658 to $3,434,069 due
primarily to maturing of existing capital assets depreciation.

ln 2018, the District's non-operating expenses increased by 4.0% or $32,273 to $842,333 due primarily to
an increase of $86,180 in debt issuance costs, offset by a decrease of interest expense on long{erm
debt.

Total District Revenues

2018 2017 : Change

Operating revenues:
Water consumption sales
Monthly meter service charge
Sewer service charges
Water sale to other agency
Other charges and services

Total operating revenues

Non-operating revenues:
Property tax revenue
lnvestment earnings
lnterest earnings from note - BPGL
Rental revenue
Other non-operating revenues

Total non-operating revenues

Total revenues

ln 2018, total District revenues increased $3,389,244

$ 16,764,567
4,564,228

239,890
155,846
369,563

13,801;864
4,334,762

2l 5,989

2,962,703
229,466

23,901

155,846
18,702350,861

22,054,O94 18, 703,476 3,390,618

109,927

182,169
48,536

105,406
57,818

503,856

107,210
129,347
39,419
83,1 51

2,717
52,822

9,117
22,255

146 103 285)

505 230 (.374\

$ 22,597,950 19, 208.706 3,389,244
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Total District Expenses

Operating expenses including
depreciation expense:

Source of supply
Pumping
Water faci lities operations
Water treatment
Transmission and distribution
Sewage collection and treatment
Customer service
General and administrative
Water conservation
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating exPenses
including depreciation expense

Non-operating expenses:
lnterest e)çense - long-term debt
Debt issuance costs
Other non-operating e&enses

Total non-operating expenses

Total expenses

North Marin Water District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

2018 2017 ch

$ 5,569,766
426,356

1,079,917
2,567,146
3,387,559

163,957
742,164

2,169,660
354,505

3,434,069

747,118
86,1 80

9,035

19,895,0!9 :18,516,098 379 001

4,579,359
351,342
937,559

2,346,949
3,223,237

151,205
676,1 89

2,462,392
371,455

3 416 11

791,211

18 849

990,407
75,014

142,358
220,1.97

164;322

12,752
65,975

(2e2,732)
(16,e50)

1

17 658

(44,0e3)
86,1 80
(9,814)

842,333 810 060 32,273

$ 20, 737,432 19,326,158 ___lÁ:At_

ln 2018, total District expenses increased by $1,411,274

Capital Asset Administration
Changes in capital asset amounts for 2018 were as follor¡¡s:

Balance
20'17

Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets

Depreciable assets

Accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, net

Additions

1 1 ,587,1 38

1 ,509,157
(3,434 ,069)

Transfers/
Deletions

Balance
2018

(1,64e,e66)
(177,830)
174 983

25,964,598
'168,132,910

(57,507,700)

$ 16,027,426
166,801,583
(54,248,614)

$ 128, 580,395 9,662,226 (1 ,652,81 3) 136,589,808

Atthe end of fiscal year2018, the District's investment in capital assets amounted to $'136,589,808, (net

of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes: land, transmission and

distributionr systems, reservoirs, tanks, pumps, buildings and structures, equipment, vehicles and

construction-in-progress, etc. (See note 6 for further information)
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North Marin Water District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Debt Administration
Changes in long-term debt amounts for 2018 were as follot¡rs:

Balance
2017 Additions

Principal
Payments

Balance
2018

Long-term debt:
Bonds payable

Loans payable

Total long{erm debt

$ 94,000
31,922,939

$ 32,016,939

7,383 ,204

(22,000)
(1,792,680)

72,000
37,513,463

7,383,204 ___0J9?,699I 37,585,463

(See note 9 for further information)

Requests for lnformation

This financial report is designed to provide the District's funding sources, customers,. stakeholders and

other interested parlies witñ an overview of the District's financial operations and financial condition.
Should the reader have questions regarding the information included in this report or wish to request

additional financial information, please contact the District's Auditor-Controller at 999 Rush Creek Place,

Novato, California 94945, Telephone: (415) 897 -4133.
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Basic Financial Statements



North Marin Water District
Statement of Net Position

June 30,2018

2018

Gurrent assets:
Cash and cash equiralents (note 2)

Restricted - cash and cash equivalents (note 2)

Restricted - investments (note 2)

Accrued interest receirable
Accounts receirable - water and sewer sales and services

Accounts receir¡able - governmental agencies

Accounts receirable - other

Capital grants and loan proceeds receireble
Notes receirable (note 3)

Notes receir¡able - employee housing assistance loans, net (note 4)

Materials and suPPlies inventorY

Prepaid epenses and deposits

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Restricted - investments (note 2)

Notes receirable (note 3)

Notes receivable - employee housing assistance loans, net (note 4)

Capital assets, not being depreciated (note 6)

Depreciable capital assets, net (note 6)

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred pension outfloi¡,s (note 11)

Total deferred outflows of resources

Continued on nert nage

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

$ 3,484,730
1,450,786
6,469,611

84,055
4,513,370

69,830
10,550

2,270,095
296,420
495,000
471,314

70,428

19, 686,1 89

3,701,301
2,665,037

714,200
25,964,598

110,625 .210

143,670,346

163,356,535

J, 538,325

$3, 538,325
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North Marin Water District
Statement of Net Position, continued

June 30,2018

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued e4censes

Accrued wages and related payables

Accrued claims payable (note 7)

Customer advances and dePosits

Accrued interest payable - long-term debt

Long-term liabilities - due within one year:

Compensated absences (note 8)

Bonds payable (note 9)

Loans payable (note 9)

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Long-term liabilities - due in more than one year:

Compensated absences (note B)

Bonds payable (note 9)
Loans payable (note 9)

Total other post-employment benefits liability (note 10)

Net pension liabilitY (note 11)

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred other post-employment benefits inflows (note 10)

Deferred pension inflows (note 11)

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net position: (note 12, 13)

Net inrestnent in caPital assets

Restricted for capital projects and debtservice
Unrestricted

Total net Position

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

a

2018

2,641,524
272,429

97,581

1 ,066, 1 00
136,334

24,AOO

16

6,218,548

365,593
48,000

35,654,747
4,123,565

12, 774.724

52,966,629

59, 185.177

158,61'l
727.627

886.238

102,392,652
2,183,812
2 246 981

$ 106, 823,445

2
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North Marin Water District
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Operating revenues:
Water consumption sales
Bi-monthly meter service charge
Sewer service charges
Water sale to other agency
Other charges and services

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Source of supply
Pumping
Water facilities operations
Water treatment
Transmission and distribution

Sewage collection and treatment

Customer service
General and administrative
Water conserr,ation

Total operating expenses

Operating income before depreciation
Depreciation expense - capital recovery

OPerating income

Non-operati ng revenues(e>penses) :

Property tax revenue
lnvestment earnings
lnterest earnings from note receivable - BPGL

Rental revenue
lnterest epense - long-term debt

Other non-operating revenues

Other non-operating exPenses ,

Debt issuance costs

Total non-operating revenues, net

Net (expense) income before capital contributions

Capital contributions:
Developers and others
Connection fees
Capital grants - federal
Capital gfants - state and local

Capital contributions

Change in net Position

Net position, beginning of year - as restated (note 13)

Net position, end of year

2018

$ 16,764,567
4,564,228

239,890
155,846
369,563

22.094.O94

5,569,766
, 426,356
1,079,917
2,567,146
3,387,559

163,957
742,164

2,'169,660

354,505

16,461,030

5,633,064
(3,434,069)

¿, 198,995

109,927
182,169
48,536

'105,406

(747,118)
57,818
(e,035)

(86 ,1 80)

338,477)

1,860,5'18

2,216,7U
1,455,400

24,101
568,806

o41

6,125,559

100,697 ,886

$ 106, 823,445

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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North Marin Water District
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash receipts from customers and others

Cash paid to employees for salaries and wages

Cash paid to r¡endors and suppliers for materials and services

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flor¡¡s from non-capital financing activities:

Property tax revenue

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activitles

Cash flor¡,s from capital and related financing activities:

Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Proceeds from capital contributions and connection fees

Proceeds from principal issued on long-term debt

Costs paid on debt issuance
Principal paid on long{erm debt

lnterest paid on longterm debt

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchases of investments
Principal received on notes receirable
Principal issued on notes receivable

Principal issued on employee housing assistance loans 
.

lnvestment earnings

Net cash used in investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to statement of financial position:

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted assets - cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and cash equiralents

Continuedon nert oøge

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

2018

s 21,254,606
(5,962,511)

(7,008,503)

.109,927

109 927

(11,008,171)
4,265,041
7,383,204

86,'180
(1,814,680)

(717A?q

(1,805,852)

2,735,242
(5,956,352)

253,1 89
(1,695,758)

(250,000)

143,440

(4, 770.239\

1,817,428

J, 118,088

$4, 935,516

$ 3,4M,730
450.7861,

$4, 935,516
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North Marin Water District
Statement of Cash Flows, continued

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation e4cense - capital recovery

Rental revenue
Other non-operating revenue
Other non-operating expenses

Changes in assets, deferred outflor¡n of resources, liabilities and deferred infloua of resources:

(lncrease)Decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable - r¡¡ater and sewer sales and services

Accounts receivable - governmental agencies
Accounts receivable - other
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid expenses and other deposits

lncrease in deferred outflovr,s of resources
Pension related

I ncrease(Decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued wages and related payables

Accrued claims payable

Customer advances and deposits
Compensated absences
Other post-employment benefit liabilty
Net pension liability

lncrease in deferred inflor¡s of resources
Other post-employment benefits related
Pension related

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operati¡g activities

Non-cash investing, capital and financing transactions:

Change in fair value of investments

Change in capital contributions - grants

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

2018

$ 2,198,995

3,434,069
105,406
57,818 ''
(e,035) '

(e89,514)
(24,733)
1'1,535

22,787
26,728

(606,464)

(87e,558)
1 1,093

(94,541)
297,216

(162,474)
2,919,446
'1,733,935

158,6'11
72 272

6,084,597

$ 8,283,592

$ 31,416

$ 3,781,780
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity

The North Marin Water District (District) is an independent special district formed in April 1948, which

operates under the authority of Division 12 of the California Water Code. The District's service area

includes the City of Novato, adjacent areas, plus annexed areas in West Marin County. The District is

governed by a five-member Board of Directors who serve overlapping four-year terms.

The criteria used in determining the scope of the financial reporting entity is based on the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Statements No. 6'1 , The Financial Repofting Entity. The District is the primary

governmental unit based on the foundation of a separately elected governing board that is elected by the

ðitizens in a general popular election. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the

elected officials of the primary government are financially accountable. The District is financially
accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and: 1) It is able to
impose its will on that organization, or 2) There is a potential for the organization to provide specific

financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government.

The District's operations are accounted for by the following service areas, some of which were originally

established as lmprovement Districts. Although the lmprovement Districts are legally separate

organizations, they are reported herein as if they were part of the primary government because the
primary government controls the lmprovement Districts and the Board of 'Directors serve as their
governing board. The following service areas are reported as blended component units.

Novato Water Sysfem - The Novato Water System is the primary service division of the District and

represents the basic primary component of the District. i

West Marin WaterSysfem formally Point Reyes Service Area. -This service area began in 1970 as a
separate voter-approved lmprovement District. Point Reyes was consolidated with the Olema

lmprovement District in 1996 and the Paradise RanchrEstate lmprovement District in2O02, forming the

West Marin Water System.

Oceana Marin Sewer Service - By agreement with a private developer, this service area was formed to
provide sewer service to area residents commencing in June 1973.

Novato Recycted Water Sysfem - This.enterprise fund was formed by the Districtin 2007 to account for
the operation of the District's recycled water treatment and distribution system.

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for operations that are

financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise, where the intent of the District

is that the cost of providing water or wastewater disposal to its service area on a continuing basis be

financed or recovered primarily through user charges (water sales and sewer service charges), capital
grants and similar fundìng. Revenues and expenses are recognized on the full accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and expenses

are recognized in the period incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.

Operating fevenues and expenses, such as water sales and sewer service charges, along with water
purchases and wastewater disposal, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal

activity o{ the District. Exchange transactions are those in which each parly receives and gives up

esseniially equal value. Management, administration and depreciation expenses are also considered

operating expenses. Other revenues and expenses not included in the above categories are reported as

non,operating revenues and expenses. Non-operating revenues and expenses, such as grant funding,

inVestment income and interest expense, result from non-exchange transactions, in which the District
gives (receives) value without directly receiving (giving) value in exchange.
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

(f ) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

C. Financial Reporting

The District's basic financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as applied to enterprise funds. The

õovernmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setttng body for

establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The District solely operates as a

special-purpõse government which means it is only engaged in business-type activities; accordingly.,

activities are reported in the District's proprietary fund.

The District has adopted the following GASB pronouncements in the current year:

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No' 75

ln June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No.75 - Accounting and Financial Reporling for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting

and financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions

(OPEB). lt also improveð information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial

support for OPEB that is provided by other entities.

This Statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Repofting by

Employers for Postemptoyment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as'amende9, 3nd No. 57, OPEB

Me'asúrements by Agent Employers and Agent Muttiple-Employer Plans, for OPEB. The provisions of this

Statement are efiectlve for fínancial statements for periods beginning after June 15,2017. The impact of

the implementation of this Statement to the District's financial statements has not been assessed at this

time.

GovernmentalAccounting Standards Board Statement No' 81

ln March 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 81 - lrrevocable Split-lnterest Agreemenfs. The objective

of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest agreements

by providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a beneficiary

of the agreement.

This Statement requires that a government that receives resources pursuant to an irrevocable split-

interest agreement recognize assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at the inception of the

agreemen-i. Furthermore, this Statement requires that a government recognize assets representing its

béneficial interests in irrevocable split.interest agreements that are administered by a third party, if the

government controls the present servjce capacity of the beneficial interests. This Statement requires that

ã government recognize revenueûhen the resources become applicable to the reporting period.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after

December 15,2016, and should be applied retroactively'

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement /Vo. 85

ln March 2017,1he GASB issued Statement No. 85 - Omnibus 2017. The objective of this Statement is

to address practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of ceúain

GASB Statements, This Statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending

component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and postemployment benefits

(pensions and other postemployment benefits - OPEB)'

The provisions of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017 - fhe
',impa'ct of the implementation of this Statement to the District's financial statements has not been

assessed at this time.
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred lnflows and Net Position

1. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts

of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements and the reported changes in net position during the reporting period.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Substantially all of the District's cash is invested in interest bearing accounts. The District considers

all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents,

3. lnvestments and lnvestment Policy

The District has adopted an investment policy directing the District's Auditor-Cqntroller to deposit
funds in financial institutions.

Changes in market value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment income

reportèd for that fiscal year. lnvestment income includes interest earnings, changes in market value,

and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of investments, 
,

4- Fair Value Measurements

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by

generally acceptód accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on valuation inputs used to
measure the fair value of the asset, as follows: :

. Level 1 - Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.

o Level 2 - Valuation is based on directly observable and indirectly observable inputs. These

inputs are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data through

correlation or market-corroborated inputs. The concept of market-corroborated inputs

incorporates observable market data such as interest rates and yield curves that are

observable at commonly quoted intervals.

. Level 3 - Valuation is based on unobservable inputs where assumptions are made based on

factors such as prepayment rates, probability of defaults, loss severity and other assumptions

that are internally generated and cannot be observed in the market'

5. Accounts Receivable

The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations. Management deems all

accounts receivable as collectible at year-end. Accordingly, an allowance for doubtful accounts has

not been recorded.

6. Propefty Taxes

The County of Marin Assessor's Office assesses all real and personal property within the County

each year. The County of Marin Tax Collector's Office bills and collects the District's share of property

taxes and assessments. The County of Marin Treasurer's Office remits current and delinquent
property tax collections to the District throughout the year. Property tax in California is levied in

accordánce with Article '134 of the State Constitution at one percent (1%) of countywide assessed

valuations.
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

(f ) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred lnflows and Net Position, continued

7. Restricted Assets

Restricted assets are financial resources generated for a specific purpose such as capital projects or

debt service. These assets are for the benefit of a specified purpose and, as such, are legally or

contractually restricted by an external third-party agreement.

8. Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and are

recorded as prepaid items in the basic financial statements'

9. CapitalAssets

Capital assets acquired and/or constructed are capitalized at historical cost. District policy has set the

capitalization tnreåholO for capitalizing equipment purchases at $5,000. Donatêd assets are recorded

at estimated cost at the date of donation. Upon retirement or other disposition of capital assets, the

cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective balances and any gains

or losses are recognized. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful

lives of the assets as follows:

. Dam - 100 years
¡ Transmission and distribution systems - 50 to 150 years

o Treatment plant - 20 to 50 years
. Sewer mains and pumps - 10 to 40 years
o Buildings and storage facilities - 35 to 50 years . '

r Equipment and vehicles - 5 to 10 years : , ..

10. Deferred Outflows of Resources

The statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of

resources. This separate financial statement èlement, deferred outflows of resources, represents a

consumption of resources applicable to future periods and therefore will nof be recognized as an

outflow of resources (expenditure):until that time. The District has the following items that qualify for

reporting in this categorY:

Post-Emptoyment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

. Deferred outflow which is equal to the employer contributions made after the measurement

date of the total OPEB liability. This amount will be amortized-in-full against the total OPEB

liability in the next ftscal Year.

Pensions
. Deferred outflow which is equal to the employer contributions made after the measurement

date of the net pension liability. This amount will be amortized-in-full against the net pension

liability in the next fiscal Year.

".' Deferred outflow for the net changes in assumptions which will be amortized over a closed
' period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are

: 'provided with pensions through the Plan.

¡ Deferred outflow for the net difference in projected and actual earnings on investments of the

pension plans fiduciary net position. This amount is amortized over a 5 year period.

. Deferred outflow for the net change due to differences in the changes in proportions of the

net pension liability which will be amortized over a closed period equal to the average of the

expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through

the Plan.
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred lnflows and Net Position, continued

11. Compensated Absences

The District's employees have a vested interest in accrued vacation time. All vacation hours will

eventually be either úsed or paid-off by the District. Employees earn vacation time on a semi-monthly

basis. Employees normally earn and use their current vacation time with a small portion being unused

each yeai. Rê ttris occurs, the District incurs a future obligation to pay for these unused hours and

accruås a liability for such accumulated and unpaid vacation time'

Full{ime District employees earn sick leave at a rate of one day per month. District employees may-

elect to be paid for accumulated and unused sick leave in excess of 90 days, at a rate of one.half of

the value of such accumulated amount. The District has accrued a liability for such excess amounts.

Employees hired after 1Ot1I2OOO may apply their unused sick leave credit to en.hance CaIPERS

retiiement benefits but are not eligible to receive any pay for accrued unused sick leave from the

District.

12. Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability and deferred outflows/inflows 9f re.sources related

to Opf g, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District's OPEB plan

(Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Plans'fiduciary net position have been determined on the

same basis as they are reported by the Plan. For this purpose, the Plan recognizes benefit payments

when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. '

GASB 75 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within

cedain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:

. Valuation Date: July 1,2017

. Measurement Date: June 30,2018

. Measurement Period: July 1 ,20171o June 30, 2018

13. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related

to pensions, and pensioñ expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District's

Caiifornia Public Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS) plans (Plans) and additions

to/deductions from the Plansi,fiduôiàry net position have been determined on the same basis as they

are repoded by CaIPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee

contributions) áre recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

lnvestments are reported at fair value.

GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within

certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:

. Vâluation Date: June 30, 2016

. Measurement Date: June 30, 2017

. Measurement Period: July '1 ,2016 to June 30,2017

13. Deferred lnflows of Resources

The .statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of

resources. This financial statement element, deferred inftows of resources, represents an acquisition

of resources applicable to future periods and therefore will nof be recognized as an inflow of

resources (revenue) until that time. The District has the following items that qualify for repofting in this

category:

Post-Emptoyment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

. Deferred inflow for the net differences between the actual and expected experience which will

be amortized over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service

lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the Plan,
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred lnflows and Net Position, continued

13. Deferred lnflows of Resources, continued

Pensions
. Deferred inflow for the net differences between the actual and expected experience which will

be amortized over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service

lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the Plan.

. Deferred inflow for the net difference in actual and proportionate share of employer
contribution and net changes in proportion which will be amortized over a closed period equal

to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with

pensions through the Plan.

14. Water and Sewer Sales

Water sales are billed on a bi-monthly cyclical basis. Estimated unbilled water and sewer sales and

service charges through June 30'n have been accrued as of year-end.

15. Capital Gontributions

Capital contributions represent cash and capital asset additions contributed to the District by property

o*ners, granting agencies or real estate developers desiring services that require capital

expenditures or capacity commitment.

16. Capital and Operating Grants

When a grant agreement is approved and eligible expenditures are incurred, the amount is recorded

as a cafital or operating grant receivable on the statement of net position and as capital grant

contribution or operating gránt revenue, as appropriate,'on the statement of revenues, expenses and

changes in net position.

17. Budgetary Policies

The District adopts an annual non-approprìated budget for planning, control, and evaluation

purposes. Budgetary control and evaluation are affected by comparison of actual revenue and

expense with pianned revenue and expense for the period. Encumbrance accounting is not used to

account for commitments related to unperformed contracts for construction and services.

18. Net Position

The financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is categorized as follows:

. Net lnvestment in Capital Assets - This component of net position consists of capital

assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by any outstanding debt against the

acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

¡ Restricted Net Position - This component of net position consists of constraints placed on

. net position use imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
' governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling

legislation.

' . Unrestricted Net Position - This component of net position consists of net position that

does not meet the definition of restricted or net investment in capitalassefs.

19. Reclassification

The District has reclassified certain prior year information to conform to current year presentations.
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(2) Cash and lnvestments

Cash and investments as of June 30 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

2018

$ 3,484,730Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted - cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and cash equivalents

Restricted - investments

Restricted - investments non-current

Total restricted investments

Total cash and investments

Cash and investments as of June 30 consist of the following

Cash on hand

Deposits with financial institutions

Deposits with County of Marin Treasury

lnvestments

Total cash and investments

$

$

786

4,935,516

6,469,611
701 301

$ 10,170,912

$ 15,106,428

,0P,,

$'350
148,673
957,605

13 999 800

,,$ J-ÞJ-Q9I?8-

3

Investments Authorized by the Catifornia Government Code and the District's lnvestment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the District in accordance with the

California Government Code (or the District's investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also

identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the District's investment policy, where

more restrictive) that address interest rate fisk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk

Authorized
lnvestment Type

Maximum
Maturitv

Maximum
Percentage

Of Portfolio *

Maximum
lnvestment

in One lssuer

State and Local AgencY Bondg 5 years 100% None

U.S. Treasury Obligations , 5 years** 100% None

U.S. Agency Securities 5 years** loo% None

180 daYs 40% 30%Bankeis Acceptances
Commercial Paper 270 days 40% 10o/o

Non-negotiable Certificates of Deposit 1 year 30% None

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None

Medium-Term Notes 5 Years 30% None

Repurchase agreements 30 days 100% None

Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10o/o

Cálifornia Local Agency lnvestment Fund (LAIF) N/A 100% None

California Asset Management Program (CAMP) N/A 1oo% None

;.Excluding amounts held by bond trustee that are not subject to California Government Code.
** Except when authorized by the District's legislative body in accordance with Government Code Section 53601

27



North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

(21 Gash and lnvestments, continued

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposlfs is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial

institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral

securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investmenfs is the

risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government

will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of

another party. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only.to. qirecf .:

investments in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government's indirect

investment in securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF)

The California Government Code and the District's investment policy do not contain legal or policy

requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than

the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution

secure depãsits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securllles in an undivided

collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental

unit), and, the District's investment policy that requires no more than two{hirds of the District's deposits in

a depository shall be collateralized by mortgage-backed securities, with the remainder to be secured by

non-mortgage-backed securities. The market value of the pledged securities i1 th9 collateral pool must

equal at leãst 1 10% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows

financial institutions to secure District deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value

of 150% of the secured public deposits. Of the District's bank balances, up to $250,000 is federally

insured and the remaining balance is collateralized in accordance with the Code; however, the

collateralized securities are not held in the District's name.

lnvestment in State Investment Pool

The District is a voluntary participant in the LocalAgency lnvestment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the

California Government iode under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value

of the District's investment in this pool is reported jn the accompanying financial statements at amounts

based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAll for the entire LAIF portfolio (in

relation io the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the

accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.

The District's deposit and withdrawal restrictions and limitations are as follows:

. Same day transaction processing occurs for orders received before 10:00 a.m.

¡ Next day transactions processing occurs for orders received after 10:00 a.m.

. Maximum limit of 15 tiansactions (combination of deposits and withdrawals) per month.

o Minimum transaction amount requirement of $5,000, in increments of a $1,000 dollars.

¡ withdrawals of $10,000,000 or more require 24 hours advance notice.

. LAIF Online will adlrere to the same timelines as used for phone transactions.

Interest Raúe.Risk

lnterest ràte risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an

investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment,lhe greater the sensitivity of its fair value

to changes in markei interest rates. One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest

rate risÈis by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash

flows from maturities so ihat a portion of the portfolio matures or comes close to maturity evenly over time

as necessary to provide requirements for cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. lnformation about

the sensitiviiy of the fair values of the District's investments to market interest rate fluctuations is provided

by the following table that shows the distribution of the District's investments by maturity date:
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(21 Gash and lnvestments, continued

lnterest Rafe Risk, continued

ln\,esturìents at June 30, 2018, consisted of the following:
Remaining Maturity (in

Monthsì

Amount
12 months

or less
13 to 24
monthslnvestment Tvþe

Local Agency lnræstment Fund $

Ce rtif i cates-of-deposit
U.S. Treasury note

U.S. Agency securities

Total $

3,828,888
4,703,000
2,478,199
2,989,713

3,828,888
1,489,000
1,990,898

3,214,000
487,301

, 989,713

13,999,800 ___lg,2sgAse_ 3,701 ,301

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of

the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical

rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California

Govãrnment Code, the District's investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-

end for each investment tYPe.

Credit ratings at June 30, 2018, consisted of the following:

lnvestment Tvpe Amount

Minimum
Legal
Ratino

Exempt
From

Disclosure

3,821,716
4,703,000

Ratings
AlA+ to ArA-

2,485,371
2,989,713

Local Agency lnvestr¡ent Fund

Certificates-of-deposit
U.S. Treasury note

U.S. Agency securities

Total $ 13.999,800

$ 3,821,716
4,703,000
2,485,371
2,989,713

N1A

N/A
AA+
AA+

8,524,716 Ã

Fai r Val ue M eas urements

lnvestments measured at fair value on a recurring and non-recurring basis, are as follows

lnvestments at June 30, 2018: Fair Value rements Usinq

lnvestment Tvpe Total Level 1)

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
ldentical Assets

Significant
Other

Observable
lnputs

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

lnputs
(Level 3)

Certif i cates-of-deposit
U.S. Treasury nóte

U.S. Agency securities

Total inr,estments measured at fair value

.lnvestments measured at amortized cost:

Local Agency lnvestment Fund (LAIF)

Total

$ 4,703,000
2,485,371
2 989 713

10, 178,084

3,821 .716

$ 13,999,800

4,703,000
2,485,371

989.71 3a

475,084 4,703,0005,
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(3) Notes Receivable

Changes in notes receivable amounts for 2018 uere as follot¡¡s:

Balance
7 Additions

Principal
Payments

Balance
2018

Current Long-term
Portion

Notes receivable:
Black Point Golf Links

Marin Country Club

Total notes receivable

$ 1,51B,BBB

1,695,758 36.918)

(216,271) 1,302,617
1,658,840

221,514
74.906

1,081,103
1,583,934

$ 1 ,51B,BBB 1,695,758 (253, 1 B9) 2,961,457 _____296,420-

lnterest Total

2,665,037

Black Point Golf Links

The District has entered into a contractual agreement with Black Point Golf Links, which now goes by

Stone Tree Golf Club, whereby the golf club agreed to reimburse the District for construction costs

incurred for a new recycled water pipeline, in-lieu of connection fees. The reimbursement is collected in

bi-monthly installments through feUrüary Zß2q,including interest at a rate of 2.40o/o. '

As of June 30, the amount receivable under the contract is as follows:

Fiscal Year

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

Total

Less: current portion:

Total Long-term $

Total

Less: current portion:

Total Long-term $

Principal

$ 221,514
226,884
232,383
238,017
243,787
140,Q?2

250,571
250,572
250,572
250,572
250,572
141,281

1,394,140

29,057
23,688
1 8,1 89
12,555
6,785

249

1,302.617 91,523

(22 1.514)

1;08 1,103

Marin Country Club 
,

On June 10,2015, the District entered into a contractual agreement with the Marin Country Club, which

whereby the Country Club agreed 1o reimburse the District for construction costs incurred for a new

recycled water faciliiy, in-lieu of connection fees. Marin Country Club is the primary customer of the

Ceñtral Service Area pipeline of which this receivable contributes significantly to related District debt.

(See note 11 forfurther information). The reimbursement is collected in bi-monthly installments through

November 2047 , including intereçt at a rate rangtng from 1.00% to 2-80%.

As of June 30, the amount receivable under the contract is as follows:

lnterest TotalFiscal Year
-7--"----

2020
2021
2022
2023

2024-2028
2029-2033
2034-2038
2039-2043
2044-2047

74,906
76,360
77,847
79,372
80,932

404,557
205,960
216,511
227,601
214,793

23,402
21,948
20,459
18,935
17,375
62,251
38,309
27,758
16,667
5.048

98,308
98,308
98,306
98,307
98,307

4ô6,808
244,269
244,269
244,268
219,841

'1,658,839

(74,e06)

933

1,

30

252,152 910,991
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(4) Notes Receivable - Employee Housing Assistance Loans

The District's Employer Assisted Housing Program (Program) allows up to $300,000 to be loaned to an
employee for a period of up to 15 years for the purchase of a home within the District's service area. This
will allow the employee to respond rapidly to customer calls or emergencies affecting the operation of the
District. Repayment is due upon sale of the employee's residence, termination of employment, or other
events as described in the Program documents. lnterest earned on the loan is contingent upon and
directly proportional to the appreciation in value occurring on the purchased property. The balance of the
outstanding loans may be offset by an allowance representing the impairment in value due to the decline
in market value of the homes financed since the loan inception date.

The following is a listing of employee housing assistance loans and their corresponding origination dates
as follows:

The balance at June 30 consists of the following:

2018

August 2004
Sept. 2004
Nov. 2007
June 2010
March 2015
June 2018

250,000
39,200

150,000
245,000
250,000
275,OOO

$

Total

Less: current portion:

Total Long{erm $

(495,000)

714,200

(5) Internal Balances

Due To/From Other Funds and Transfers

lnternal balances consist of the following as of June 30, 2018, as follows:

Receivable Payable

Purpose Fund Fund Amount

Advance ' Norato Recycled Nowto Water $

rransfers betweenfundt 

ï"j"ï:" 
30, 2018,rruas ærollows

Purpose From To Amount

Capital Contribution Nowto Water Nowto Recycled $ 5,481,925

ln 2018, the Novato Water system transferred $5,481,925, in net position to the Novato Recycled system
for the local share of the North/South Recycled Water Expansion, SRF loan payments and grant
administrátion costs. (See the Supplementary Schedules on pages 55 through 56 forfurther information)

1,209,200

543,218
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(6) CapitalAssets

C o n str u cti o n -l n -P ro g ress

The District has been involved in various construction projects throughout the year' The balances of the

various construction projects that comprise the construction-in-progress balances at June 30 are as

follows:

The balance of construction-in-progress at June 30 consists of the following projects:

2018

Developer construction - Novato Water

Other construction - Novato Water

Other construction - Novato Recycled

Other construction - West Marin Water

Other construction - Oceana Marin Sewer

Total construction-in-progress per year

Additions/
Transfers

535,686
7,753,464

15,623,282
443,808
135.267

5 24,491,507

Transfers

$

Changes in capital assets for the year were as follows:
Balance

2017

Deletions/ Balance
20'18

Non-depreciable assets:
Land and land rights
Constructi on-i n- Progress

Total non-depreciable assets

Depreciable assets:
Distribution system
Treatment Plant
Storage facilities
Transmission sYStem

Source facilities
Sewer facilities
Structures and imProvements

Other plant and equiPment

Total depreciable assets

Accumulated depreciation:

Distribution sYstem

Treatment Plant

Storage facilities

Transmission sYstem

Source facilities

Sewer facilities

Structures and imProvements

Other plant and equiPment

Total accumulated dePreciation

Total depreciable assets, net

Total capital assets, net

$ 1,473,091
5U 335

16,027,426

11,587,,138

1 1,587,138

(1,649.966)
1,473,091

24,491,507

(1,649.966) 25,964.598

'166,801,583 1, 509.'157 (177,830) 168,132,910

83,757,326
21,184,413
20,903,086
28,896,399

5,596,066
1,193,077
'1,902,893

3, 368.323

(28,995,554)

(8,281,847)

(6,57e,383)

(3,728,626)

(2,06e,261)

(604,14e)

(1,262,416)

(2,727,378)

(54,248,614)

112, 552,969

$ 128,580,395

820,384

96,508
509,228

9,953

73,O84 (17Z,B9QI

84,577,710
21,184,413
20,999,594
29,405,627
5,596,066
1,203,030
1,902,893
3,263,571

(1,707,635)

(695,172)

(425,9e8)

(244,366)

(114,856)

(26,774)

(41,440)

177.828\ 174.983

(s0,703,1 89)

(8,e77,019)

(7,005,381)

(3,e72,992)

(2,184,117)

(630,e23)

(1,303,856)

af30,229-

(3,434,069) (57,507,700)

110,625,210

174.S83

(1,924,912)

9,662,226

(2.847\
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(71 Accrued Claims Payable

The District self-insures its workers' compensation obligation and established a risk financing internal

service fund where assets are set aside for claim settlements associated with the risk of loss up to certain

limits for workers' compensation claims.

Settled claims have not exceeded the accrued coverage amounts in any of the last three fiscal years.

Liabilities are recorded when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of the loss can

be reasonably estimated, The accrued claims payable balance includes an amount for claims that have

been incurred but not paid.

The balance at June 30 consists of the following:
2018

Accrued claims payable, beginning of year $

Current year claims recognized

Current year claims paid

Prior year claims incurred
Prior year claims paid

Accrued claims payable, end of year $

192,122

26,420
(14,509)

28,340
(134,7s2)

97,581

(8) GompensatedAbsences
Compensated absences comprise unpaid vacation and sick leave which is accrued as earned

Changes to compensated absences for 2018 were as follot¡ls

Balance
2017 Earned Taken

Balance
2018

Current
Portion

Long-term
Portion

$ 649,931 _____!9q,699_ (1,099,082) 487 457 121,864 365,593

(9) Long-term Debt

Changes in long-term debt an'tounts for 201 I were as follows:

Long{eÍm debt:

Bonds payable:

1980 Re\,enue bonds - PRE-'I

1981 Re\¡enue bonds - PR-6

Total bonds payable

Loans payable:
1977 U.S. EDA loan - No\êto Water
1977 U.S. EDA loan -West [/arìn Water

2005 DWR loan - No\Elo Water
2OO5 SWRCB loan - Ngr,ato Recycled
2011-2012 SWRCB loans - Novato Recycled N & S

2011 B of M loan - No\êto Water
2011 B of M lóan -West lvlarin Water
2016 SWRCB Loan - Novato Recycled Central

2018 J P Morgan Chase Loan - No\äto Water

Total loans payable

Principal Balânce
Add¡t¡ons Pavments 2018

Current Long-term
Port¡on Port¡on

Balance
' . ?017

$ 38,000
56,000

94,000

17,679
1,963

10,840,721
2,404,935
8,053,559
5,455,91 5

800,868
4,347,299

31,922,939

$ 32,016,939

(1 2,000)
(1 0,000)

(22,O00\

26,000
46,000

72,000

1 3,000

11 000

24,000

1 3,000

35,000

48,000

2,783,204
600,000

7,383,204

____2,383,201-

(17,67e)
(1,e63)

(7eo,o74)
(21 5,648)
(422,e54)
(300,284)

(44,o78)

(1,792,680)

___r,8!-6iE

'10,050,647

2,189,287
7,630,605
5, 1 55,631

756,790
7,130,503
4,600,000

37,51 3,463

___92,59119!_

402,132
220,824
433,01 I
310,707
45,608

206,427
240,000

1 ,858,71 ô

1,882,716

9,648,51 5

1,968,463
7,197,587
4,844,924

711,182
6,924,O76

4,360,000

35,654,747

_]þfozJ47_Total long-term debt
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(9) Long-term Debt, continued

Bonds Payable

1980 Revenue Bonds - /ssue PRE l
On August 22, igBO, the District issued revenue bonds totaling $240,000 for the system rehabilitation of

the Paradise Ranch Estates (PRE)water distribution system

The bonds are scheduled to mature in 2020. Principal is payable annually on Aprrl 1't and interest is

pàyable semi-annually on October 1"t and April '1't at a rate of 5.000%. Future annual debt service

iequirements on the bonds are as follows:

Fiscal Year lnterest Total

2019
2020

Total

Less current portion

Total non-current

Fiscal Year

26.000 1,950

'13.000)

13 000

$

$

13,000
13.000

1,300
650

14,300

13,650

27 950

1981 Revenue Bonds - Issue PR'6

On August 28, 1981, the District issued revenue bonds totaling $217,800 to finance the further work

needed to rehabilitate the Point Reyes and lnverness Park water systems including the addition of a

300,000 gallon tank in Point Reyes Siation and a 100,000gallon tank in lnverness Park.

The bonds are scheduled to mature in 2022. Principal is payable annually on July 1't and interest is

payable semi-annually on July l't and January 1't at a rate of 5.000%. Future annual debt service

requirements on the bonds are as follows:

2019
2020
2021
2022

Total ,

Less current portion

Total non-current

Principaf

11,000

,: 11,000
12,000

000

46,000

(1 1,000)

35 000

lnterest Total

2,O25
1,475

900
300

13,025
12,475
12,900
12 300

4.700 50,700

$

Loans Payable
1977 U.S. EDA Loan - Novato Water segment

ln August 1977, the District secured a $35'1 ,770 loan with the U.S. Economic Development Administration

tEOÀito asslst ¡n the funding emergency Novato Water system projects in response to a severe drought'

The loan was scheduled to mature in 2018. Principal and interest are payable annually on July 1't at a

rate of 5.000%. At June 30, 2018, the loan was paid in full'

1977 U.S. EDA Loan - West Marin Water segment

ln August 1977,the District secured a $46,000 loan with the U.S. Economic Development Administration

(EDAi to assist in the funding emergency West Marin system projects, including temporary diversions

iror B"ut Valley Creek and Lágunitas Creek, in response to a severe drought'

The loan was scheduled to mature in 2018. Principal and interest are payable annually on July'1't at a

rate of 5.000%. At June 30, 2018, the loan was paid in full'
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(9) Long-Term Debt, continued

Loans Payable, continued

2005 DWR Loan - Novato Water segment

ln 2005, the District entered into an agreement with the California Department of Water Resources (DWR)

for a loan in an amount not-to-exceed $16,528,850 with an interest rate of 2.39% per annum for the

reconstruction of the Stafford Water Treatment Plant. Principal and interest payments on the loan are due

each year on January 1"tand July 1't.

The loan is scheduled to mature in fiscal year 2030. The loan will be repaid semi-annually over a 2O-year

period based on the repayment schedule below:

Fiscal Year Princioal lnterest Total

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

2024-2028
2029-2030

Total

Less current portion

Total non-current $

$ 402,132
818,737
838,422
858,580
879,223

4,723,551

244,959
225,738
206,052
185,895
165,251
498,821

647,O91
1,044,475
1;044,474
1,0M,475
1;O44,474
5,222,372

36,712:

10,050,647 _léqe4æ_ 11,614.O75

(402,132)

530 002 566,7141,

5

2005 SWRCB Loan - Novato Recycled Water segment

ln 2005, the District entered into an agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board

(SWRCB) for a loan in an amount of $4,302,560 with an interest rate of 2.4o/o per annum for the

construction of the Deer lsland Recycled Water Facility.

As noted in note 3, the District entered into a contractual agreement with Black Point Golf Links whereby

the golf course agreed to reimburse the District for construction costs incurred for the new recycled water

facility, in-lieu of lonnection fees. Black'Point Golf Links, as the major customer of the recycled water

facility, contributes significantly to the repayment of this loan through the repayment of the note receivable

to the District.

The loan is scheduled to mature in2027. Principal and interest are payable annually on June 19th at a
rate of 2.4o/o. Fulure annual debt service requirements on the loan are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal lnterest Total

$ 273,367
273,367
273,367
273,367
273,367

62 586 093 468

Total 2.189,287 271,016 2,460,303

Less current portion (220.824)'

Total non-current $ 1,968,463

. 2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

2023-2027

220,824
226,124
231,551
237,108
242,798
030,882

52,543
47,243
41,816
36,259
30,569

1,
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(9) Long-Term Debt, continued

Loans Payable, continued

201 1-201 2 SI4/RCB Loans - Novato Recycled Water segment - Notth and South Service Areas

ln fiscal year 2011, the District entered into an agreement with the California State Water Resources

Control Bbard (SWRCB) for a loan in an amount not-to-exceed $4,364,335 with an interest rate of 2.60%
per annum for the construction of the Recycled Water Expansion project - North Service Area. As of June

bO, ZOtg, eligible costs for reimbursement were $4,364,335 plus $11,270 in capitalized interest charges

fora total loan of $4,375,605. Principal and interest payments of $281 ,892are due and payable annually:

on the loan until fiscal year 2033.

ln fiscal year 2012, the District entered into an agreement with the California State Water Resources

Control Bbard (SWRCB) for a loan in an amount no1-to-exceed $5,480,740 with an interest rate of 2.20%-

per annum for the construction of the Recycled Water Expansion project - South Service Area. As of

June 30, 2014, eligible costs for reimbursement were $5,357,887 plus $4,065 in capitalized interest

charges for a total lóan of $5,361,952. Principal and interest payments of $332,407 are due and payable

annually on the loan until fiscal year 2034. Future annual debt service payments on the loan are as

follows:
Fiscal Year Principal lnterest Total

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

2024-2028
2029-2033

2034

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

2024-2028
2029-2032

Total

Less current portion

Total non-current

356,315
368,1 80
381,461
394,701
408,400

2,264,139
1,739,225

552,800
552,800
552,800
552,800
552,800

2,7æ,000
1,842,668

$ 433,018
443,323
453,876
464,681
475,745

2,554,204
2,707,684

98 074

181,281
170,976
160,423
149,61,8

138,554
517,291
198,047

2,157

614,299
614,299
614,299
614,299
614,299

3,071,495
2,905,731

100.231

Total 7,630,605

(433,018)

1,51 8.347 9,148,952

Less current port¡on

Totalnon-current $__!_92ÉqZ_

2011 Bank of Marin Loan - Novato Water and West Marin Water segmenÚs

ln October 2013, the District entered into a loan agreement with the Bank of Marin for a 2O-year $8.0

million construction loan with an interest rate of 3.42o/o per annum for the North Marin Aqueduct Energy

Efficiency Project and West Marin water improvements. The loan is scheduled to mature in September of

fiscal yeár 20i2. A principal and interest payment of $46,067 is payable monthly on the 27"' day of each

month. Future annual debt service requirements on the loan are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal lnterest Total

$ 196,485
184,620
171,339
158,099
144,400
499,861
103.443

5,912,421

(356,315)

$ _1,5Þ6,_1qq_
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(9) Long-Term Debt, continued

Loans Payable, continued

2016 SWRCB Loan - Novato Recycled Water segment- Central Service Area

ln fiscal year 20'16, the District entered into an agreement with the California State Water Resources

Control Bbard (SWRCB) for financing the construction of the Recycled Water Expansion project - Central

Service Area for an amount not-to-exceed $10,450,708. Of this amount, $7,130,503 is a 30-year loan at

1% interest and $3,320,205 is grant funded. As of June 30, 2018, eligible costs for reimbursement were

$2,2783,204

As noted in note 3, the District entered into a contractual agreement with the Marin Country Club whereby

the Country Club agreed to reimburse the District for construction costs incurred for a new_recycled water
pipeline, in-l¡eu of óonnection fees. Marin Country Club is the primary customer of the Central .Service

Âiea pipeline of which this receivable contributes significantly to the District's repayment of this loan.

Principal and interest payments on the loan are due each year on December 31't maturing in fiscal year

2048. Future annual debt service requirements on the loan are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal lnterest Total

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

2024-2028
2029-2033
2034-2038
2039-2043
2044-2048

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

2024-2028
2029-2033

Total

Less current portion

Total non-current

7,'130,503

',,,' (206'427\

$ 6,924,076

1, 139.705

$ 206,427
207,292
209,056
211,147
213,258

1,098,709
1,154,754
1,213,658
1,275,568
1,340,634

53,287
68,931 I

67;168
65,077
62,966

282.,411
226,365
167,461
'105,553

40,486

259,714
276,223
276,224
276,224
276,224

1,381,120
1,381,119
1,381 ,1'19
1,381,121
1 ,381 ,'120

Total

Less current Portion

Total non-current

2018 JP Morgan Chase Loan

8,270,208

ln fiscal year 2018, the District entered into an agreement with JP Morgan Chase Bank for a loan in an

amount 
-ot 

$¿,OOO,O00 with an interest rate of 2.690/0 per annum for financing the acquisition and

construction of the automated meter information system throughout the District's Novato service area.

Principal and interest päVr"ntr on the loan are due semi-annually on September 1't and March'1't
maturing in fiscal year 2033. Future annual debt service requirements on the loan are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal lnterest Total

$ 240,000
260,000
270,000
275,000
280,000

1,530,000
1 000

(240,000)

$ 000

356,522
377,284
380,290
378,O27
375,630

1,890,191
1,888,242

116,522
117,284
110,290
103,O27
95,630

360,1 91

143,242

4,600,000

360
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(10) Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan

General tnformation about the OPEB Plan

Plan Description

The District offers other post-employment medical benefits to retired employees who satisfy the eligibility

rules. Spouses and surviving spouses are also eligible to receive benefits.

Benefits Provided

For retirees between the ages of 55 to 65 with a minimum of 12 years of service, w_ho retired prior to

January i, 2013, the District's contribution toward the chosen medical plan will be 90% 9f. 
tne Kajs91

Basic Medical Plan premium amount. For retirees between the ages of 55 to 65 with a minimum of 
.12

yearsof service,whoretireonorafterJanuary 1,2Ol3,theDistrict'scontributiontowardthechosenplan
w¡tt Oe gS% of the Kaiser Basic Medical Plan premium amount. The District will make a :monthly

contribution toward the cost of health insurance coverage for all other retirees based on the contract

effective at the time of their retirement.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At June 30, 2018, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: :

2018

lnactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments

lnactive employees eniitled to but not receiving benefit payments :

Active employees

Total Plan membershiP

34
4

53

91

Contributions

The plan and its contribution requirements for eligible retirediemployees of the District are established

and may be amended by the tjoard of Directors. The District pays a portion of the cost of health

insuranie for retirees un-der any group plan offered by CaIPERS, subject to certain restrictions as

determined by the District. The ánñual contribution is based on the actuarially determined contribution.

For the fiscai year ended June 30, 2018, the District's contributions were $375,787 which included

$304,254 of páy-as-you-go contributions and $7'1,533 in an implicit subsidy. At June 30,2018' the

contributions were reclassified from expense to reduce the total OPEB liability'

Total OPEB Liability

The District's total OpEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2018 and the total OPEB liability used to

calculate the total OpEB liability:was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,2017. Standard

actuarial update procedures weie used to project/discount from valuation to measurement dates.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods

included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

lnflation

Salary inôreases

Discount rate

Healthcare cost trend rates

3.00 percent

3.00 percent, average, including inflation

3.62 percent

6.00 percent for 2017,5.00 percent for 2018,5.00 percent

for 2019, and 5.00 percent for 2020 and later years

10 percent of projected health insurance premiums

for retirees between ages 55 to 65 with a minimum 12 years of service

who retired prior to January 1,2013.
15 percent of projected health insurance premiums

for retirees between ages 55 to 65 with a minimum 12 years of service

r¡¡lro retired after January 1,2013.

Ret¡rees' share of benefit-related costs

3B
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

(f 0) Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan, continued

Total OPEB Liability, continued

Actu arial Assumptions, continued

Notes:

The discount rate was based on the Municipal Bond 20-Year High Grade Rate lndex.

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table for Males or
Females, as appropriate, without projection. Post-retirement morlality rates were based on the RP-2014
Health Annuitant Mortality Table for Males or Females, as appropriate, without projection.

Actuarial assumptions used in the July 1,2017 valuation were based on a review of plan experience
during the period July l, 20'15 to June 30, 2017.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 4.00 percent. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that District contributions will be made at rates equal to the
actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB Plan's fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all projected OPEB paymenls for current active and

inactive employees and beneficiaries. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan

investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

changes in the Totat 
'PEB 

Liabititv 
: , , ' tiilrî.ff"

Balance at June 30,2017 $ 4,418,205

Changes for the year:
Service cost
lnterest
Changes in benefit terms
D ifference between'e>çected and actual experi ence
Changes in assumptions or other inputs

Benefit payments '

Net changes

Balance at June 30, 2018

145,989
132,454

(1e7,2e6)
(375,787)

(294,640)|

$ 4,123,565

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's total OPEB

liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.62 percent)

or 1-percentage-point higher (4.62 percent) than the current discount rate:

Discount
Rate - 1%
(2.62%l

Current
Discount

Rate
Discount

Rate + 1%

(4.62%l(3. 62%l

District's Total OPEB liability $ 4,542,175 -!,123,565

39
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

(10) Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan, continued

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liabitity to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend RaÚes

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's total oPEB

liability woutã ue if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower

(5.00þercent decreasing to 4.00 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.00 percent decreasing to 6'00

percent) than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Healthcare
Cost Trend

Rates
(6.00%

decreasing to
5.00%)

Districts Total OPEB liabilitY $ 3, 934,508 4, 123,565 345 977

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized OPEB expense of $239'758'

OpEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of Resources Related to

OPEB

At June 30,2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of lnflows of

Desc Resources Resou rces

Differences between actual and epected
e>çerience

Total

$

$

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB

will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows

Actuarially Determined Deferred Outflows and (lnflotitts) -

OPEB Plan

17o Decrease
(5.00%

decreasing to

17o lncrease
(7.o0%

decreasing to
6.oo%)4.OO%ì

158,611)

158.6'11)

FiscalYear
Endinq June 30:

Net, Differences
between Expected

and Actual
Exþerience

Net, Deferred
Outflorrvs/(lnflows)

of Resou rces

2019
2020
2021

2022
2023

Thereafter

(38,685) $
(38,685)
(38,685)
(38,685)

(3,871)

(38,685)
(38,685)
(38,685)
(38,685)

(3,871)

$

Total $ (158.61 1) $

Schedute of Changes in the District's Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

See page 52 for the Required Supplementary Schedule'

(158,
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(f f ) Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the D-istrict's separate

Mlsiellaneous Employee Pension Plans, cost-s'haring multiple employer 9"1'lg1 benefit pension plans

administered by tñe California Public Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERSJ._Benefit provisions

under the plan is established by State statuie and Local Government resolution. CaIPERS issues publicly

available reports that include a full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions,

assumptions and membership information thaican be found on the CaIPERS website or may be obtained

from their executive office: 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA' 95814'

Benefits Provided

CalpERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death

benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years

of credited iervice, equal io one year of iull time employment. Members with five years of ,to[al service are

eligible to retire at age S0 with stâtutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligiblé for non'duty disability

be-nefits after 10 yeãrs of service. The death benefit is one of the following: The Basic Death Benefit, or

the Optional Settiement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as

specified by the Public Employees' Retirement Law.

On September 12, 2012, lhe California Governor signed the California Public Employees' Pension

Reform Act of 2013 (pEPRA) into law. pEpRA took effect January 1,2013. The new legislation closed

the Distrrct,s calpERS 2.5% at 55 Risk Pool Retirement Plan to new employee entrants effective

December 31,2012. For employees hired prior to January 1,2013, who are current members of

CalpERS or a reciprocal agency as of December 31 , 2012 and have not been separated from service

from such agency ior morJthan six months, the retirement benefit is 2.5% @ 55 years of age; highest

single year óf cómpensation. All other employees hired òn or after January 1, 2013, the retirement

benefit is 2.0% @ 62 years of age; 3 year final compensation

The Plans'provision and benefits in effect at June 30, 2018 are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous Plan
Tier 1 Tier 2
Prior to

January '1,

2013

On or after
January 1,

2013Hire date

Benefit formula
Benefit vesti ng schedule
Benefit payments

Retirement age
Monthly benefits, as ao/o of eligible compensation

Required employee contribution rates

Required employer contribution rates

2.5% @ 55 2.0% @ 62

5 years of service 5 years of service

monthly for life monthlY for life
50-55 52-67

2.0% to 2.5% 1.0% to 2.5%

7.946% 6'250o/o

10.1100/0 6.533%
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(1f ) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that the employer

contribution rates, for all public employers, be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be

effective on July I following notice of ihe change in rate. Funding contributions for the Plan is determined

annually on an actuarial 
-basis as of June 30 by CaIPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the

estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with

an additional amount to finãnce any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the'

difference between the actuarially dätermined rate and the contribution rate of employees.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 the contributions for the Plan were as follows:

Miscellaneous
Plan
20'18

Contributions-employer $ 1,017,325

Net Pension LiabilitY .

As of June 30, 2018, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate share of the net

pension liability of the Plan as follows:

Propgrtionate
Share of

I Net Pension

. LiabilitY
2018

Miscellaneous Plan ,, $ ___12JJlf4_

The District's net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension

liability for the poót, the net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total

pensión liability for the plan used to calôuiate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial

valuation as oi June 30, 20'16, rolled forward to June 30,2017, using standard update procedures. The

Districts' proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projectìon of the Districts' long-term share

of contributions to the pension p[an relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers,

actuarially determined.

The District's change in the proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of the

measurement date June 30,2017, was as follows:

Proportion - June 30, 2016

Proportion - June 30,2017

Change - lncrease (Decrease)

Miscellan eous

0.12759o/o

0.12881%

O.00122o/o

Deferred Pension Outflows (lnflows) of Resources

As of June 30, 2018, the District recognized pension expense of $2'217 ,067
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(1f ) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

Deferred Pension Outftows (tnflows) of Resources , continued

At June 30,20'18, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to pensions from the following sources:

Descriotion

Deferred
lnflows of

Resources

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Pension contributions subsequent
to the measurement date at June 30, 2017

Net, differences between actual and epected
eperience

Net, changes in assumptions

Net differences between projected and

actual earnings on plan investments

Net, differences between actual contribution

and proportionate share of contribution

Net, change due to differences in proportion

of net pension liability

Total

$ 1 ,017,325

1,810,636

443,293

267

(210,5s1)

(517,0e6)

071

$' 3,538,325 727,627\

As of June 30 2018, employer pension contributions of $1,017,325, reporled as deferred outflows of
resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date were and will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30' 20'19.

At June 30,2018, the District recognized other amounts reported by the Plan actuarial as deferred

outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the pension liability. Pension related

amounts will be recognized as pension expense (income) as follows.

Acf uariallv Determined Deferred ân.l llnflôwsì - Miscellaneous Plan

Net, Differences
between Expected

and Actual Net, Ghanges
¡n Assumptions

Net, Differences
between Projected

and Actual Earnings
Pension Plan

Net, D¡fferences
between Actual

Contrikrution and
Proport¡onate Share

of contribution

Net, Changes
Due to Differences

Net, Deferred
Outflows/(lnflows) of

Resourcestn
F¡scal Year

E_!CUSJ_UjIe Je:

2019 $

2020
2021
2022
2023

Thereafter

(68,002)
(7s,728)
(62,80 1 )

569,31 7

687,387
553,932

(27,007)
518,497
160,215

(2o8,412)

(278,697)
(161,031)

(77,368)

206,385 $
59,668

1.018

401,996
1,024,793

574,996
(208,412)

(21 0,531 ) 1,810,636 443,293 (51 7,096) 267.O71 I,793,373öTotal
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(11) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

Actuarial AssumPtions

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2017, actuarial valuation report was determined using the

following actuarial assumPtions:

The following is a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods:

Valuation Date

Measurement Date
Actuarial cost method

Actuarial assumPtions:
Discount rate

lnflation
Salary increases
lnvestment Rate of Return

Mortality Rate Table*

Post Retirement Benefit

June 30, 2016

June 30, 2017

Entry Age Normal in accordance with the requirements of

GASB Statement No. 68

7.15%
2.75o/o

Varies by Entry Age and Service
7.5O% Net of Pension Plan lnvestment and Administrative

Epenses, includes inflation

Derived using CaIPERS' Membership Data for all Funds

Contract COLA up lo 2.75% until Purchasing Power

Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies,

2.75o/o lhereallter

* The mortality table used above was developed based on CaIPERS' specific data. The table includes 20

years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this table'

þt"ur" refer to the 2014 Experience S-tudy report. Further details of the Experience Study can be found

on the CaIPERS website.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15o/o for the Plan. To determine

whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for the Plan, the

amortization and smoothing periods recently adopted by CaIPERS were utiltzed. The crossover test was

performed for a mrscellun"órr agent plan and a safety ágent plan selected as being more at risk of failing

the crossover test and resulting ¡-n u di."ount rate that would be different from the long-term expected rate

of return on pension investments,

Based on the testing of the plans, the tests revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the long-

term ãxpected rate ót ¡."trrn'on pãnsion plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit

payments to determine the total pension liability for the Plan'

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block

method in which beslestimate ranges oî expected future real rates of return (expected returns' net of

ó"ì.¡on þlan investment expense añd inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

ln determrning the long-term expected rate of return, CaIPERS took into account both short-term and

long-term maiket return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical

retrirns of all the funds' asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term

iã;;i ìi-y;,.1ãnJ ihe tong-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected

.nominal returns for both short-term and lonþterm, the present value of benefits was calculated for each

i;;;. ih";;p".ião iate of return was set bf catcutating the single equivalent expected return that arrived

at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-

term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated

above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.
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(11) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

Discount Rate, continued

The table below reflects the long{erm expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was

calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset

allocation.

New Strategic
Allocation

Real Return
Years 1-l0n

Real Return
Year 11+**Asset Class

GlobalEquity
Global Fixed lncome
lnflation Sensitive
Priwte Equity
RealEstate
I nfrastructure and Forestland
Liquidity

Total

47.0%
19.0%
6.0%
12.0%
11.0%
3.O%

2.0%

4.90%
0.80%
0.60%
6.60%
2.80%
3.90%
-O.4jo/o

5.38%
2.27% .

139%
6.63%
5.21%
5.36%
-0.90%

100.0%
* An e>pected inlfation of 2.5% used for this period
** An epected inlfation of 3.0% used for this period 

l

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The table below presents the District's proportionate share of the net position liability for the Plan,

calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the District's proportional share of the net pension

liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one

percentage point higher than the current rate:

At June 30, 2018, the discount rate comparison was the following:

Discount
Rate - l%

Current
Discount

Rate
(7.15%l

Discount
Rate + 1%

(6. l5%l (8. t5%)

District's Net Pension Liability $ 19,235,760 12,774,724 __J@flg_

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in separately issued

CaIPERS financial reports. See pages 53-54 for Required Supplementary Schedules.

Payable to the Pension Plan
At June 30,2018, the District reported no payables for the outstanding amount of contribution to the

pension plan
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(121 Net Position

Calculation of net position per fund as of June 30, 2018, vrns as follot¡s:

North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Novato West MarinNovato
Water

Oceana Marin
Sewer Total

Net investrnent in caPital assets:

Capital assets, not being depreciated

Depreciable caP¡tal assets, net

Capital project loan proceeds unused

Current:

Bonds payable

Loans payable

Non-current:

Bonds payable

Loans payable

Total net investment in capital assets

Restricted net Position:

Connection fee reserve

Wohler pipeline reserre

Collector No. 6 reser\e

Cash reserve for debt service

Accrued interest for debt service

Total restricted net Position

Unrestricted net Position:

Non-spendable net Position:

Current:

Materials and suPPlies inventorY

Prepaid expenses and dePosits

Notes recei\€ble - employee housing loans

Non-current:

Notes rece¡vable

Notes receirable - employee housing loans

Total non-sPendable net Posilìon

Total spendable net position (deficit)-

Total unrestricted net Position

Total net Position

* Deflcit is primarily due to recognition of GASBs 68 and 75

(952,839) (860,26e)

$ 9,658,022
87,515,008

35,534

15,623,282
17,204,048
2,904,879

547,219
5,119,254

447,894

136,075
786,900

25,964,598
110,625,210

3,388,307

(24,000)
(1,858,716)

(48,000)

654,747\

(24,000)
(45,608)

t18.853.439) t16.090.126)

(48,000)
(711.182\ (35,

77A02?86 18,781,814 5,285,577 922 975 102,392,652

415,728

1,634,579

103,296

30,534

(325)

133.505

1 03,296

415,728

1,634,579

30,534
(325)

2,050,307 2,183,812

471,314

54,324

495,000

12,150 3,954

3,954

471,314

70,428

495,000

2,665,037

714,200
2,665,037

714,200

1,734,838

(6,976,369) 3,3 18.029

12,150 4,415,979

(2,1 68,998).080

(5, 241.531\ 5, 066 1,012,412 034

$ 74,211,062 24. 880 6,431,494 416,009 106,823 .4451,
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

(f 3) Adjustment to Net Position

Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) - GASB 75 lmplementation

ln fiscalyear 201g, the District implemented GASB pronouncements 74 and 75 to recognize its totalother
postemþloyment benefrts (OPEB) liability. As a result of the implementation, the District recognized the

bpfA liabiúty and recorded a prior period adjustment, a (decrease)to net position, of $4,418,205 at July

1,2Oj7.lné O¡str¡ct recorded a prior period adjustment, an increase to net position, to reclassify from

liabilities to net position, the prior year's OPEB liability, recognized in accordance with GASB 45, of

$1,204,119 at Juiy 1,2017 .

The adjustment to net position is as follows:

Net position at July 1, 2017, as previously stated $

Effect of adjustment to record total other post-employment benefits liability

Effect of adjustment to remove other post-employment benefits liabiliÇ under GASB 45

Total adjustment to net Position

Net position at June 30, 20'18, as restated $

(3,214,086)

103,911,972

(4,418,205)
1, 204,119

l9aÉ92É!q_

(141 Deferred Compensation Savings Plan

For the benefit of its employees, the District parlicipates in a 457 Deferred Compensation Program

(program). The purpose of this Program is to provide deferred compensation for publìc employees that

òlu"ito participate in the Program. Generally, eligible employees may defer receipt of a portion of their

salary until termination, retirément, death or unforeseeable emergency. Until the funds are paid or

otherwise made available to the employee, the employee is not obligated to report the deferred salary for

income tax purposes.

Federal law requires deferred compensation assets to be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the

participants. Accordingly, the District is in compliance with this legislation. Therefore, these assets are not

itre tegat property of tfre O¡str¡ct, and are not subject to claims of the District's general creditors Market

value òf the plan assets held in trust at June 30, 2018, was $6,500'484.

The District has implemented GASB Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial Reporting for lnternal

Revenue Code Secfio n 45T Deferred Compensation Plans. Since the District has little administrative

involvement and does not peform the investing function for this plan, the assets and related liabilities are

not shown on the statement of net position.

(15) Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of

assets; errors and omissions, injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District purchases

commercial insurance policieswith a variety of coverage including a $10.0 million excess general liability

policy with a $1.0 million seif-insured retention limit, a $60,275,000 property and equipment policy, a $1.0

million public official's liability policy, a $1.0 million cyber liability policy, a $572,000 vehicle physical

damage policy, and a $500,000 employee fidelity bond policy.
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

(16) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements

Newly lssued Accounting Pronouncements, But Not Yet Effective

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several pronouncements prior to
June 30, 2018, that has effective dates that may impact future financial presentations.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No' 83

ln November 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 83 - Cerfain Assef ReÚirement Obligations. This

Statement (1) addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations

(AROs), (2) establishes criteria for détermining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and a

òorr"rfoÀOing deferred outflow of resources for AROs, (3) requires that recognition occur when the

liability is botñ incurred and reasonably estimable, (4) requires the measurement of an ARO to be based

on thé best estimate of the current value of outlays expected to be incurred, (5) requires the current value

of a government's AROs to be adjusted for the ãtteci. of general inflation or deflation at least annually,

anO iO) and requires disclosure oi information about the nature of a government's AROs,',the methods

and àssumptions used for the estimates of the liabilities, and the estimated remaining useful life of the

associated tangible capital assets.

The provisions of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018' The

lmpaät of the implementation of this Statement to the District's financial statements has not been

assessed at this time.

Governmentat Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84

ln January 2017, ïhe GASB issued Statement No. 84 - Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this

Statemeni is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and

financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be ¡eported.

This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments.

The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary

activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included

to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary

activities.

This Statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and

other employee benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4)

custodial funds. Custodial funds genefalfy should report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or

equivalent arrangement that meets specific criteria.

The provisions of this Statement are effective for reporting periods begrnning after December 15, 2018.

The impact of the implementation of this Statement to the District's financial statements has not been

assessed at this time.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 86

ln May 2017, lhe:GASg issued Statement No. 86 - Cerlain Debt Extinguishment /ssues. The primary

objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-

su-bstance defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary

assets acquired with only existing resources-resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt-are
placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves

äccounting and financial reporting for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to
financial statements for debt that is defeased in substance.

The provisions of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. Earlier

application is encouraged. The impact of the implementation of this Statement to the District's financial

statements has not been assessed at this time'
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(16) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements

Newly lssued Accounting Pronouncements, But Not Yet Effective, continued

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No' 87

ln June 2017 , the GASB issued Statement No. 87 - Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better

meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting

for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments' financial

statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were

classified as ôperating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on

the payment provisioñs of the contract. lt establishes a single model for lease accounting based.on the

foundaiional principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this

Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset,

and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby

enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments' leasing activitieg.

The provisions of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.

Earlier application is encouraged. The impact of the implementation of this Statement to the District's

financial statements has not been assessed at this time.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 88

ln April20lB, the GASB issued Statement No. 88 - Ceftain Drsc/osures Related to Debt, including Direct

Borrowings and Direct Placements. The objective of this Statement is to improve the information that is
disclosed in notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and

direct placements. lt also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing

information related to debt.

This Statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure in notes to financial statements as a liability that

arises from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that may be used in lieu of cash) in one

or more payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date the contractual obligation is established.

This Statement requires that additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes to

¡nancial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms

specified in debt agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related consequences,

significant terminat'lon events with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective acceleration

clauses.

For notes to financial statements related to debt, this Statement also requires that existing and additional

information be provided for direct borrowings and direct placements of debt separately from other debt.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018.

Earlier application is encouraged. The impact of the implementation of this Statement to the District's

financial statements has not been assessed at this time.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board StatementNo. 89

ln June 2018,.rthe GASB issued Statement No. 89 - Accounting for lnterest Cost lncurred before the End

of a Conslructìon Periocl. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and

comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2)

to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period.

This Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a

construction period. Such interest cost includes all interest that previously was accounted for in

accordance with the requirements of paragraphs 5-22 of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting

and Financial Reporting Guidance Containect in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA

Pronouncemenfs, which are superseded by this Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost

incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the

cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a

result, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical

cost of a capital asset repofted in a business{ype activity or enterprise fund.
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(16) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements

Newly lssued Accounting Pronouncements, But Not Yet Effective, continued

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 89, continued

This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements prepared using the current financial resources

measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period should be recognized

as an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting principles.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,

2019. Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements of this Statement should be applied
prospectively. The impact of the implementation of this Statement to the District's financial statements has

not been assessed at this time.
:

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No- 90

ln August 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 90 - Maiority Equity lnterests-an amendment of GASB

Statements No. 14 and No.61. The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency
and comparability of reporting a government's majority equity interest in a legally separate organization

and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. lt defines a

majority equity interest and specifies that a majority equity interest in a'legally separate organization
shóuld-be reported as an investment if a government's holding of the equity interest meets the definition

of an investment. A majority equity interest that meets the definition of an investment should be measured

using the equity method, unless it is held by a special-purpose government engaged only in fiduciary

activlties, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including permanent and term endowments) or permanent

fund. Those governments and funds should measure the majority equity interest at fair value.

For all other holdings of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization, a government should

report the legally separate organization as a component unit, and the government or fund that holds the

equity intereðt s-nould report an asset related to the majority:equity interest using the equity method. This

Statement establishes that ownership of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization

results in the government being financially accountable for the legally separate organization and,

therefore, the government should report that oçanization as a component unit.

This Statement also requires that a component unit in which a government has a 100 percent equity

interest account for its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources

at acquisition value at the date the government acquired a'100 percent equity interest in the component
unit. iransactions presented in flows statements of the component unit in that circumstance should

include only transactions that occurred subsequent to the acquisition

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,

2018. Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements should be applied retroactively, except for the

provisions related to (1) reporting a majority equity interest in a component unit and (2) reporting a

component unit if the government acquires a 100 percent equity interest. Those provisions should be

applied on a prospective basis. The impact of the implementation of this Statement to the District's

financial statements has not been assessed at this time.

(171 Commitments and Contingencies

Wohler/Collector No. 6 Agreement

The District is parly to an agreement with the Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) that provides,

among other matters, that the District is obligated to pay for a prorated share of certain SCWA's costs to

improúe or expand the SCWA's water utility plant. The agreement expires on June 30, 2040 and is
su'Oject to renewal for 40-year terms. Under the agreement, the District is obligated to pay promptly all

billiñgs from the SCWA and may not withhold payment pending resolution of disputes, if any, which might

exist between the District and SCWA. At June 30, 2018, the District's reserve balances for these
obligations were $416,369 (Wohler Pipeline) and $1,637,095 (Collector #6).
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(171 Commitments and Contingencies, continued

N ovato S a n ita ry D i stri ct

The District has entered into a contract with the Novato Sanitary District (NSD) which requires NSD to
supply secondary treated effluent of sufficient quantity to the District for the recycled water treatment
operation. The District pays NSD $20 per year for an annual lease of the site for the Deer lsland Recycled

Water Treatment Facility which is owned and operated by the District.

Solar Power Services, Facilities and Sife Agreement 
l

ln February 2012,ïhe District entered into a Solar Power Services Agreement to purchase all the solar
power generated from the Solar Power Generating Facility constructed near the District's 'Stafford
Treatment Plant facilities at a Take-or-Pay price of $0.1700 per kilowatt hour escalating 3.0% annually to

$0.2981 per kilowatt hour over a2}-year contract period. Also, in February 20'13, the District executed a

2g-year íease with the Solar Services company to construct the Solar Power GeneralingrFacility on

District land for a land lease of $'100 for the period (or $5 per year). :

Con structio n Co ntra cts

The District has a variety of agreements with developers and private parties relating to the installation,

improvement or modification of transmission facilities and distribution systems within its service area. The

financing of such improvements is provided primarily from advances for construction. The District also

improveé and modifies its existing infrastructure and finances such improvements from its reserves. The

District has committed to approximately $200,585 in remaining costs of existing District capital projects as

of June 30, 2018.

Grant Awards

Grant funds received by the District are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Such audit could lead to

requests for reimbursements to the grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under terms of the
grant. Management of the District believes that such disallowances, if any, would not be significant.

Litigation

ln the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to claims and litigation from outside parties.

After consultaiion with legal counsel, the District believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, if any, will

not materially affect its financial condition.

(18) Subsequent Events

Events occurring after June 30,2018, have been evaluated for possible adjustment to the financial

statements or disclosure as of November 20, 2018, which is the date the financial statements were

available to be issued.
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North Marin Water District
Schedule of Changes in the District Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

As of June 30, 2018
Last Ten Years*

6/30/2018

TotalOPEB Liability

$ 145,989

132,454

Service cost

lnterest

Changes in benefit terms

Differences between expected and actual experience

Changes in assumptions or other inputs

Benefit payments

Net change in total OPEB liabilitY

TotalOPEB liability - beginning

Total OPEB liability - ending

Covered employee payroll

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of
covered employee payroll

(1 e7,2e6)

787\

(294,640)

4 418 205

$ ____4J?9,5q9_

73.17%

$

Notes:
* Historical information presented above follows the measurement periods for which GASB 74 & 75

were applicable. The fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, (valuation date of June 30,2017) was the first year

of implementation required by GASB 74 &75, therefore only one year is shown.
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North Marin Water District
Schedules of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

As ofJune 30,2018
Last Ten Years*

Measurement Dates
6t30t2015Description 6t30120'17 6/30/201 6 6t30t2014

District's proportion of the net pension liability

District's proportionate share of the nei pension liability

District's covered-employee payroll

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability

as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll

Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

pension liability

0.12881% 0.12759% 0.12558% 0.10769%

$ 12,774,724 11,040,789 8,61 9.837 6,701 ,264

$ 4,600,500 4 542 bbb 4,305,518 4, 106.287

277.68% 243.05% 200.20% 163.20%

83.47%72 80% 73.98% 78.63%

Notes:

Changes in Benefit Terms- For the measurement date June 30, 2017, there were no changes in the

benefit terms.

Changes of Assumptions - For the measurement date June 30, 2017, the discount rate was reduced

from 7 .650/o percent to 7 .15% percent.

* Historical information presented above follows the measurement periods for which GASB 68 & 71

were applicable. The fiscal year ended June 30, 20'15, was the first year of implementation required by

GASB 68 & 71; therefore only four years are shown.
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North Marin Water District
Schedules of Pension Plan Contributions

As of June 30, 2018
Last Ten Yearsn

Actuarially determined contribution
Contributions in relation to the âctuarially determined

contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Districts corered payroll

Contribution's as a percentage of corcred-employee payroll

$

$

1,O37,552

(1,O17,3291

20,227

$ 4,600,500

22.11o/o

926,656

(926,448\

208

Fiscal Year
6/30/201 I

Fiscal Year
6t30t2017

Fiscal Year
6/30/2016

836,212

(828,792)

7,420

I

Fiscal Year
6/30/2015

930,1 46

(66e,060)

261 ,080

106 ¿ót

16.29o/o

4,542,666

20.390/o 19.25%

Notes
n Historical information presented above follows the measurement periods for which GASB 68 & 71

were applicable. The fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, (valuation date of June 3,0,2014) was the first

year of implementation required by GASB 68 & 71; therefore only four years afe shown,
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North Marin Water District
Combining Schedule of Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Novato
Water

Novato
Recvcled

2,O28,452
869,672

391,744

2,270,095
296,420

West Marin
Water

Oceana Marin
Sewer

561,394
10

Total

Current assets
Cash and cash equi\êlents

Restricted - cash and câsh equi\älents
Restricted - investments
Accrued interest receì\€ble
Accounls receì\Eble - \Àrater and sewer sales

Accou nts recei vable - go\,l-'rnmental agenci es

Accounts rece¡vable - olher
Capital grants and loan proceeds recei\ãble
Notes recei\¡able
Notes receirable - employee housing loans, net

Materials and supplies ¡n\,entorY

Prepaid epenses and dePosits

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Restrìcted - in\,€stments

lnternal balances (note 5)

Notes recei\¡able
Notes receì ble - employee housing loans, net

Capital assets, not being deprecìated

Depreciable capital assets, net

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Deferred outflours of resources:
Deferred pens¡on outflows

Total deferred outflot¡,s of resources

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued e)Penses

Accrued wages and related payables

Accrued claims payable

Customer adrances and dePosits

Accrued interest payable - long{erm debt

Long-term liabilities - due wìthin one year:

Compensated absences

Bonds payable

Loans payable

Total current liabilities

$

Non-current liabilities:
Long-term liabilities - due in more than one year:

Compensated absences

Bonds payable

Loans payable

Other post-èmployment benêf its liabi lity

Net pension liabìlitY

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Déferred other post-employement benef¡ts inflows
'Deferred pension inflo\¡/s

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net pos¡tion:
Net in\,€stment in capital assets

Restricted for capital projects and debt service

Unrestricted

Total net position

5,666,473 Õa) oaq 1 43,670,346

1 12,635,700 41 ,89 1.968 7,337,486 1,491,381 163,356,535

$ 894,884
581,104

3,484,730
1,450,786
6,469,611

84,0s5
4,51 3,370

69,830
1 0,550

2,270,O95

_296,:420
495,000
471 ,314

70.428

6,469,6'11

84,055
3,935,703

69,830
1 0,550

182,875 3,048

12.150 3,954

1,671 ,013 568,406 19,686,189

1 s6,075

3,701,301

786,900 110,625,210

3,538,325

3,538,325

49s,000
471,314

54.324

'1 
1 ,590,387

3,701,301
(543,218)

714,200
9,658,022

87,51 5,008

1 01,045,313

543,218
2,665,037

15,623,282
17,204,048

36,035,585

:
547,219

5,11S,254

2,665,037
714,200

25,964,598

2,641,524
272,429

97,581
1,066,100

'136,334

121,864
24,000

'1,858,716

6,21 8,548

3,538,325,

3,538,325

2,535,120
212,372

90,652
1,O10,123

36,434

121,864

952,839 
.

4,959,404

45,328
20,301
2,342

10,297
98,425

860.269

30,451
3,513

41,763
1,475

6'1,076

9,305
1,O74

3,917

24,OOO

45,608

1,036,962 146,810 75.372

365,593

1 8,853,439
4,123,565

12,774,724

36,117,321

41,O76,725

'16,090,126
48,000

711.182

759,182

905,992

s65,593
48,000

35,654,747
4,123,565

12,774,724

52,966,629

59,185,177

1 6,090,1 26

17 127 088

158,61 1

727,627

158,61 1

727,627

886,238886,238

77,402,286
2,050,307

__ (5,241,531)

18,781,8_14

5,983,066

5,285,577
'133,505

o12.412

922,975

493,034

1,416,009

102,392,652
2,183,812
2,246,981

__1!9,8?9119_

1,

$ 74.211.062 24.764,880 6,431 ,494

See accompany¡ng notes to the basic financial statements
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North Marin Water District
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Novato
Recycled

west Mar¡n Oceana Marin
Water Sewer Total

Operating re\€nues:
Water consumption sales
Bi-monthly meter service charge
Sewer service charges
Water sale to other agency

Other charges and services

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Source of supply
Pumping
Water facilities operations
Water treatment
Transmissìon and distr¡bution

Sewage collect¡on and treatment

Customer service
General and admi nistrali\,e
water conser\ãtion projects

Total operating elpenses

Capital contr¡but¡ons

Change in net pos¡tion

Net position iransfer (note 5)

Net posìtion, beginnìng of year - as restated

Net posit¡on, end of year

See accompanylng notes to the basìc financial statements

20,01 I,804 948.739

Novato
Water

$ '15,149,251

4,353,1 68

1 55,846

700,4s3
177,210

7,398

885,061

16,764,567
4,564,228

239,890
1 55,846

5;569,766

426,356
1,O79,917

2,567,146
3,387,559

1 63,957
742,164

2, 1 69,660
354,505

16,4ô1,030

109,927
182,169
48,536

1 05,406
(747,118)

(86, 1 80)

57,8 1 8

(9,035)

(338,477)

1,860,518

2,216,734
1,455,400

24,101
568,806

4,265,O41

6, 1 25,559

91 4,863
33,8s0

oâô ao^

óot 600 369,563

240,490 22,094,094

5,356,748
372,601
923,736

2,377,531
3,242,993

1 99,340
2,781

1 03,387
1 9,838
20,856

919
53,882

13,678
50,974
52,794

169,777
123,710

711,431
2,OO2,414

344,890

27,224
86,494

9,615

1 63,957
2,590

26,870

Operating income before depreciation 4,687'460

Depreciation (2,730,867)

Operating income(lôss) 1'956'593

Non-operati ng rerenues(epenses) :

Property tax re\€nue
ln\,estment earn¡ngs 127,724

lnterest earnings(loss) from note recei\Ëble - BPGL

Rental re\,enue 99,906

lnterest epense - long-term debt (472'593)

Debt issuance costs (86,180)

Other non-operating re\,enues 51,649

Other non-operat¡ng elpenses (7 460ì

Total non-operating re\,enues, net (286,954)

Net income(loss) before capital contribut¡ons 1'669,639

Capital contributions:
Der,,elopers and others 533,970

connect¡on fees 1 '387,000
Capital grants federal
caôital orants state and local 47,618

15,332,344 40 1 .003 534,266

547,736
(473,e70)

73,76ç 1s8,845

25;609
48,536

53,227
21.753

(243,795)
5,000

(30,730)

4,548
(763)

48,505

93.417

350,795 47,O73 5,633,064

( 1 9l ,950) (37,282) (3,434,06e)

9,791 2,198,995

56,700
7,083

500

1,603
(812\

(165,1 02) 65,074

{91,9391 207,350 74,865

1,682,520 244

68,400

24,101
s21 188

1,

3,638,227

(5,481,925)

2,136,473

5,481,925

76, 054.760 17,146,482

68,400

275,750

244

75, 1 09

6,155,744 340,900

968.588 227 8092

1, I 00,697,886

106,823,445$ 74.211,062 24,764,880 6,431,494 1,416,009
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Statistical I nformation Section



North Marin Water District
Statistical Section

This part of the District's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as context for

undeistanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary

information say about the District's overall financial health.

Table of Confenfs

FinancialTrends
These schedules contain information to help the reader understand how the District's
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Paqe No.

58-62

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District's most

significant own-source revenue, water sales.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the District's current levels of outstanding debt and the District's ability
to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic I nformation
This schedule offers demographic indrcators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the District's financial activities take place.

Operating lnformation
fn¡s schedule contains service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the District's financial report relates to the service the
District provides.

63-66

67-68

69-70

71-72
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North Marin Water District
Changes in Net Position and Net Position by Component

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Fiscal Year

2009 2010 2011

Change in net assets:
Operating revenues (see schedule 2)

Operating expenses (see schedule 3)

Depreciation and amortization

Operating income(loss)

$12,526,294
(13,257,125)

(10,091 , I 39)

($10,821,970)

$12,381,493
(13,083,372)

(1) (2,659,S83)

($3,361,762)

$13,797,012
(11,878,612)

(2,660,418)

$7a2¡I18)

J1l4,s63I
($1;156,581)

1, 785,475

$628,894

$63,542,479
3,'171,305

Net non-op revenue(expense) (see schedule 4) 8 954

Net income(loss) before capital contributions ($10,813'016)

Capitalcontributions 3,776,402

Change in net position ($7,036'614)

Net ition com ent:

Unrestricted

Prior period adjustment

Total net position

$61,057,551
4,304,331#

18)

($3,616,980)

2,998,366. 
'

_l$619,613I

$60,880,162
5,321,639
6,462,761 6, 579.672

$72,664,562 $73, 293,456

,""" 
"..l.t 

da C 
"ñ 

C 
"Ñ "st "S "-|"

Change in Total Net Position

$15,000,000

$10,000,000

$5,000,000

-$5,000,000

-$10,000,000

Fiscal Year

$0

Source: North Marin Water District Audited Financial Statements

(1) Asset lives were adjusted in Fiscal Year 2009 which resulted in a large depreciation adjustment
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North Marin Water District
Ghanges in Net Position and Net Position by Component

Last Ten Fiscal Years, continued
Fiscal Year

Schedule I

2012
Restated

2013

$15,435,733 $18,256,638
(12,610,862) (13,140,845)

(2,726,598) (2,7e3,360)

$98,273 $2,322,433 $1,569,459 $420,453

Restated
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

$20,772,429
(13,30e,833)

(3,128,302)

$18,081,308
(13,328,124)

917,411,543
(13,704,737)

(3,286,353)

$18,703,476
(15,099,687)

$22,094,094
(16,461,030)

$2,1

(3, 183.725\ (3,4 16.41'1)

(531,318) (285.490)

$4,334,294

(518,474) (488,661) (328,734)

$187,378

(304,830)

($433,045)

3,200,979

$2,036,943

3.357,870

$3,815,820

3,144,256

$1'o8o'798 $91'719 ($117 
'452)

8

19,714,111 4, 139.047 11

$2,767 ,934 $5,394,813 $6,960,076:#
794,909 $4,230,766 11$10,

$61,882,478
2,993,055

$65,839,724
2,186,452
2,404,385

$71,538,168
2,156,O20

$82,037,287
2,170,429
3,977,830

$85,542,035
2,

5 007 769

140,681

639 717

(3,214,0e6)

$100,697,876

o4

$102,392,652
2,183,812
2,246,981

$106,823,445

I

11,185.857 3, 696.449

$76, 061,390 $70,430,561 $77,390,637 $88,185,546

"""" ""1" 
r$ "Ñ l{.",v1i, d "Ê" t$ 

"'r"

Net Position by GomPonent
$120,000,000

$100,000,000

$80,000,000

$60,000,000

$20,000,000

$40,000,000

$o

lR6hrcted oUnrslricted
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North Marin Water District
Operating Revenue by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

Other Charges
and Services

Schedule 2

Total Operating
Revenue

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

10,573,368
10,086,100
11,334,728
12,156,765
13,987,034
15,480,438
13,180,015
12,508,927
13,801,864
16,764,567

1,581,407
1,913,170
2,109,255
2,860,630
3,630,425
4,308,584
4,312,108
4,331,899
4,334,762
4,564,228

12,526,294
12,381,493
13,797,O12
15,435,733
18,?56,638
20,772,429' 18,081,311

' 'i7,411,s49
18,703,476
22,094,094

371,519
382,223
353,029
418,338
639,1 78
983,407
589,1 88
570,717
566,850
765,299

cs
EIEUEru

sËnftEren

"""'"ôoCCCCCC.ñC

Operating Revenue by Source

$20,000,000

$15,000,000

$10,000,000

$5,000,000

Fiscal Year

$25,000,000

$o

Source: North Marin Water District Audited Financial Statements
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North Marin Water District
Operating Expenses by ActivitY

Last Ten Fiscal Years

î::î I ñ I I ffi 'îîfr:il'" : îffäi: I I I Ïn""J

Schedule 3

2,400,106

2,659,883
2,660,418

2,690,535

2,784,670
3,128,302

3,183,725

2009
2010

2011
2012

2013

2014
2015

2016

2017

2018

3,960,788
3,497,565

3,85ô,027
5,150,183

5,342,988

5,834,854

4,624,655

4,565,833

4,579,359

5,569,76ô

339,236
298,583

299¡62
304,075

351,816

341,597
352,007

281,255

351,U2
426,356

578,8ô8
633,259

u8,743
708,570
716,780

742,706

751,940

797,806

937,559

1,079,917

1,781,516
2,02't,052

2,012,125
1,747,166

1,986,904

1,815,429

2,020,865

2,099,887

2,346,949

2,æ7,146

98,715

95,116
103,054

112,801

127,903
120,548

108,928

134,193

151,205

163,957

2,335,067
2,450,765

2,400,638

2,373,132
2,340,330

2,270,764

2,727,168

2,871,290

3,223,237

3,387,559

50s,218
535,401

564,940
580,534

552,202
s50,709

588,579

628,981

676,189

742,1U

1,561,0,t4

1,616,317

1,605,455

1,358,682

1,449,793
1,221,U9

1,673,156

1,934,011

2,462,392

2,169,660

2,096,673

1,929,314

388,168

275,719

272,107
411,377

478,360

391,481

371,455

354,505

15,657,231

15,743,255

14,539,030

15,301,397

15,925,493

16,438,135

16,509,383

16,991,090

'1 8,516,098

19,895,099

.F8 "Ê. .Ð .ñ .ñ 
"d* 

.ñ .È" .S ,$"

Operating Expenso by Activity

$15,000,000

Fiscal Year

$25,000,000

$20,000,000

$10,000,000

$5,000,000

$0

Statements

to change in asset l¡ves(1) FY09 Ercludes $7,691,033
(2) Reduced by
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North Marin Water District
Non-operating Revenues and Expenses

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

(513,3r 4)
(513,763)
(7'15,491)
(665,713)
(778,762)
(830,830)
(847,950)
(807,035)
(7s1,211)
(747,118)

4,957
(61,e30)
85,750

(98, r 38)
324,471

(1,972,027) t'l

129,591
250,969
210,405
154,1

Schedule 4

Net Non-Op
Rev/(Exp)

8,954
(255,218)
(414,563)

(531,318)

1 15)

1)

729)

,830)
(338,477)

2009
2010
2011

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

413,681
202,459
118,410
130,974
80,713

120,671
135,307
125,O78

168,766
230,705

103,630
100,220

96,768
101 ,559
88,08B
90,071

94,391
102,259
107,210
109,927

't7,796

(86, 80)

Non-Operating Revenue and Expense

$1,000,000

($1,ooo,ooo)

($3,000,000)

$3,000,000

$2,000,000

$0

($2,o0o,ooo)

t"t"
Fiscal ""1'" "Ñ 

.,"|" 
"$ ".t''Year

.,"1." dt d* 
"Ñ

Notes
income and realized and unreal¡zed gains and losses on investments

CaIPERS Side Fund Payoff ($2,073,701).

North Marin Water District Audited Financial Statements
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North Marin Water District
Revenue Base

Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule 5

Fiscal
Year

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

3,454
3,011
2,786
2,820
3,018
2,948
2,444
2,152
2,317
2,584

Revenue Base
Novato Potable Water Gonsumption

t^c
_9
llt
(9
c
Ê

4,000

3,500

3,000

2,500

2,000

1,500

L,000

500

0

,.8 "$1" "d) 
dl 

"dP "$ "S "$|" C 
"S

Fiscal Year

Note: See Schedule 2 "Revenue by Source" for information regarding

water sales.

Source: Novato Water District Billing System
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North Marin Water District
Gustomers by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule 6

TotalIFiscal
Year

,401
,435

21

21
225
225
227

760
769
774

219
220
230

Buainess

1,280
1,280
'1,280

720
730
715
720
687
699
698
704
700
699

1 8,1 97
18.248
18,239
1 8,298
18,350
18,491
18,541
18,561
18,631
18,449

.^qffi#w

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
20't4
2015
2016
2017
2018

21,464
3
3

't,246 226 2 777 227 UA961,222 2sg 17 776 227 
^. 

fostzi,i\â ll.l li ä2 ;t: *Æ,$:3
1,2ss 2s2 44 78o â30 dr p* 21,790

i,31i i\z il iå: foffi"u',
"ffiffi

\

qffi
Jfu*

*k#.d#
þffi\\ws#tr**#ffiffiw

DepartmentFlnânceDlstrictWaterMarlnNorthSource:
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North Marin Water District
Novato Water Revenue Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule 7

Bimonth Service Cha
6130112 3 6/30/14 5 6/30/16 6/30/1 8

Meter 6/30/09
5/8" & 3/4" $ 13.20 $

26,40
32.40
50.40
99.60

159.60
334.80
459.20

$ 20.00 $
40.00
49.00
76.00

1 51 .00
242.00
507.00
756.00

63.00
77.00

120.00
238.00
382.00
799.00

1 ,191 .00 ' 1,244.50

25.00
50.00
61.00
95.00

189.00
303.00
634.00
945.00

$ 30.00
60,00
73.00

114.00
227.00
364.00
761 .00

1.134.00

30.00 $
60.00
73.00

114.O0
227.00
364.00
761 .00

r,134.00

30.00
60.00
73.00

I 14.00
227.00
364.00
761.00

1 ,1 34.00

30.00 $

60.00
73.00

114.00
227.00
364.00
761.00

1 ,1 34.00

31 .50 $ 33.00
66.00
80.50

125.50
248.50
399.00
835.00

1"

1t2"
2"
J

o

I'

28.80
35.30
54.95

'108.55

173.95
364.95
s44.15

Water Use Rate
6t30t12 6/30/t4 5 6/30/16 76/30/1 0user TvDe

Residential Zone A

Base Rate(1)

Tier 1:616-1845 gpd

Tier 2: >1845 gpd

Non-Residential Zone A

Base Rate(r) 3.48 ,7.ôZ

$ 3.oz $

4.81
8.36

3.29 $

5.24
9.11

3.49 $

5.55
9.66

3.73 $

5.94
10.34

4.03 $
6.42

11 .17

4.29 $

6.84
11.90

4.46 $

7.11
I ¿.JO

5.01 $

7.99
13.91

5.24
o âÃ

14.54

4.77 g

7.61
13.25

3.84 4.11 4.44 4.73 5.52

5.93

5.77

6.20

4.92 5.26

5.28 5,65
Seasonal Rate 3.90 4.13 4.42 4.77 5.08

Notes:
(1) Rates shown exclude additional eìevation rate applicable to customers in upper elevation zones

N/A - Rate class was noi established during the perìod

Source: North lvìarin Water approved rates
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FY 2017118

North Marin Water District
Ten Largest Water Customers by Revenue

Current FiscalYear and Ten Years Ago

% ofTotal FY 2007/08

Schedule I

% of Total

1 City of Novato
2 StoneTree Golf
3 Novato Unified School District
4 BioMarinPharmatutical
5 Fireman's Fund
6 Meadow Park Hamilton
7 lndian Valley Golf
I Coast Guard SPanish Housing

9 Marion Park Apartments
10 Bay Vista Apartments

2.9%
2.1o/o

2.1%
1.4%
0.9%
0.9o/o

0.8%
0.6%
0.6%
0.6%

City Of Novato
StoneTree Golf
Coast Guard Spanish Housing
Novato Unified School District
Meadow Park Hamilton
Fireman's Fund
lndian Valley Golf
Bay Vista Apartments
Marin Valley Mobile CountrY Club

Western Oaks Village Hoa

.9%

.8o/o

.7o/o

.7o/o

07.,%

0,70ú
0.6%
0.5%
0.4%
0.4%

12.8% --- m.s%

Total Water Service Revenue $22,094,094

source: NMWD CORE billing system (t:\ac\excel\wk use\[top revenue 2007_2017.x|sx]top 10

$11,779,157
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North Marin Water District
Ratio of Outstanding Debt by TyPe

Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule 9
Total

Fiscal
Year

Per As a Share of
Personal lncome (t'

Debt Capita

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

$ 312,878
282,809
250,587
209,203
181 ,652
1s9,916
136,000
116,000
94,000
72,000

16,856,896
19,790,955
18,924,944
31,173,317
34,241,715
32,687,391
31,237,390
29,823,693
31,922,939
37,493,365

17,169,774
20,073,764
1 9,1 75,531
31,382,520
34,423,367
32,847,307
31,373,390
29,939,693
32,016,939
37,565,365

281.47
329.08
314.35
514.47
564.32
538.48
514.32
490.81
524.87
61s.83

0.33%
0.34o/o

0.30%
'0.480/o

0.54o/o

0.49o/o

$

Outstanding Debt

$40,000,000

$35,000,000

$30,000,000

$25,000,000
I
(ú

oo
$20,000,000

$1 5,000,000

$1 0,000,000

$5,000,000

$0

"".t "".t ,$ d* d- 
".f- ,S ""'" "$ ,s"

Fiscal Year

Source: North Marin Water District Audited Financial Statements

(1) 
Per Capita/Personal lncome per Capita (See Schedule I 1)
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North Marin Water District
Pledged-Revenue Coverage

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Net Available

Schedule 10

Revenue Principal lnterest Total

Coverage
Ratio

Debt Service

Fiscal Year Revenue(1) Expense(')

(13,257,125)
(1 3,1 02,1 1 3)
(11,905,026)
(12,61 0,862)
(13,284,705)
(13,437,213)
(13,424,517)
(13,727,613)
(15,1 18,535)
(16,470,062)

2009
201 0
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

$ 14,131 ,892
14,635,090
14,506,888
16,789,744
19,761,431
21,364,965
1 9,308,316
18,191,410
20,209,860
24,062,837

874,767
1,532,977
2,601,862
4,178,882
6,476,726
7,927,752
5,883,799
4,463,797
5,091,325
7,592,775

319,248
690,462
644,740

1,116,410
1,337 ,041
1 ,61 8,1 38
1,686,523
1,721,904
1,769,241
1,368,254

$ 832,562
1,384,506
'l ,385,1 56
1 ,770,894
2,115,803
2,448,968
2,534,474
2,528,938
2,527,022
2,2Q1,451

513,314
694,044
740,416
654,484
778,762
830,830
847,951
807,034
757,781
833,1 97

1.05
1'11
1.BB

2.36
3.05
3.24
2.32
'1.77
2.01

3.45

Notes:
(1) Revenues includes Connect¡on Fee Revenue, lnterest Revenue

Rent & Lease Revenue, other non-operating revenue

(2) Expense excludes depreciation and interest expense.

Source: North Marin Water District Audited Financial Statements

llac\debtsruc\debt coverage ralio ii ten year history.xls

68



North Marin Water District
Demographics and Economics Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Novato Service Area(r) Gou ofM

Schedule 11

Year

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
20't6
2017
2018

61,000
61,000
61,000
61 ,000
61,000
61,000
61 ,000
61,000
61,000
61,000

251,230
252,708
254,389
255,765
258,569
261,033
262,105
263,257
264,535
265,891

Unemployment
Rate

9.6%
7.7o/o

7.4o/o

6.5%
5.3o/o

4.1o/o

3.50/o

3.5o/o

3.1o/o

2.6%

lncome
(thousands of

dollars)

Polsonal
lncome

per Caplta

$21 ,376,407
$24,653,687
$26,250,147
$27,360,972
$27,220,334
$28,455,468
$29,332,433
$30,059,737
$30,945,833
$31,803,488

$85,087
$97,558

$1 03,189
$106,977
$105,273 ,

$1 09,01 1 ,,

$111,911
$114,184 . .

:

Population - Novato

co
F
-g
=o.o
fL

66,000

64,000
62,000

60,000

58,000
s6,000

54,000

,".t ròo da C "dt ,"|" "Ñ "Ñ "$ "s'Fiscal Year

Populat¡on - Marin CountY

g
.9
-glooù

270,000
265,000
260,000
255,000
250,000
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Notes:
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North Marin Water District
Demographics and Economics Statistics - Ten Largest Employers

Current Year Schedule 12

FY 201712018 FY 200712008

Percent of
Total Number of

E

Percent of
TotalNumber of

837
585
336
312
308
300
287
281
275

nt

3.31%
2.83%
1.98%
1.14Yø

1.05%
1.O4%
1.01%
0.97%
0.95%
0.93%

1,078
465
222
360
320
300
280
257
240

4.44%
1.91%
0.91%
1.48%
1.32%
1.23%
1.15o/o

1.06%
0.99%

nifìed School
Fireman's Fund
BioMarin Pharamaceutical
City of Novato
Novato Community Hospital
Brayton Purcell, LLP
Target Store
Bradley Electric
Costco \/Vholesale

Safeway Stores

5

2 Novato Unified School District
s 2K^/isual Concepts Entertainment
4 Bradley Electric
s Novato Community Hospital
6 Novato Healthcare Center
z Costco Wholesale
I City of Novato
e Ultragenix
ro Safeway Stores

4,500 15.73%

Source: City of Novato and http://m.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/cgi/dataanalysìs/areaselectlon asp?taþleName=Labforce

4,806 19.78%

70



North Marin Water District
Operating and Capacity lndicators - Total Employees

Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule l3
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North Marin Water District
Other Operating and Capacity lndicators

Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule 14

Other Ope ratinq and Capacitv lndicators
Fiscal
Year

District Area Miles of Number of System Storage
(Square Miles) Pipeline Fire Hydrants Ca (MG)

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

'100

100
100
100
100
100
100
'100

100
100

343
345
346
348
356
356
357
358
364
364

2,762
2,773
2,785
2,785
2,797
2,805
2,808
2,814
2,824
2,842

38

38
38
38
20

39
39
39
39
40

Source: North Marin Water District - Engineering Department
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Report on lnternal Gontrols and
Compliance



lndependent Auditor's Report on lnternal Control Over Financial RepoÉing
and on Gompliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Sfandards

Board of Directors
North Marin Water District
Novato, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America and the standards applicable to financial audit contained in Government Auditing Sfandards

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Norlh Marin Water

District (Oi"trict¡ as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial

statemeàts, which collectively comprises the District's basic financial statements, and have issued our

report thereon dated November 20,2018.

lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's internal

control over financial report-ing (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in

the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do

not'express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or

deteci and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a

combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material

misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a

timely basis . A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control

that is less severé than a material weakness, yet important enough to mertt attention by those charged

with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this

section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material

weaknesses or, significant ðeficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any

deficiencies in iniernal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free from

maierial misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,

contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on

the determinatión of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with

those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion'

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be

reported under Govern ment Auditing Sfandards.
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lndependent Auditor's Report on lnternal Control Over Financial RepoÉing
and on òompliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards, continued

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance

and ine results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal

control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with

Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,

this communication is not suitable for any other purpose,

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California
November 20,2018
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Board of Directors
Nofth Marin Water District
Novato, California

Dear Members of the Board:

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of North Marin Water District (District) as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, we considered the District's internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) as a basis for designing auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. ln addition,
because of inherent limitations in internal control, including the possibility of management override of
controls, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and may not be detected by such controls. Given
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider
to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the board of directors
and others within the organization, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other
than these specified parties. This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this letter, which is a
matter of public record.



Our observations, comments and recommendations, all of which have been discussed with the
appropriate members of management, are summarized as follows:

Summary of Current Year Observations, Comments and Recommendations

Employer Assístance Housing Loan Policy

The District is a local government agency which is in the business of providing water, sewer, and recycled
water utility services to its customers. Based on the demographics and market conditions living near the
District can make it difficult to attract, hire and retain qualified employees. As a result the District provides
the EmployerAssistance Housing Loan ("EAHL") program.

During our prior year June 30, 2017 engagement, we inquired about the status of the EAHL receivables
outstanding balance. We were notified that a management employee (the "borrower") loan would be
coming due upon his retirement near June 30,2018. During our June 30,2018 engagement we
requested that the District confirm the total amount due which included principal of $250,000 and
calculated interest (using the District's portfolio rate of interest) due from the borrower at an amount of
$70,040. ln response to the District's confirmation, the borrower notified the District that only the principal
of $250,000 would be repaid as the borrower used offsetting borrowing costs to reduce any interest under
the shared appreciation method per agreement.

Upon review of the EAHL secured promissory note between the District and borrower, the District had
expected to receive the principal of $250,000 plus 27.5% of appreciation accruing from the date of
purchase (August 13, 2004) until sale or refinancing the propefty, upon the borrower's termination as a
full{ime employee of the District. According to the legal response provided by the District's attorney Bold,
Polisner, Maddow, Nelson & Judson, under California Civil Code Section 1917.006, shared appreciation
loans allow the borrower to offset appreciation with down payment, payments of mortgage principal,
escrow fees, transfer taxes, recording fees, brokerage commissions and amounts paid for capital
improvements, plus interest at the legal rate of interest, before the shared appreciation. This effectively
brought any interest due to the District under the shared appreciation terms to zero.

Based on our review of the original EAHL secured promissory note, it is reasonable to determine that the
District had expected some form of interest due from the borrower as a result in providing the $250,000
loan fourteen years prior. Any arrangement to provide a benefit in the form of the loan should be an
equitable arrangement not only for the borrower but for the District and its rate payers. A loan
arrangement where interest can be eliminated; is in effect, an interest-free loan which the District should
avoid providing in any situation as it constitutes a gift of public funds/resources. Therefore, as your
external auditor we strongly recommend that the District consider revising its EAHL policy to define the
interest due option at an identified rate and remove the shared appreciation option. ln addition, we
recommend that the EAHL policy be revised to include qualifications for the program based on the iypes
of employee position and/or salary level who the District intends to assist.

Managemenf's Response
We are in agreement with the auditor's recommendation to have a policy that is equitable for both the
borrower and the District and are currently in the process of amending the Employer Assistance Housing
Program policy.

Disclosure of Audit Adjustments and Rec/ass ifications

As your exiernal auditor, we assume that the books and records of the District are properly adjusted
before the audit begins. ln many cases, however, audit adjustments and reclassifications are made in the
normal course of the audit process to present the District's financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America or for comparison purposes with
the prior year. For the Board of Directors to gain a full and complete understanding and appreciation of
the scope and extent of the audit process we have presented these audit adjustments and
reclassifications as an attachment to ihis letter. There can be very reasonable explanations for situations
of having numerous adjustments as well as having no adjustments at all. However, the issue is simply
disclosure of the adjustments and reclassifications that were made and to provide the Board of Directors
with a better understanding of the scope of the audit.

2



Summary of Current Year Observations, Comments and Recommendations, continued

Managemenf's Response

We have reviewed and approved all of the audit adjustment and reclassification entries provided by the
auditor and have entered those entries into the District's accounting system to close-out the District's
year-end trial balance at June 30, 2018.

Summary of Prior Year Observations, Comments and Recommendations

Disclosure of Audit Adjustments and Reclassifications

As your external auditor, we assume that the books and records of the District are properly adjusted
before the audit begins. ln many cases, however, audit adjustments and reclassifications are made in the
normal course of the audit process to present the District's financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America or for comparison purposes with
the prior year. For the Board of Directors to gain a full and complete understanding and appreciation of
the scope and extent of the audit process we have presented these audit adjustments and
reclassifications as an attachment to this letter. There can be very reasonable explanations for situations
of having numerous adjustments as well as having no adjustments at all. However, the issue is simply
disclosure of the adjustments and reclassifications that were made and to provide the Board of Directors
with a better understanding of the scope of the audit.

Managemenf's Response

We have reviewed and approved all of the audit adjustment and reclassification entries provided by the
auditor and have entered those entries into the District's accounting system to close-out the District's
year-end trial balance at June 30,2017.

**********
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the board of directors
and others within the organization, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other
than these specified parties. This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this letter, which is a
matter of public record

We appreciate the coudesy and cooperatìon extended to us during our examination. We would be
pleased to discuss the contents of this letter with you at your convenience. Please do not hesitate to
contact us.

Fedak & Brown, LLP
Cypress, California
November 20,2018
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Board of Directors
North Marin Water District
Novato, California

We have audited the basic financial statements of the North Marin Water District (District) for the year
ended June 30, 20'18 and have issued our report thereon dated November 20, 2018. Generally accepted
auditing standards require that we provide the Governing Board and management with the following
informatlon related to our audit of the District's basic financial statements.

Auditor's Responsibility under United States Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our Audit Engagement Letter dated February 6,2018, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to express an opinion about whether the basic financial statements prepared by
management with oversight of the Governing Board are fairly presented, in all material respects, in
conformity with United States generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial
statements does not relieve the Governing Board or management of its responsibilities of oversight in the
District's external financial reporting process or any other processes.

ln planning and performing our audit, we considered the District's internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the basic
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Districi's internal control over financial reporting.

As parl of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with ceftain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Goventmental Auditing Standards.

We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are
not required to design procedures specifically to identify such matters.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing requirements previously
communicated to the board and management in our Communication to Those Charged with Governance
through our Audit Engagement Letter dated February 6,2018.



Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the District are described in Note 1 to the basic financial statements.

We noted transactions entered into by the District during fiscal year 2018 for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. Please see our Summary of Current Year Observations, Comments
and Recommendations. There are no significant transactions that have been recognized in the financial
statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred.

Management's Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Financial Disclosures

Accounting estimates play an integral pad in the preparation of basic financial statements by
management and are based upon management's knowledge, experience and current judgment(s) about
past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are
particularly sensitive because of their significance to the basic financial statements and because of the
possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most
sensitive estimates affecting the position in the basic financial statements are:

Management's estimate of the fair value of cash and investments is based on information provided by
financial institutions. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the fair value of
cash and investments in determining that it ls reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken
as a whole.

Management's estimate of capital assets depreciation is based on historical estimates of each
capitalized item's useful life expectancy or cost recovery period. We evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to develop the capital asset depreciation calculations in determining that they are
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management's estimate of the other post-employment benefits plan; deferred outflows or resources,
total OPEB liability, and deferred inflows of resources are based on an actuarial evaluation of this
liability that was conducted by a third-party actuary. We evaluated the basis, actuarial methods and
assumptions used by the actuary to calculate the annual required contribution for the District to
determine that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management's estimate of the defined benefit pension plan: deferred outflows of resources, net
pension liability, and deferred inflows of resources are based on an actuarial evaluation of these
amounts which was conducted by a third-party actuary. We evaluated the basis, actuarial methods
and assumptions used by the actuary to calculate these amounts for the District to determine that it is
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The disclosures in the basic'financial statements are neutral, consistent and clear. Certain basic financial
statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement users.
The most sensitive disclosures affecting the basic financial statements are:

The disclosure of fair value of cash and investments in Note 2 to the basic financial statements
represents amounts susceptible to market fluctuations.

The disclosure of capital assets, net in Note 6 to the basic financial statements is based on historical
information which could differ from actual useful lives of each capitalized item

The disclosure of the District's other post-employment benefits plan in Note 10 to the basic financial
statements is based on actuarial assumptions which could differ from actual costs

The disclosure of the District's defined benefit pension plan in Note 1'1 to the basic financial
statements is based on actuarial assumptions which could differ from actual costs.

2



Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Generally Accepted Auditing Standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements
identified during the audit, except those that are considered trivial, and communicate them to the
appropriate level of management as follows:

There were twenty five (31) total audit adjustments to the original trial balance presented to us. Four (4) of
the adjustments related to the fourth year implementation of GASB Pronouncement No. 68 which were
proposed by both the auditor and the District. Four (4) of the adjustments related to the first year
implementation of GASB Pronouncement No. 75 which were proposed by both the auditor and the
District. Four (4) of the audit adjusting entries were proposed by the auditor. Nineteen (19) of the audit
adjusting entries were proposed by the District. The audit adjustments are noted in the schedule of audit
adjusting entries attached to the end of this report.

Management Consultations with Other lndependent Accountants

ln some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. lf a consultation involves the
application of an accounting principal to the District's basic financial statements or a determination of the
type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require
the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To
our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or lssues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District's auditor. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a

condition to our retention.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit processes and testwork.

Disag reements with Management

For the purpose of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
financial accounting, reporling or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction that could be
significant to the basic financial statements or the auditor's reporl. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit of the District.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the Management
Representational Letter to the Auditor dated November 20,2018.

J



Conclusion

We appreciate the cooperation extended us by Drew Mclntyre, General Manager, Julie Blue, Auditor-
Controller, Nancy Holton, Senior Accountant, Nancy Williamson, Senior Accountant, and the rest of the
District staff in ihe pefformance of our audit testwork.

We will be pleased to respond to any question you have about the foregoing. We appreciate the
opportunity to continue to be of service to the District.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than the specified, parties. This restriction
is not intended to limitthe distribution of this letter, which is a matterof public record.

Fedak & Brown, LLP
Cypress, California
November 20,2018
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North Marin Water Distr¡ct
Schedule of Audit Adjust¡rìg Jounìal Entries

June 30, 201 I

Account Descriptio¡ì Debit Cred¡t

Adjusting Journal Entries
Adjust¡ng Journal Entries JE # 1

CPE - JE-021793 - To correct in\,estrnents MV for L,AIF market Elue factor at June 30, 2018,

15418.O1 MarketValueOfln\,€stments
4921A.U Ga¡n/Loss On Market Value Of ln\€stments

Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 2
AJE - To reclassify current portion of loan payable based on debt service agreement from SWRCB at June 30

2018.

21303.05 SRF Loan-RW Central Sw Area
22303.05 SRF Loan Payable-Current-Central S\,c Area

Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 3
CPE - AR-00'1688 - To adjust accrued water re\,enue for 8/16/18 billing reglster at June 30, 2018.

13741.O'l Accrued Water Re\.enue
13741.o5 Accrued Water Re\¡-.nue
41100.01 Water Sales
4'1100.05 WaterSales:NovRecycl:GM

Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 4
CPE - JE-o21791 - To adjust capital assets for differences caused by GASB 68 contra accounts at June 30, 2018.

11181.O1 DistrìþutionL¡nes
49600.01 lvl¡scellaneous lncome

Total

Adjust¡ng Journal Erìtr¡es JE # 5
CPE - JE-o21792 - To adjust construction in progress for d¡fferences caused by GASB 68 contra accounts al June
30, 2018. Note: FB has revised th¡s entry from the orig¡nal posted entry to aìlocate misc income by fund - no cash
balance req.

2,254.71
2,254.71

2,254.71 2,254.7',|

64,191 06

64,1 91.06
64,1 91.06 64,1 91.06

1 8.00
2,409.00

1 8.00
2,409.O0

2,427.O0 2,427.OO

116.26

116.26
116-26 116.26

11201.O1
11202.O1

11202.O5
't1202.04

49600.01
49600.05
49600.0B

Total

Work ln Progress - Dereloper
Work In Progress - D¡strict
Work ln Progress - District
Work ln Progress - OM Se\Mer

Miscellaneous lncome
Miscellaneous lncome
Other Non-Operat¡ng Re\,enue

246.69
o.01

1,O72.63
169.27

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 6
CPE - AP-002162- To adjust accrual to equal actual e)çense at June 30, 2018.

222OO.O5 Accounts Payable - Accrued
513o5.o5 Purchased Water - NSD

Total

Adjusting Journal Entr¡es JE # 7
CPE - AP-o02163 & AP-002164 - To adjust prepaids at June 30, 2018.

13509.01 UnrestrictedCash
144OO.O1 Prepaid Expense
144OO.O2 Prepaid Expense
13509.02 UnrestrictedCash:Westl\ilarin:GM
22201.O1 Accounts Payable - Vouchers
56003.01 Audit¡ngFees:Novato:ConsAcct

Total

Adjusting Journal Entr¡es JE # I
CPE - JE-021795 and JE-021796 - To ad.just amount borrou.€d at June 30, 2018.

12650.01 Restricted Cash - Maintenance Accrual Fund

13509.01 Unrestr¡cted Cash
Total

246.70
't,o72.63

169.27
1,488.60 1,488.60

31,299.40
31 299.40

31,299.40 31,299.40

12,1 50.00
1,800.00

12,1 50.00
1 2,1 50.00
1 2,1 50.00

800.00
26,1 00.00 26,1 00.00

37,902.13
37 902. 't 3
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North Marin Water D¡strict
Schedule of Aud¡t Adjusting Journal Erìtries

June 30, 2018

Account Description Debit Cred¡t
Adjust¡ng Journal Entries JE # I
CPE - JE-021796 021797 - To adjust No\ato Cash WC per borrowing procedure should be fully funded if enough
cash in funds abow it in priority for borrowing at June 30, 2018.

12628.O1

13509 01

1 2650.01
'13509.01

Total

1 3509.01

51 305.05
12627.O5
22201.O1

1 2650.01
22400.O5
1 2630.05
14120 0'l

11202.O5

1 3509.05
49308. O1

12622.O1

21 303.05
49308.05

1 3509.01

21501.O1

1 2653.01
41162.O'l

Gain From Self-lnsur¡ng Workers' Compensat¡on Elp
Unrestrìcted Cash
Restricted Cash - Maintenance Accrual Fund
Unrestr¡cted Cash

Unrestrìcted Cash
Retiree Health Benefits Payable - Long Term
Restricted Cash - Retiree Health Benefits
Gain On Owrhead Operat¡ons

390,668.00
390,668.00

390,668.00
390,668.00

781,336.00 781,336.00

Adjusting Journal Entr¡es JE # 10
CPE - AP-004767 - To adjust accounts payaþle for Novato Sanitary District invcice at June 30, 2018. Note: FB has
revised this entry for the cash offset seen in JE-O21794.

Unrestricted Cash

Purchased Water - NSD
Designated Cash - Operating Reserw
Accounts Payable - Vouchers

Total

Acljust¡ng Journal Entries JE # 11

AJE - JE021798 & JE-021799 To adjust negat¡w cash in Novato Water (Fd 1) from Nowto Recycled (Fd 5) at
June30,2018.NoteFBrevised thisentryfrominitial supportprovidedasnegat¡\,ecashbalanceincreasepost
adjustment.

24,510.23
24,510.23

49,020.46

24,510.23
24,510.23
49,020.46

Restr¡cted Cash - Ma¡ntenance Accrual Fund
Due To Olher Funds - Current Operations
Restricted Cash - RWF Replacement Fund
Due From Other Funds - Current Operat¡ons

Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 12
AJE - JC-000599 & JE-021801 - To adjust SRF Loan principal per updated debt service schedule provided from the

SWRCB al June 30, 2018.

538,336.00
538,336.00

538,336.00
538,336.00

1,076,672.00 1,O76,672.00

Work In Progress - District
Unrestricted Cash

FRC Transfer to Recycled Water
Restr¡cted Cash - FRC Fund
SRF Loan-RW Central S\,c Area
FRC Transfer from Nowto

Total

Adjust¡rìg Journal Entries JE # 13
AJE - JE-021802 - To re\r'erse retiree benefits liability added to prior year OPEB liability account at June 30, 2018.
Pre-implementat¡on of GASB 75. Note: FB has revised th¡s entry.

20,096. B0

20,096. B0

20,096.80
20,096.80
20,096.80
20,096.80

60,290.40 60,290.40

80,937.77
ao 937 77

80,937.77
80,937.77

Total 1 61,875.54 1 61 ,875.54
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North Marin Water D¡strict
Schedule ofAud¡t Adjust¡ng Journal Entries

June 30, 2018

Account Descr¡pt¡on Debit Cred¡t
Adjusting Journal Entr¡es JE #'14
CPE - To adjust capital asset catagor¡es for the unwinding of contra accounts created in prior years at June 30,

2018.

1114O.O1 SourceFacilities:No€to:Admin
11160.08 TreatrnentFacilities:Ol\4Sew-.r:Admin
1117O.O1 Storage Facilities
1117O.O1 Storage Facilities
1117O.O2 Storage Facilities
1117O.O2 Storage Facilities
11180.01 Transm¡ssionLines
11180.01 Transm¡ssionLines
11180.01 TransmissionLines
11180.01 Transmission L¡nes
11180.01 Transm¡ssion Lines
11181.01 D¡striþut¡on Lines
11181.01 D¡striþut¡on L¡nes
'11181.02 Distrlbution Lines: West Marin:Eng
11185.08 Sewer Laterals

49600.01 Miscellaneous lncome
Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 15
GASB 68 Entry #1 - To reclassify 2017 contribut¡ons to NPL at June 30, 2018.

215O2.O1 Net Pens¡on Liability
'16100.01 Deferred Outflo\¡,s - Pension

Total

26.98
44.73

339.00
2,555.99
1,899.78
4,723.06

77.34
6,955.78
4,77a.47

62.85
695.30

34.57
15,464.73
6,622.84

44.73
61.55

22,193.85 22,193.85

926,447.OO
926,447.OO

926,447.00 926,447.OO

33,665.17
9,991.17

11,311.08
1,O'17,325.OO

54,967.42
7,443.50

543.44
6,O75.23
1,O79.49

93,939.98
5,122.33
6,902.55

185,409.14
1 1,540.38
1,125.89

304,669.98
12,191.51
1,955.00
6,161.1 8

2,650.91
2,498.99

65,623.41
1,319.67

267,643.74
31,552.60

1,867.95
1,072,292.42 1,O72,292.42

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1 6
C.ASB68Entry#2-Toreclassify201BDistrictShareof Pens¡onContr¡butionstoDeferredOrtfloreof Resources
at June 30, 2018.

13509.02 UnrestrictedCash:WestMarin:GM
13509.05 Unrestricted Cash
13509.08 Unrestricted Cash
16'100.01 Deferred OutfloM,6 - Pension
13509.01 Unrestricted Cash
51400.01 GASB68 Adjustment - Source
51400.02 GASB68 Adjustment - Source
52309.01 GASB68 Adjustrnent - Pumping
523O9.O2 GASB68 Adjustment - Pump¡ng
52309.05 GASB68 Adjustment - Pumping
527OO.O1 GASB68 Adjustment - Operations
527OO.O2 C!qSB68 Adjustment - Operations
527OO.O5 CaqSBoE Adjustment - Operations
53800.01 C.\S868 Adjustrent - Water Treatrent
53800.02 GASB6B Adjustrnent - Water Treatrent
53800.05 GASB6B Adjustrent - Water Treatrrent
54598 01 GASB68 Adjustment - T&D
54598.02 GASB68 Adjustment - T&D
54598.05 GASB68 Adjustment - T&D
54601.08 Supervision & Engineering - Semge Collection
54799 08 GASB68 Adjustrrìent - Seu,age Treatment

54899.08 GASB6BAdjustment-D¡sposalOMSerer-Admin
55999.01 GASB68 Adjustment - Consumer Accountìng
55999.02 GASBoB Adjustment - Consumer Accounting
57000.01 GASBoB Adjustment - G&A
58100 01 GASB68 Adjustment - Water Conser\ãt¡on
58100.02 GASBGS AdjLrstment - Water Conser\ãt¡on

Total
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North Marin Water Distr¡ct
Schedule of Auclit Adjustil'tg Journal Entries

June 30, 2018

Accolrnt Descrinl¡ôn Debit Credit
Adjust¡ng Journal Entr¡es JE # 17
GASB 68 Entry #3 - To record changes in pension liab¡lity during FYl6/17 atJune 30, 2018.

13509.01 Unrestricted Cash
16100.01 Deferred Outflou/s - Pension
16'100.0'1 Deferred Outflows - Pension
215O2.O1 Net Pension Liability
23100.01 Deferred lnflou,s - Pension
23100.01 Deferred lnflou,s - Pension
51400.01 GASB68 Adjustrnent - Source
514OO.O2 GASB68 Adjustment - Source
52309.01 GASB68 Adjustment - Pumping
523O9.O2 GASB68 Adjustment - Pumping
52309.05 GASB68 Adjustment - Pump¡ng
527oo.o1 GASB68 Adjustment - Operations
527OO.O2 GASB68 Adjustment - Operations
527OO.O5 GASBGB Adjustment - Operatìons
53800.01 C.qSB6B Adjustment - Water Treatrnent
53800.02 GASB6B Adjustment - Water TreatnEnt
53800.05 GASB6B Adjustment - Water Treatment
54598.01 GASB68 Adjustment - T&D
54598.02 GASB68 Adjustmenl - T&D
54598.05 GASB68 Adjustrnent - T&D
54699.08 GASB68 Adjustment - Se\^êge Collect¡on
54799.08 CaqSBoS Adjustrent - Se\ äge Treatrnent
54899.08 C,ASB6SAdjustrent-Disposal-OMSerer-Admin
55999.01 GASB68 Adjustment - Consurer Accounting
55999.02 CaASB6S Adjustment - Consurer Accounting
57000.01 C,ASB68 Adjustment - G&A
57OOO.O1 GASB68 Adjustrent - G&A
58100.01 C'ASB68 Adjustment - Water ConserEt¡on
58100.02 GASB68 Adjustment - Water Conserwtion
13509.02 UnrestrictedCash:WestMar¡n:GM
13509.05 Unrestr¡cted Cash
13509.08 Unrestricted Cash
16100.01 Deferred Outflou,€ - Pensìon
16100.0.1 Deferred Outflou,,s - Pension
16100.01 Deferred Outfloffi - Pension
16100.01 Deferred Outflore - Pension
21502.01 Net Pension Liability
23100.01 Deferred lnflore - Pension
23100.01 Deferred lnflovË - Pension

Total

97,643.42
2,631,177.00

4,834.00
0.01

280,202.OO
22,831.00
13,227.96

966.46
10,796.37

1 ,91 B.37

13.75
166,942.12

9,102.97
12,266.62

329,493.32
20,508.58

2,000. 84
541,435.22
21,665.72
3,474.26

10,949.'t2
4,710.97
4,440.99

116,620.34
2,U5.21

0.62
475,633.66

56,O72.59
3,31 9.56

59,426.47
17,755.47
20,101.08

0.63
1,042,068.00

22,431.OO
24O,202.OO

2,660,382.00
298,301.00
443,165.00

4,844,633.05 4,844,633.O5
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North Mar¡n Water District
Schedule of Audit Adjusting Journal Entries

June 30, 2018

Account Description Debit Credit
Adjust¡ng Journal Entries JE # 18
GASB 68 Ent(y lt4 - To record changes in the deferred outflo\Ms and deferred inflore (arnortrzation) during FY17l18
at June 30, 2018.

13509.01 Unrestricted Cash
16100.01 Deferred Outfloffi - Pension
23100.01 Deferred lnflom - Pension
23100.01 Deferred Inflom - Pension
51400.01 GASB6B AdjLrstment - Source
514OO.O2 GASB6B Adjustment - SouTce
52309.01 GASB6B Adjustment - Pumping
523O9.O2 GASB68 Adjustment - Pumping
52309.05 GASB68 Adjustrnent - Pumping
527OO.O1 GASB68 Adjustment - Operations
527OO.O2 GASB68 Adjustment - Operations
52700.05 GASBoSAd¡ustment-Operations
53800.01 GASB68 Adjustment - Water Treatment
53800.02 GASB68 Adjustrent - Water Treatment
53800.05 GASB68 Adjustment - Water Treatment
54598.01 GASB68 Adjustn'ìent - T&D
54598.02 GASB68 Adjustment - T&D
54598.05 GASBoB Adjustment - T&D
54699.08 GASB68 Adjustment - Sewage Collection
54799.08 GASB6B Adjustment - Sewage Treatment
54899.08 GASB6SAdjustment-Disposal-OMSerer-Admin
55999.01 GASB6B Adjustment - Consumer Accounting
55999.02 GASB68 Adjustment - Consumer Accounting
57000.01 GASB68 Adjustment - G&A
58100.01 GASB6E Adjustment - Water Conser\ation
58100.02 GASB68 Adjustment - Water Conser\êt¡on
13509.02 UnrestrictedCash:WestMarin:GM
13509.05 Unrestricted Cash
13509.08 Unrestricted Cash
16100.01 Deferred Outfloffi - Pension
16100.01 Deferred Outflore - Pension

Total

22,107.55
27,005.00
64,939.00

301,222.OO

2,993.73
21A.73

2,443.42
434.16

3.1 1

37,782.06
2,060.17
2,776.'16

74,570.37
4,&1.47

452.83
122,536.70

4,903.35
746.29

2,477.99
1,066.1 I
1,005.07

26,393.32
530.76

107,644.60
12,690.25

751.28
1 3,539.92

4,01 B.39
4,5r''9.24

540,339.00
261 989.00

424,435.55 824,ß5.55
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Account DescriDt¡on

North Marin Water D¡strict
Schedule of Audit Adjust¡ng Journal Entries

June 30, 201 I

Dêbit Credit
Adjusting Journal Entr¡es JE # 19
CPE - To restore District share of contrìbut¡on previously capitalized wth cap¡tal construct¡on projects during
FY'17/1a d June 30, 2018.

13509.02 UnrestrictedCash:WestMarin:Gl\4
13509.05 UnresÍicted Cash
51400.01 GASB6B Adjustment - Source
514OO.O2 GASB6B Adjustment - Source
523o9.o1 GASB6BAdjustrnent-Pumping
523o9.o2 GASB68 Adjustrent - Pumping

52309.05 GASB68 Adjustrent - Pumping

527oo.o1 GASB68 Adjustment - Operations
527OO.O2 GASB6B Adjustrent - Operations
527OO.O5 C.ASB68 Adjustrn€nt - Operations
53800.01 C"ASB68 Adjustment - Water Treatment

53800.02 GASB68 Adjustment - Water Treatment

53800.05 GASB68 Adjustment - Water Treatment

54598.01 GASB68 Adjustrent - T&D
54598.02 GASB6B Adjustrent - T&D
54598.05 GASB6B Adjustrent - T&D
54699.08 GASB6B Adjustment - Sewage Collection
54799.08 GASB6B Adjustment - Sewage Treatrnent

54899.08 GASB6EAdjustrent-Disposal-OMse\,€r-Admin
55999.01 C.ASB68 Adjustment - Consumer Accounl¡ng
55999.02 GASB68 Adjustment - Consumer Accountjng
57000.01 GASB68 Adjustment - G&A
58100.01 GASB68 Adjustment - Water Conser\at¡on
58100.02 GASB68 Adjustment - Water Conser\at¡on
11180.01 TransmissionLines
11'181.01 DìstributionLines
111A1.O2 Distr¡but¡onL¡nes:Westl\4arin:Eng
11185.08 Serer Laterals
112O1.O1 Work ln Progress - Dereloper
112O2.O1 Wolk In Progress - D¡strict
112o?.o1 Work ln Progress - District
112o2.o1 Work ln Progress - Disuict
112o2.O2 Work ln Progress - District
112o2.o2 Work ln Progress - District
112o2.o5 Work ln Progress - District
1'l2o2.oa Work ln Progress - OM Sev/er
13509.01 Unrestricted Cash
13509 08 Unrestflcted Cash
11181.05 DistflbutionLines

Total

1,058.38
1 9,814.96

753.12
55.02

614.64
109.22

o.7a
9,504.72

514.27
698.39

18,759.44
1,167 .64

113.92
30,826.1 9

1 97.80
623.38
264.22
252.84

6,639.69
133.52

27,079.83
3,192.45

1 89.00
88.64

21,905.53
547.'t7
22.O2

12,940.U
37,785.66

402.49
3,700.16
3,752.10

165 30

20,825.85
795.88

20,546.80
326.54

1 23,804.98 1 23,804.98

3,997.06
4,o74.o7

535,686.1'1
72,949.O2

557,797.37
74,848.37

841.66
8,O74.O7

3,997.06
557 .797.37
74,848.37

535,686.1 1

72 949.O2

Adjust¡ng Journal Entries JE # 20

CPE - JE-021823, O21A24, 021825 - To re\erse batch 89-WlP 6/18, WIP 6/18 (After GASB 68), Recogn¡ze

Distrjct MSNyAEEP Caltrans Jobs e>penditures and portion of ad\¿ance that is now NMWD'S at June 30, 2018.

13740.01
22AOO.O1

22AOO.01

22401.O1
22401 01

49401 01

49404.O1
13740.O1

13740.O1
22BOO.01

22800.01
22801.01
49401.01
49404.O1

Accounts Recei€ble: Novato: Cons Acct
Ad\rances For Construction
Ad\,ances For Construction
Ad\ãnces For District JobsNowto
Ad\¡ances For Diskict JobsNowto
Capital Contributions
Caltrans Caprtal Contributions
Accounts Receiwble: Novato:Cons Acct
Accounts Rece¡Eble: Novato: Cons Acct
Ad\¿nces For Construction
Ad€nces For Construction
Ad\ances For D¡strict Jobs-No\ãto
Capital Contributions
Caltrans Capital Contributions

Total

'10
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North Marin Water D¡strict
Schedule ofAudit Adjust¡ng Journal Entries

June 30, 2018

Account Descr¡pt¡on Deb¡t Cred¡t
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 21

CPE - JE-o21a26 - To relier,e FRC expendltures 6/1 I (C.ASB 68#2) at June 30, 201 8.

12622.01 Restricted Cash - FRC Fund
12622.01 Restricted Cash - FRC Fund
12622.02 Restricted Cash - FRC Fund
12640.01 Bank of Mar¡n Loan Project Fund
12æ1.01 AMI Project Fund
30120.01 Facilities Reser\,e Fees
3O12O.O2 Facilities Reser\,e Fees
49308.05 FRC Transfer from Novato
59440.01 Transfer to Bank of lvlarin Loan Projæt Fund
59448.01 Transfer to AMI Project Fund
13509.01 Unrestr¡cted Cash
13509.01 Unrestr¡cted Cash
13509.01 Unrestr¡cted Cash
13509.02 Unrestr¡ctedCash:WestMarin:GM
13509.05 Unrestr¡cted Cash
255o2.o1 Reserre For Capital lmpro\€ments - FRC

255O2.O2 Reser\,€ For Câpital lmpro\,ements - FRC

25711.O1 Bank of Marin Loan Projæt Reserw Fund

25715.01 AMI Project Reser\€ Fund
49308.01 FRC Transfer to Recycled Water

Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 22
GASB 75 Entry #1 - To record prior period adjustment for change in accountìng princ¡ple of GASB 75 as of June
30.2017.

21501.01 Ret¡ree Health Benefits Payabìe - Long Term
3'1100.0'l Earned Surplus
21503.01 Total OPEB Liabitity

Total

Adjusting Journal Entr¡es JE # 23

GASB 75 Enlry tl2 - To reclassify 201 I contributions to Deferred Outflou,s of Resources at June 30, 2018.

13509.02 UnrestrictedCash:WestMarin:GM
13509.05 Unrestricted Cash
13509.08 Unrestricted Cash
21503.01 Total OPEB Liability
13509.01 Unrestricted Cash
51401.O1 GASB7s Adjustment - Source ot Supply
51401.OZ GASB7s Adjustment - Source of Supply
52310.01 GASB75 Adjustment - Pumping
52310.02 C,ASB7s Adjustment - Pumping

52310.05 GASB7S Adjustnænt - Pumping

52701.O1 GASB7s AdjustÍìent - Operations
52701.o2 GASB7s Adjustment - Operations
52701.O5 GASB7s Adjustrnent - Operations
53801.01 GASB7s Adjustment - Water Treatment
53801.02 GASB75 Adjustrent - Water Treatment
53801.05 C.qSB75 Adjustment - Water Treatment

54596.01 GASB7s Adjustrnent - T&D
54596.02 GASB7s Adjustrnent - T&D

54596.05 GASBTsAdjustment-T&D
54698.08 C'qSB75 Adjustment - Sewage Collect¡on
54798 08 GASB75 Adjustment - Sewage Treatment

54898 oB GASB7S Adjustment - SeMge D¡sposal

55998.01 GASB7s Adjustment - Consumer Accounting
55998.02 C.ASB7S Adjustment - Consumer Accounting
57001.01 C.ASB75 Adjustment - G&A
58101.01 GASB75 Adjustment - Water Conser%t¡on
58101 .02 GASB7s Adjustment - Water Conservat¡on

Total

20,825.44
13,157.A7

979.34
166.97

2,709.49
13,157.47

979.34
20,825.84

166.97
2,709.49

2,709.49
13,157.87

'166.97

979.U
20,825.84
13,157.87

979.34
166.97

2,709.49
20.425.84

75,679.O2 75,679.O2

1,204,119.17
3,214,085.83

4,4 1 8,205.00
4,418,205.00 4,418,205.OO

12,435.OO

3,691.00
4,178.OO

375,787.OO
20,304.00

2,750.OO

201.00
2,244.OO

399.00
3.00

34,700.00
1,892.00
2,550.00

68,488.00
4,263.00

41 6.00
112,541.OO

4,503.00
722 00

2,276.O0
979.00
923.00

24,240.OO

487.OO

98,865.00
1 1,655.00

690.00

11
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North Mar¡n Water District
Schedule of Audit Adjusting Journal Entries

June 30, 2018

Accounf Descrinfion Debit Credit
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 24
GASB 75 Entry #3 - To record changes in OPEB l¡ability dur¡ng FY17118 in the currentyear

13509.01 Unrestricted Cash
51401.01 GASB75 Adjustment - Source of Supply
51401.O2 GASB7s Adjustment - Source of Supply
52310.01 GASBTsAdjustment-Pump¡ng
5231O.O2 GASB7s AdJustment - Pumping
52310.05 GASB7s Adjustment - Pump¡ng
52701.O1 GASB7s Adjustment - Operat¡ons
52701.O2 GASB7s Adjustment - Operations
52701.O5 GASBTsAdjustment-Operat¡ons
53801.01 GASBTsAdjustment-WaterTreatment
53801 .02 GASB7s Adjustment - Water TreatÍì€nt
53801 .05 GASB7s Adjustment - Water Treatment
54596.01 GASB7s Adjustrnent - T&D
54596.02 C?qSB75 Adjustnìent - T&D
54596.05 GASB7s Adjustn€nt -T&D
54698.08 C"ASB7s Adjustment - SeMge CÕllect¡on
54798.08 GASB7s Adjustment - Sewage Treatrnent
54898.08 GASBTsAdjustment - Se\'age Disposal
55998.01 GASB75 Adjustnìent - Consumer Accounting
55998.02 GASB7S Adjustment - Consumer Account¡ng
57000.01 GASB68 Adjustment - G&Â
58101.01 GASB75 Adjustnìent - Water Conser\ation
58101.O2 GASBTs Adjustment - Water Conser\Êtion
13509.02 Unrestr¡ctedCash:WestMarin:GM
13509.05 Unrestr¡cted Cash
13509.08 Unrestr¡cted Cash
21503.01 Total OPEB Liab¡lity
232OO.O1 Deferred lnflos.€ - OPEB

Total

Adjusting Journal Entr¡es JE # 25
CrASB 75 Enlry 1t4 - To Tecord changes in the deferred outflov/s and deferred inflov,s (arnrcrtization) at June 30,
2014.

13509.02 UnrestrictedCash:WestMarin:GM
13509.05 UnrestrictedCash
13509.08 Unrestricted Cash
232OO.O1 Deferred lnflore - OPEB
13509.01 Unrestricted Cash
51401.O1 GASB7s Adjustrent - Source of Supply
51401.O2 GASB7s Adjustrent - Source of Supply
52310.01 GASB7s Adjustment - Pumping
52310.O2 C"ASB7S Adlustrnent - Pumping
52701.O1 GASB7s Adjustnìent - Operations
52701.O2 GASB7s Adjustment - Operations
52701.O5 GASB7s Adjustment - Operations
53801.01 CaCSBT5 Adjustrent - Water Treatrent
53801.02 CaqSBTS Adjustment - Water Treatment
53801.05 GASB75 Adjustment - Water Treatment
54596.01 GASB7s Adjustment - T&D
54596.02 GASBTS Adjustment - T&D
54596.05 GASBTsAdjustment-T&D
54698.08 GASB7s Adjustment - SeMge Collection
54798.08 GASB7s Adjustment - SeMge Treatrnent
54898.08 GASB7s Adjustment - SeMge Dìsposal
55998.01 GASB7s Adjustment - Consunìer Account¡ng
55998.02 GASBTSAdjustment-ConsumerAccounting
57000.01 GASB68 Adjustrnent - G&A
58101 .01 GASB7S Adjustment - Water Conser€tion
58101 .02 C.ASB7s Adjustrent - Water Conser€tion

Total

Total Adjusting Journal Entr¡es

15,O44.00

2,037.00
149.00

1,663.00
295.00

2.00
25,711.OO

1,402.00
1,889.00

50,747.00
3,159.00

308.00
83,389.00
3,337.00

535.00
1,686.00

726.O0
684 00

1 7,961 .00
361.00

73,255.00
8,636.00

51 1.00

9,214.OO

2,734.OO

3,096.00
a1 147 00

197 296 00

293,447.OO 293,la7.00

1 ,2A1.OO
379.00
430.00

38,685.00
2,090.00

283.00
21.OO

231.00
41.OO

3,572.OO

1 95.00
262.OO

7,050.00
439.00
43.00

'11,586.00

464.OO

74.00
234.00
1 01 .00
95.00

2,495.00
50.00

1 0,1 78.O0

1,200.o0
71.00

N,775.00 40,775.00

1 6,587,21 1.09 1 6,587,21 1 .09

Total All Journal Entries
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North Marin Water D¡strict
Schedule of Audit Adjusting Journal Entries

June 30, 2018

Account DescriÞt¡on Debit Cred¡t

Adjustirìg Journal Entries JE # 26
CPE - JE-o21806 (Batch 9136) - To adjust arcunt borro\,ed at June 30, 2018.

12622.01 Restricted Cash - FRC Fund

12650.01 Restricted Cash - lvìaintenanceAccrual Fund

13509.01 Unreskicted Cash
13509.01 Unrestricted Cash

Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 27

CPE - JE-021807 (Batch 9137) - To update due to/from at June 30, 2018.

12650.01 Restr¡cted Cash - MaintenanceAccrual Fund

224oo.o5 Due To Other Funds ^ Current Operations
12630.05 Restricted Cash - RWF Replacement Fund

1412O.O1 Due From Other Funds - Current Operat¡ons
Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 28
CPE - JE-021810 (Batch 9141) - To accrued interest rece¡\äble - EHL for Pablo Ramudo's Housing Loan which

13749.01 lnterest Recei\ãble - Employee Flousing Loan

492OO.O1 Interest Earned - Generaì Funds

ïotal

Adjusting Journal Entr¡es JE # 29

CPE - JE-o21a17 (Batch 9145) - To record interest accrual #3 at June 30, 2018.

13509.02 UnrestrictedCash:WestMar¡n:GM
13509.05 Unrestricted Cash
13509.08 Unrestrìcted Cash
492OO.O1 lnterest Earned - General Funds

13509.01 Unrestricted Cash
13750.01 Accrued lnterest Recei\aþle - General Funds' 492OO.OZ lnterest Earned - General Funds

49200.05 lnterest Earned - BPGL Recycled Water Facility
49200.08 lnterest Earned - General Funds

492O5.O2 lnterest Earned - Facilities Reser\,e

49209.01 lnterest Earned - Wohler Pipeline
4921O.O1 lnterest Earned - Coìlector f6
49211.O1 lnterest Earned-Future Retiree Med Benef¡ts Res

49213.01 lnterest Earned - Workers'Compensation Fund

49213.02 lnterest Earned - Workers'Compensation Fund

49213.08 lnterest Earned - Workers'Compensation Fund

49224.05 lnterestEarned-RWFReplacementFund
49226.0'l lnterest Earned - AEEP Fund

49226.02 lnterest Earned-Bank of Marin Project Fund

Total

20,096.80
60,840.70

20,096.80
60,840.70

80,937.50 80,937.50

21,334.70
21,334.70

21,338.70
21,334.70

42,677.40 42,677,40

14,707.11
14,707.11

14,707.11 ___ 1lJo7l1

2,121.24
2,069.89

690.70
14,707.11

4,881.83
0.03

1,200.46
5.52

681.1 1

173.92
640.88

2,51 6.50
6,406.52

206.O7

27.89
9.59

2,064.37
55.28

714.97
19,588.94 1 9,588.94
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North Marin Water D¡str¡ct
Schedule of Aud¡t Adjust¡ng Journal Erìtr¡es

June 30, 2018

Account Description Debit Credit
Adjusting Jounìal Entries JE # 30

CPE - JE-O21A27 (Batch 9150) - To adjust reærws at June 30, 2018.

12624.O1 Wohler Pipeline F¡nancing Fund
12625.01 Collector Í43 Financing Fund

12630.05 Reslricted Cash - RWF Replacement Fund
12æO.O2 Bank of Marin Loan Projæt Fund
13509.01 Unrestricted Cash
13509.01 Unrestr¡cted Cash
13509.02 UnrestrictedCash:WestMarin:Glil
255O4.O2 Reserræ For Capital lmprorements - FRC lnterest
25702.01 Reser\,e For Retiree Health Benefits
25711.O1 Bank of l\4arin Loan Project Reserw Fund
5941 1.05 Trfr to RWF Replacement Fund
59416.01 Transfer To Reserw - Facility Resere Charges
59416.01 Transfer To Reserw - Facility Reserw Charges
5 4O.O2 Transfer to Bank of Marin Loan Projæt Fund

12622.02 Restricted Cash - FRC Fund
12640.01 Bank of Marin Loan Projæt Fund
12653.01 Restricted Cash - Retiree Health Benefits
13509.01 Unrestricted Cash
13509.02 UnrestrictedCash:WestMarin:GM
13509.05 Unrestricted Cash
25507.o1 Reserw For Capital lmprowments - Wohler lnterest
25508.01 Reser\€ For Capjtal lmprowments - Collector*6 lnt
25509.05 RWF Replacement Fund
25711,O2 Bank of Marin Loan Project Reser\,€ Fund
59416.02 Transfer To Reser\e - Facil¡ty Reser\,e Charges
5942o.O1 Trfr To Future Retiree Medical lns. Reser\,e-lnt
5944o.o1 Transfer to Bank of Marin Loan Projæt Fund

Total

Adjust¡ng Journal Entr¡es JE # 31

CPE - JE-021829 (Batch 9152) - To adjust amount borro\,,ed at June 30, 2018.

12650.01 Restricted Cash - Mâintenance Accrual Fund
13509.01 Unrestricted Cash
12622.01 Restrìcted Cash - FRC Fund
13509.01 Unrestricted Cash

Total

Total Adjust¡ng Journal Entr¡es

Total All Journal Entries

AJE ALrdìt Adiustino Journal Enlrv
CPE Cl¡ent Preoared Aud¡t Ad¡ustino Journal Entrv
C.ASB 68 GASB 68 lmolementation Adiustino Journal Entrv - Fourth Year
C.ASB 75 GASB 75 lmolementation Adiustino Journal Entrv - F¡rst Year

640.88
2,516.50
2,064.37

714.97
'1 1 1.69

6,406.52
805.42
805.42

6,406.52
111.69

2,064:.37

640.88
2,51 6.50

718.97
4o5.42
1 1 1.69

6,406.52
3,157.38

7't8.97
2,064.37

640.88
2,51 6.50
2,064.37

714.97
8O5.42

6,406.52
11 1.69

26,528.70 26,528.70

58,1 75.1 3
33,983.71

33,983.7 1

58, 1 75.1 3
92,',158.A4 92,1 58.84

1 6,830,895.84 16,830,895.84

1 6,830,895.84 1 6,830,895.84
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Item #8

MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors

From: Drew Mclntyre, General Man

November 16,2018

Subject: WAC/TAC Meeting - Novemþer 5,
t:\gm\scwa\2018\wac tac meeting 1 1.5. 18.doc

RECOMMENDED ACTION: lnformation Only

FINANCIAL IMPACT: NONE

Supplemental information is provided as follows using item numbers referenced in the

attached meeting agenda and draft minutes (AttachmentA). A complete agenda packet is available

vi a www. so n om awater. o rq/water-advi so nl-co m m ittee.

1. Gheck-in

NMWD Board was represented by Director Baker.

6. 2019 WAG/TAG Schedule

The approved 2019 WAC/TAC Meeting Schedule is included as Attachment B.

7. Formation of WAC Ad Hoc - Subcommittee and Gommon Interest Agreement

The WAC approved formation of an Ad Hoc subcommittee including the WAC representative

from North Marin to track developing PVP activities in a timely manner. Also approved was

development of a Common lnterest Agreement between SCWA and interested water agency

contractors to share privileged information related to PVP FERC proceedings, (SeeAttachment

c).



FOR ACCESSIBLE
MEETING INFORMATION

CALL: (707) 543-3350
ADD: (707) 543-3031

WATER ADVISORY COMMITTEE
AND

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

MONDAY: NOVEMBER 5, 2018

Utilities Field Operations Training Center

35 Stony Point Road, Santa Rosa, CA

1

2

J

4

5

ô

7

B

9:00 a.m. Note location

Ihls /s a combined WAC and TAC meeting

9

10

11

12

13

14

'15

'16

Check ln

Public Comment

Recap from the August 6,2018 WAC/TAC Meeting and Approval of Minutes

Recap from the October 1,2018 TAC Meeting and Approval of Minutes

Water Supply Coordination Council - October 22,2018

Approve - 2019 WAC/TAC Meeting Schedule

Approve - Formation of WAC Ad Hoc Subcommittee and Common lnterest Agreement

Sonoma Marin Saving Water Partnership

a. EPA Sustained Excellence Award

b. Water Production Relative to 2013 Benchmark

c. 2018 Water Use Efficiency Legislation (58606 & AB 1668) Update

FY 2017118 SCWA Budget Year End Review

Water Supply Conditions

a. Forecast lnformed Reservoir Operations (FIRO) Update

Biological Opinion Status Update

a. Fish Flow DEIR Milestone Schedule Update

b. Dry Creek Milestone Schedule Review

Post October 2017 Sonoma Fire Event Updates

Potter Valley Project Relicensing Update

Federal Outreach

Items for Next Agenda

Check Out

c.\users\e06668\desktop\wac tac agenda'1 1_05_18 finâl.docx

ATTACHMENT A



*DRAFT Minutes of Water Advisory Committee and Technical Advisory Committee
35 Stony Point Road, Santa Rosa, California

November 5,2018

Attendees Jennifer Burke, City of Santa Rosa
Tom Schwedhelm, City of Santa Rosa
Colin Close, City of Santa Rosa
Easter Ledesma, City of Santa Rosa
Dave King, City of Petaluma
Susan Harvey, City of Cotati
Mark Millan, Town of Windsor
Toni Bertolero, Town of Windsor
Paul Piazza, Town of Windsor
Vanessa Garrett, City of Rohnert Park
Jake McKenzie, City of Rohnert Park
Mary Grace Pawson, City of Rohnert Park
Colleen Ferguson, City of Sonoma
Drew Mclntyre, Norlh Marin Water District
Rocky Vogler, Norlh Marin Water District
Jack Baker, North Marin Water District
Mike Ban, Marin MunicipalWater District
Jack Gibson, Marin MunicipalWater District
Dan Muelrath, Valley of the Moon Water District
Mark Heneveld, Valley of the Moon Water District
Jessica Martini Lamb, SCWA
Jay Jasperse, SCWA
Grant Davis, SCWA
Pam Jeane, SCWA
Barry Dugan, SCWA
David Manning, SCWA
Carrie Pollard, SCWA
Lynne Rosselli, SCWA
Brian Lee, SCWA

Public Attendees David Keller, FOER
Brenda Adelman, RRWPC
Margaret DiGenova, California America Water
Jim Downey, Penngrove/Kenwood Water Distr
Tony Lopes, GM Forestville Water District
Bob Anderson, United Winegrowers

1. Check-i
Mark Milan, WAC Chair, called the meeting to order at 9:06 a.m

2. Public Comments
No public comments

3. Recao from Auoust 6. 2018 lVeetino and Aooroval of Minutes
Moved by Susan Harvey, City of Cotati, seconded by Tom Schwedhelm, City of Santa
Rosa to approve the minutes of the August 6,2018 WAC/TAC meeting; unanimously
approved.
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4. Recap from October 1,2018 TAC Meetino and Aooroval of Minutes
Moved by Mary Grace Pawson, City of Rohnert Park, seconded by Dan Muelrath, Valley
of the Moon Water District to approve the minutes of the October 1,2018 TAC meeting;
unanimously approved.

5. Water Supplv Coordination Cou ncil-October 22. 201 8

WAC Chair Mark Millan reported that the group met to prepare the WAC/TAC November
Sth agenda.

6. Approve- 2019 WAC/TAC Meetino Schedule
Moved by Susan Harvey City of Cotati, seconded by Jack Baker, North Marin Water
District, unanimously approved.

7. Aoprove- Formation of WAC Ad Hoc Su mittee and Common lnterest Aoreement
Refer to memo in packet. Comments/Concerns- Public comment: David Keller asked
about Paragraph 2.4 cited in the Restructured Agreement regarding potential acquisition
of the Potter Valley Project and necessary environmental reviews. Mark Millan- lntent of
the Ad Hoc Subcommittee is to better track all developing PVP activities in a timely
manner. Moved by Jake McKenzie, City of Rohnert Park, seconded by Jack Baker,
North Marin Water District, unanimously approved.

B. Sonoma Marin Water Savino Partnershio

a. EPA Sustained Excellence Award. Carrie Pollard, SCWA. Awarded Second
Consecutive Sustained Excellence Award for continuing to improve its irrigation-
professional training program by upgrading its curriculum and training materials.
The Partnership was awarded two of the 21 WaterSense Awards that were
awarded at the WaterSmart lnnovations Conference in Las Vegas. This is the
fifth year in a row that the Partnership has received awards for its water efficiency
efforts. (see memo).

b. Water Production Relative to 2013 Benchmark
Drew Mclntyre, North Marin Water District- the calendar year is coming to a close
and water use by the Parlnership is 16% below the 2013 State benchmark. (see
chart).

c. 2018 Water Use Efficiencv Leqislation (58606 & AB 1668) Update
Drew Mclntyre- provided an update on the new legislation and reviewed the key
milestone timeline over the next five years.

9. FY 2017118 SCWA Budqet Year End Review
Lynne Roselli, SCWA- Commented that the FY18 budget includes costs for Operations
and Maintenance, Capital Projects, Biological Opinion compliance, Debt service and
Aqueduct Capital Contributions. Water deliveries for FY18 were 11o/o above budget.
Budget review timeline for FY 201912020- draft to the TAC subcommittee on January 15,

draft budget to TAC on Monday Feb 4, TAC will vote for approval on March 4, Agency
staff will be available to present to Water Contractor Boards/City Council's during March
and WAC will vote to approve on Monday April 1. Once approved by the WAC, Agency
staff will take the budget to their board for approval on April 3Oth. Lynne noted that a
copy of this presentation is being posted on the Agency's website. Brenda Adelman and
Jake Mckenzie- asked questions about the amount of water used by Marin Municipal.
Mike Ban, Marin Municipal Water District - responded that the vast majority of the total
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deliveries shown on the Water Production table are from their local reservoirs, and a
small percentage is imported from the Agency.

10. Water Supp lv Conditions
Pam Jeane SCWA-_Lake Mendocino is at 100% of the target water storage curve and
Lake SonomaisTTo/o full. Russian River flows are in compliance with minimum
streamflow requirements. Jay Jasperse- Lake Mendocino Forecast lnformed Reservoir
Operation (FIRO)- The goal is to bring in new technology and forecasting skills to better
manage and operate reservoirs. This will provide the ability to look ahead and use the
forecasting skill/technology to better inform reservoir operators on when to release water
and when allow more storage. FIRO not only provides better water supply storage
pedormance but also has the potentialfor improved flood management. FIRO can be
duplicated at similar reservoirs such as Lake Sonoma.

11. Bioloqical Opi nion Status Uodate- Pam Jeane- Fish monitoring now year-round. Coho
were found in B of 9 sections sampled in Dry Creek. The Russian River estuary is closed
right now.

a. Fish Flow DEIR Milestone Schedule Update- Jessica Marlini Lamb,
Environmental Resources Manager at Sonoma County Water Agency-since last
update staff has met with a number of resource agencies on issues that were
raised on the DEIR. Staff met with the State Water Resources Control Board to
discuss comments from other resource agencies on how to add adaptive
management components. They also met with other resources agencies and
discussed their comments on the water quality model used for the draft DEIR.
They continue to work on commentsiissues raised from the public and expect to
recirculate the draft DEIR in September 2019. The final DEIR is tentatively
scheduled to be ready to submit to the Agency board of directors in Spring 2020.
Updates will continue at WAC/TAC meetings. At this time, the Agency is not
proposing any significant budget increase.

b. Drv Creek Update- David Manni ng, Environmental Resource Manager Sonoma
County Water Agency. Provided a review of the Dry Creek restoration projects
and stated that 3.14 miles have been completed to-date at a total cost of
approximately $36 million. Funding for this work is from a combination of Army
Corps and Water Agency led projects. Majority of the cost is in construction.
Jennifer Burke, City of Santa Rosa-asked if the expended costs to-date include
repair costs. David Manning responded that maintenance and repair costs are
shared with the Army Corps for the first 10 years (after completion), beyond that
maintenance costs will fall on the Agency.

12. Post October 2017 Sonoma Fire Event Updates
Referred to Map of changing burn areas ranging from 1993-2017. Jay Jasperse-
Sonoma Water is funding I fire cameras to be installed. Five are in place and all B will
be in place at the end of November 2018. Cameras are on towers and are infrared and
can pick up fires as far as B0 kilometers away and have high definition. Cameras can
assist in accurately locating a fire and determining evacuations. Cal Fire is using the
cameras as well. PG&E is adding an additional I cameras: 3 in Marin County, 3 in
Sonoma County, 3 in Napa county and plans to install more cameras in the upcoming
years.
Jennifer Burke, City of Santa Rosa- Noted that on October 11,2018, the City of Santa
Rosa lifted the Water Quality Advisory and commented that the city has replaced a

number of water facility components within the system.

aJ



13. Potter Valley Proiect Relicensinq Update
Pam Jeane- PG&E relicensing is moving forward. Expecting results from the approved
Study Plan in 2019 and results will be available to stakeholders. PG&E plans on having

a draft license application completed in Fall 2019 and the final application is due Spring

2021. Congressman Huffman's Ad Hoc committee continues to meet and will work
through early part of 2019. PG&E's Request for Offers process will continue for the next

1B months and most information regarding interested pafties is private.

14. Federal Outreach
Grant Davis - Provided an update on federal outreach effofts and stated that the Agency
will need to continue to make trips to Washington D.C. to advocate for the future funds
necessary for the Corps to fulfill their obligations with respect to Dry Creek. Grant also
provided an update on the Advanced Quantitative Precipitation lnformation (AQPI)
program.

15. ltems for Next Aqenda
Jake McKenzie and Mary Grace Pawson commented on the demand for new housing
and the potential water supply challenges it brings

16. Check out
Meeting adjourned at 1 1:01am
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To:

From

Subj:

November 5,2018 WAC/TAC Mtg
Agenda ltem 7

MEMORANDUM

Water Advisory Committee October 31,2018

Mark Millan, WAC Chair

Approve - 1. Formation of WAC Ad Hoc Subcommittee
2. Requesting SCWA to participate in a Common lnterest Agreement

At the August 6, 2018 WAC/TAC meeting, Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA)

General Manager Grant Davis provided an update on FERC relicensing of PG&E's Potter Valley

Project (PVP). During this update, Mr. Davis discussed PG&E's May,201B announcementto

the Eel-Russian River Commissioners advising that PG&E had decided to put the Potter Valley

Project up for auction this fall. ln July, the Mendocino County lnland Water and Power

Commission formed a negotiating team to investigate potential acquisition of PVP facilities and

on September SrH PG&E formally began the 18-24 month auction process by soliciting

proposals from parties interested in purchasing the project. Subsequent to these actions, on

September 11 the SCWA Board of Directors formed an Ad Hoc group consisting of two

Directors to be able to track developing PVP activities in a timely manner.

Per Section 5.1 (b) of the 2006 Restructured Agreement for Water Supply, the Water

Advisory Committee is charged with reviewing any proposals which "...invdve a significant

capital outlay for the Transmission System... " or which would " . .. .significantly change the level

of service or add significantly to the operations and maintenance expense....". Potential

changes in PVP operations could have a significant impact to the level of service and/or rates

that Water Contractors are charged related to Transmission System operation. As such, in light

of PG&E's efforts to sell its PVP facilities and the speed at which events are changing related to

this auction process, it is recommended that the WAC approve: (1) the formation of an Ad Hoc

Subcommittee and (2) the development of a Common lnterest Agreement. By taking these two

actions WAC agencies will be better able to track developing PVP activities in a timely manner.

Ad Hoc Subcommittee

The WAC Ad Hoc subcommittee would consist of no more than three WAC members. lt

is my recommendation that the Ad Hoc subcommittee consist of the WAC Chair and WAC

representatives from the City of Santa Rosa and North Marin Water District. Under this

configuration, the Ad Hoc subcommittee would have representation from both Sonoma and

Marin Counties and include the largest Sonoma Water retail customer (i.e, Santa Rosa).

ATTACHMENT C



November 5,2018 WAC/TAC Mtg
Agenda ltem 7

Technical suppoft to the WAC Ad Hoc subcommittee would be provided by the TAC Chair and

Vice Chair.

Common I nterest Aqreement

Development of a Common lnterest Agreement between SCWA and interested Water

Agency Contractors would allow each signatory entity to share privileged information and

counsel's work products related to the existing PVP FERC proceeding and related matters

(including any other litigation concerning the PVP) in which the Contractors and SCWA have a

common interest. The agreement would be open-ended to allow Contractors to join over time.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

WAC approve:

1. Formation of an Ad Hoc subcommittee consisting of the WAC Chair and WAC

representatives from the City of Santa Rosa and North Marin Water District.

2. Requesting SCWA to participate in a Common lnterest Agreement with Water Agency

Contractors.





Item #9

MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors

From: Drew Mclntyre, General Manager

November 16,2018

Subject: North Bay Water Reuse Authority Board Meeting - October 22,2018
rffolders byjob no\7000jobs\7127 nbwra\board msmos\7127 nbrwa update 10_22_18.doc

REGOMMENDED ACTION: lnformation Only

FINANGIAL IMPAGT: None

Supplemental information is provided as follows using item numbers referenced in the

attached meeting agenda and draft minutes. A complete agenda packet is available via

www.nbwra.orq.

2. RollGall

NMWD Board was represented by Director Baker.

7. Phase 1: Status of Reconciliation and Gloseout Activities

SCWA is expected to issue a bill to NMWD for the additional Phase 1 "true-up" costs

discussed as part of the August 17,2018 NBWRA meeting update. We have been advised

that the actual "true-up" costs will be less than what was previously reported. As stated earlier,

even with these additional true-up costs, actual expenditures are still expected to be below

approved budget.

13. ltems for Future Discussion

More meetings are expected this winter between the various General Managers of potential

North Bay Water agency members. The next NBWRA meeting is January 28,2019



BOARD OF DIRBCTORS MBBTING

AGENDA

Monday, October 22,, 2018
9:30 AM

Novato City Hall Council Chambers
901 Sherman Avenue, Novato, CA 94945

Menrbers and Consultants unable to attend in person rnay call in: (Local dial in): +1 (602) 567-

4030, Toll Free: *l (BB8) 227-001 1, Access Cocle: 1988

h ttp s : //C o n fe re n c i n 92. brw n c a I d. c o m/c o nÍe !"e a9_9112!8-

1. Call to Order (1 minute)

Roll Call (1 minute)

Public Comment (3 rninutes)
(Any member of the public may addless the Iloard at 11.)e colÌllreucement of the rneeting on any
nlatter within the julisdiction of the Board. -lhis should not relate to any iteur on the agenda. lt is
the policy of the Authority that each person addressing the Board limit their presentation to three
nrinutes. Non-English speakels using a translator will have a time linlit ol'six minutes. Any
nrernber of the public clesiling to provide cornnrents to the Iloard on an agenda item should do so at

the tiure the item is considel'ecl. It is the policy of the Authority that oral cor.nmeuts be limited to
three nrinutes per indiviclual or ten ¡rinr¡tes l'or an orgauization. Speal<er''s cards will be available in
the Boardroom aucl arc to be conrpleted pliol to speal<ing.)

Introductions (2 minutcs)

Board Meeting Minutes of July 23,2018 (2 rninutes)
(The Boald will consicler approving the nriur.¡1es 1ìonr the.lLtly 23,20 l8 Board meeting.)

2.

3.

4.

5.Action

lnlbrl¡ration arrd 6.
Discussion

Report fì'onr the Chair (10 ntinutes)
(The Chair will repolt on the following items.)

6.a Consultant Progress Iìeports
6.b Financial Reports

North Bay Water Reuse Authority ¡ c/o Sonoma County Water Agency, 404 Av¡at¡on Boulevard, Santa Rosa, CA 95403
70Z-235-4965 . NBWRA,org

County of Marin . Las Gallìnas Valley San¡tary D¡str¡ct . Novato Sanìtary District . Marin Municipal Watc'r Distr¡ct . North Marin Water District . Sonoma County Water Agency

City of Petaiuma . Sonomâ Valley County Sanitation D¡str¡ct . County of Napa . Napa Sanitation District . Cily of American Canyon



Inforlnation 7 Phase 1: Status of Reconciliation and Closeout Activities (5 minutes)
(The Board will be updated on Phase I status of reconciliation and closeout activities.)

Information I Phase 2: Status of Activities (10 minutes)
(The Boalcl will be updated on Phase 2 activities.)

Infolmation 9 Concluding Final Phase 2 Engineering/Feasibility Study and Program
Development Tasks (15 minutes)
(The Board will be provided with a report concluding final Phase 2 Engineering/Feasibility Study
and Prograrn Developrnent Tashs.)

Action 10. Consider Approving Use of Existing Budget for Prop I IRWM Application
Process
(The Board will consider use of Existing Budget for Prop I IRV/M Application Process.)

Action 11. Arnendments to the Engincering Services Agreement of $75,000 to Conclude
Phase 2 Bnvironmental Tasl<s and to Water Agency Services of $24,500 for
Additional Adrninistrative Tasl<s (15 minutes)
(The Board will considel au anrenclrlent to the E,ngineering Services Agreeutent of $75,000 to
conclude Phase 2 environmental tasks ancl to the Water Agency Services of $24,500 for Additional
Administrative Tasks.)

Action 12. No Cost Amendnrent to the Progranr Development, Federal, and State
Advocacy Agreemcnt fbr Six Months to Conclude Phase 2 Tasl<s. (10 minutes)
(The Boarcl will consider a no cost arrendnlent to the Pt'oglam Developnrent, Federal, ancl State

Advocacy Agreement for six nronths to conrplete Phase 2 tasks.)

Discussiolr 13. Items f'or Future I)iscussion and Comments fiom Chair, Board, or Member
Agencies (5 minutes)
(The Board will cliscuss items for futulc discussion and the Chair, Boald, or Member Agencies
nray lnake brief announcellrents or repolts on theil own activities, pose questions for clarification,
and/or lec¡uest that items be ¡rlacecl on a futule agenda. Iìxcept as authorized by law, no other
discussion or action rnay be taken.)

14. Adjournment (1 minute)

(ln compliance with the Arnelicans with Disabilities Act of'1990, il'you need special assistance to participate in a
Board meeting, or you need a copy of the agencla, or the agenda packet, in an a1r¡rropriate altelnative format, please

contact tlre Progranr Manager at ( 5 I 0) 410-5923 . Notif ìcation of at least 4B hours ¡rlior to the meeting or tinre when
services are needed will assist in assuring that reasonable arrangenrents can be macle to provide accessibility to the
rneeting or service. A copy ofall the docunrents constituting the agencla packet is available fol public inspectiorr
prior to the nreeting at 404 Aviatiou Boulevarci, Santa lìosa, CA 95403. Any person uray request that a copy ofthe
agenda or the agenda packet be nlailed to thenr f'ol a fèe of $.l0 per page plus actiral niailing costs. If you wish to
request such a mailing, please contact Chucl< Weir', Weir'l'echnical Services,3026 Fernclale Court, Pleasanton, CA
94588,510-410-5923, chuckweir@sbcqlSþAlJfg!.The agenda lor.each nreeting is also available on-line at

wwwJrþfyl4:o_tg and will be available at the meeting.)

North Bay Water Reuse AuthoriÇ r c/o Sonoma County water Agency, 404 Aviation Boulevard, Santa Rosa, CA 95403
707-235-4965 r NBWRA.org

City of Petaluma . Sonoma Valley County Sanitation Distrìct . Counly of Napâ . Napa Sanitation District . City of American Canyon

' ', Mond
Next Board Meeting:'

Janua Novato", 2019 9:30 A.



North Iìay Water Reuse Authority
Board of Directors Meeting

Minutes
October 22,2018

1. Call to Order
Clrair Rabbitt called the rneeting to order at 9:40 a.m. on Monclay, October 22,2018 at the
Novato City Flall Council Chambers, 901 Sherman Avenue, Novato, CA. Members and
Consultants unable to attend in person may call in: (Local dial in): +1 (602) 567-4030, To11 Free
+1 (888) 227-0011, Access Code: 1988 https://Conferencing2.brwncald.com/conference/l9BB

2. Roll Call
PRESBNT:

ABSBNT: None

OTHEIì.S
PRESBNT:

David Rabbitt, Chair
Jill Techel, Vice Chair
Steve Ilaltwig
Jack Baker
Rabi Elias
Jack Gibson
David Glass
Susan Golin
Bill Long
Phil Miller
Dennis Iìodoni

Sonoma County Water Agency
Napa Sanitation Distlict (by phone)
City of American Canyon
North Marin Water District
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District
Marin Municipal Water District
City of Petaluma
Sonoma Valley County Sanitation District
Novato Sanitary District
Napa County
Marin County

'Weir Technical Services
City of Napa (by phone)
Sonoma County Water Agency
Bryant & Associates
Brown & Caldwell
Marin County
Sonoma County Water Agency
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District
Brown & Caldwell
I(ennedy Jenks
Sonoma County Water Agency
Novato Sanitary District
Data Instincts
North Marin Water District
Data Instincts
ESA
Marin Municipal Water District (by phone)
Brown and Caldwell (by phone)
Marin Municipal Water District

Chuck Weir, Program Manager
Phil Brun
I(evin Booker
Ginger'Bryant
Samantha Cohen
Lorenzo Cordova
Anne Crealock
Chris DeGabriele
Rene Guillen
Sachi Itagaki
Pam .Teane

Sandeep Karkal
Chris Lanclwehr
Drew Mclntyre
Mark Millan
Jim O'Toole
Larry Russell
Mike Savage
Paul Sellier
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Brad Slierwood
.Iake Spaulding
Melanie Tan
Jeff Tucker
l,eah Walker
Brad Wagenknecht

Sonoma County Water Agency
Sonoma County'Water Agency
Kennedy Jenks (by phone)
Napa Sanitation District
City of Petaluma
Napa County

3. Public Comments
There were llo conrments from tlie public

4. Introductions
Introductions were not made.

5. Board Meeting Minutes of July 23,2018.
On a motion by Director Long, seconded by Director Baker, the minutes of the July 23,2018
rleeting wele unanimously approved by the Board.

6. Report from the Chair

^. Consultant Progrcss Reports
The Iloard reviewed the consultant progress reports for July, August, and September
201 8.

b. Financial Ilcports
The Board reviewed the Final Financial Reports for Fiscal Year 2017118 through .Iune 30, 2018.
All expenses were as expected through the end of Fiscal Year2017ll8. The Board also reviewed
the Financial Reports for Fiscal Year 2018/19 through September 30, 2019. Through the first
cluarter of the year all expenses are tracking normally.

7. Phase 1: Status of Reconciliation and Closeout Activities
Jake Spaulding leviewed the status of Phase I and noted that the costs would be fìnalized on
Septernber 30. 2018. Total costs for closeout were less than previous estimates.

8. Phase 2: Status and Activities
Mike Savage provided a briel'slìmmary of engineering, environmental. and public outreach
activities lequired to complete the EIR/EIS. A grant application was submitted on luly 27,2018.
Melanie'I'an provicled a summary of the Financial Capability Analysis including how it
conìpares to the analysis for Phase l, key issues in the analysis, and the anticipated schedule for
completion. Director Long asked if there have been any problems. Thele have been none.
Director Gorin asked about the scope of incomes in the service area and how that relates to water
service affordability. Ms. Tan indicated that the report would cover those issues as well as

discnss the benefìts of'recycled water for the region.

Ginger Bryant discussed the Phase 2 construction grant application and that tliey are expecting
an answer soon. 'l.he llIR/EIS approval process is behind schedule due to page limit issues and
clianging requirements under a new administration. They are seeking a waiver fì'orn USBiì,
which is clependent of the grant approval. Ilven if the grant is approved, money can't be spent
until tlie IIIR/EIS is fblly con-rpleted. She also discussed legislative eff.orts from WateReuse, and

2



end of session issues. New language supports funding for joint powers agencies (.fPA). She also
discussecl prospects for the Farrn Bill arid that they are waiting to see the bill language. She
indicated that the new group tliat the member agency General Managers are working on could fìt
under the JPA issue.

Ginger Bryant gave the repolt on state advocacy. Topics discussed included bills of intelest,
election issues, policy revisions to the State Revolving Fund, proposed arnendments to the
Recycled Water Policy, water conservation laws, and ocean discharge issues.

Jim O'Toole gave an update on the EIR/EIS process, inclucling progress to date with agency
approvals of the EIR/EIS. The CEQA appeal time has passed for all agencies except American
Canyon. Tl'rere is currently a four rnonth delay in the EIR/EIS approval with USBR and he
discussed the reasons for the delay. He also noted that due to the scale of the program versus the
original scope of work that a budget amendment $75,000 would be needed to cornplete the
EIR/EIS. This amendment is described as Plan A and would assist with NEPA public circulation,
responding to cornments, and carry through the Record of Decision from USBR. He also
discussed Plan B, which has a cost of $30,000, to avoid the USBR waiver process. It would
require reworking the document to meet page limit requilements and could be cornpletecl by
spring 2019.

The Board discussed Plan A and Plan B options. A tliird plan, Plan C, was also discussecl and

would be basecl on what is required by USBR is the grant is not approved. Tliese issues were
further cliscussed by the Board in Agencla Item No. 1 1.

Mark Millan updated the Board on public outreach activities, which are largely related to the
EIR/EIS pl'ocess.

9. Concluding Final l'hase 2 Bngineering/Feasibilify Study and Program Development
Tasks

Mike Savage gave a report on the engineering and environmental tasks tliat are lefl to conclude
Phase 2 tasl<s through June 30, 2019.IIe noted how the prograln tasks ancl emphasis change over
tin're. Engineering and environrnental tasks will remain high through the end of the calendar year
Activities will be reduced in the second half of the fiscal year. Ginger Bryant discussed program
development, federerl, and state tasks through June 30,2019.

10. Consider Approving Use of Existing Budget for Prop I IRWM Application Process
Mike Savage noted tliat the Bay Area IRWM is soliciting pro.jects for the region's response for
Prop 1 IRWM linding. Securing funds is a three step process: 1) General Interest Application, 2)
lormal project submittals, and 3) applying for individual project ftinds. I-le indicated that B&C
could oornplete the frrst two steps using existing budget. The individual agencies would neecl tcr

cclmplete the third step. A rnotion by Director Gorin, seconded by Director Gibson to approve
use of existirig budget to cornplete the fìrst two steps of the Prop 1 IRWM application process
was unanimously approved.

J



11. Amendments to the Engineering Services Agreement of $75,000 to Conclude I'h¿rse 2

Bnvironmental Tasks and to W¿rter Agency Services for $24,500 for Additional
Administrative Tasks
The Board continued the discussion regarding additional funding for environmental services for
Plan A, Plan B, and Plan C. The Board supported the $75,000 for completing the EIR/EIS, but
was uncertain how best to manage the additional $30,000 for Plan B or C. They agreed it would
be contingent upon Board approval and noted that their next meeting would not be until Janualy
28,2019. The Program Manager suggested and Water Agency staff concurred that this itern
should be amended frorn $75,000 to $105,000, with initial approval of only $15,000 of tlie
additional $30,000 to characterize what will be needed for Plan B or Plan C.

Jake Spaulding discussed the need for an additional $24,500 for water agency legal and
environmental review to complete the EIR/EIS plocess.

A motion by Director Glass, seconded by Dir'ector Long for amendments to the Engineering
Services Agreement ol'$105,000 and for Water Agency Services for $24,500 for additional
adrninistrative tasks was unanirnously approved. It was further agreed by the Board that the
additional $30,000 for the Engineering Services Agreement was subject to their approval as

discussed.

The Board further apploved invoicing the member agencies for the full $105,000 and that any
unexpended fi-rnds would be carried over to FY2018/19.

12. No Cost Amendmcnt to the Program Development, Federal, and State Advocacy
Agrecment for Six Months to Conclude Phase 2 Tasks

Ginger Bryant noted that her current agreement expires December 31,2018, Additional activities
fbr program cleveloprnent, federal advocacy, and state advocacy have been identified to complete
Phase 2 tasks. I"unding for the six-month workplan is within the approved FY201 8/19 Budget. A
tnotiou by Director Gorin, seconded by Director Gibson to approve a no cost amendment to the
Program I)eveloprnent. Federal, and State Advocacy Agreement for Six Months was
unanimously approvecl.

13. Comments from Chair ¿rnd Board Members
Grant Davis noted that the rnenber agerìcy managers have been discussion possible future
proglams that could be jointly undertaken. Phil Brun discussed City of Napa's plans to take over
as the fiscal agent fbr their Drought Contingency Plan.

14. Adjournment
Chair Rabbitt adjoumed the rneeting at 1l 29 a.m. The next meeting will be Monday. .Ianuary
28,2019 at 9:30 a.m. at Novato City Flall.

Minutes approvecl by the Boarcl

Charles V. Weir
Program Manager

C:\[Jscrs\Chuck\l)ocL¡nrcnls\Weir'1'echnical Scrvices\NI]WIìA\Agcndas\2018\201u-ì0\2018-10-22_NIIWIìA lloard Minr¡lcs.docx

4





Item #10

To:

From:

Subject:

.4 Novem

IW
ber 16, 2018

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Robert Clark, Operations / Maintenance Superintendent

First Quarter FY 2018119 Update - Operations and Maintenance
X;\MAINT SUP\2019\BOD\Q1 1B-19 O&M Updale.doc

RECOMMENDED AGTION:

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

lnformation

None

Safety Summarv

There was a lost day incident related to a slip and fall event when an employee was

climbing out of the bed of a pickup truck in the yard that resulted in six days away from work.

Hearing tests were per-formed lor 28 employees who are at times exposed to 80 decibels and

above noise levels during their normaljob duties, no OSHA recordable results were identified.

The Field Staff members participated in confined space training at the Stafford Treatment Plant

along with the Novato Fire Protection District.

Maintenance Summary

Staff stayed on schedule with routine maintenance tasks, completing 43 unplanned work

orders out of 333 total work orders completed this period. Project work included: tank security

installations at Norman (gate Lock, Camera), Airbase (gate lock and camera); Set up SCADA

monitoring of Harbor Dr. pressure regulator. Building and Grounds Staff cutback high grass,

small dead trees, woody debris and shrubs at various tanks sites. Maintenance staff responded

to four OM lift station failure due to wet wipes stuck in check valves.

Operations Summarv

The Stafford Treatment Plant (STP) began the period under typical late summer

production conditions producing 218 MG of water. Novato received 1,004 MG in total water

produced with a peak day of 16.1 MG. The Point Reyes Treatment plant produced 30.4 MG with

a peak day of 421,400 gallons. The Deer lsland recycled water plant was in operation during the

period and produced 4.0 million gallons of water for the Stone Tree golf course.



RC BOD Memo Re First Quarter FY 2018/19 Update
November 16,2018
Page 2

Water ual Su

With the assistance of Operations' staff, Construction/Maintenance staff and additional

contract vendors, the District is on track to complete all the required annual backflow testing by

mid-December. Annual inspection of the waste discharge facilities at STP by the Novato

Sanitary District (NSD) staff resulted in satisfactory findings. However, the Novato Sanitary

District continues to have issue with respect to their ultra violet (UV) disinfection system and the

iron oxidation build up and the current maintenance frequency.





ttem #11

To:

From:

Subject:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Pablo Ramudo, Water Quality Supervisor f K
First Quarter FY 18119- Water Quality Repod
P|\LAB\WQ Supv\WQ Reports\2o19\1st Qtr FY19 WQ Rpt,doc

November 16,2018

REGOMMENDED ACTION

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

lnformation

$o

The water served to the communities of Novato and Point Reyes met federal and state

primary and secondary water quality standards during the first quarter of fiscal year 2018-2019.

Following is a review of the activities and water quality issues in regards to:

. Source Water

. TreatmentPerformance

. Distribution System Water Quality

. Novato Recycled Water

NOVATO SYSTEM

Source Water: Stafford Lake

Stafford Lake water was used as a source of drinking water throughout the first quarter.

Water quality was monitored on a weekly basis for chemical and mineral components as well as

microbiological activity.

Total organic carbon ranged from 7.8-9.0m9/L, an increase of 40% over the same period

last year.

Treatment Performance: Stafford Treatment Plant

Total organic carbon (TOC) removal remained above the 35-40% required by regulation.

Despite the relatively high concentration of TOC in the raw water, finished water TOC

concentrations were 1.4 - 1.9 mg/L, below the district's goal of 2.0 mg/L.

Distribution System: Novato

Of 246 samples collected for compliance with the Total Coliform Rule there was one sample

positive for coliform bacteria. This sample was collected at the sample station representing the

Novato Crossroads neighborhood in Zone 1. This sample had adequate chlorine to ensure

disinfection and all follow up samples were negative for coliforms.

Disinfection byproducts were very low for the quarter and well within standards of the Stage

2 Disinfection By-Product Rule.



POINT REYES SYSTEM

Source Water: Goast Guard Wells

Raw water quality was generally good throughout the quarter. Water quality parameters

affected by salt water increased during the quarter. The sodium concentration ranged from 57 -
120 mglL, chloride ranged from 56 - 360 mg/L, and bromide ranged from 0.23 - 1.3 mg/L.

Source Water: Gallagher Well

Raw water quality was good throughout the quarter. Water quality parameters affected by

saltwater are very low from this source and are not prone to intrusion from seawater. Sodium

concentration ranged from 1 O - 11mg/L, chloride ranged from 12 -14mglL, and bromide ranged

from .056 - 0.080m9/1.

Treatment Performance: Point Reyes Treatment Plant

Treatment was optimal throughout the quarler and finished water quality was good.

lron and manganese removal was excellent; neither of the metals were detected in the treated

water.

Distribution SYstem: Point ReYes

There were 22 samples collected for routine monitoring and compliance with the total

coliform rule. None of the samples were positive for coliform bacteria. Chlorine residual

concentrations throughout our distribution system were good'

Disinfection byproducts increased markedly from last quarter due to the increased

concentration of bromide in the source waterfrom the Coast Guard wells. The concentration of total

trihalomethanes (THMs) in the sample representing maximum water age was 120 uglL. Although

this individual sample measured above the maximum contaminant limit for THMs of 80ug/L,

compliance is based on a running annual average at each sample point. The running annual

average for THMs at this location including the most recent results is 70ug/L- meaning the district

remains in compliance with the Disinfection Byproduct Rule.

2
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NOVATO RECYCLED WATER

Deer lsland Recycled Water Facility

The Deer lsland plant produced water for 21days in July and August to provide recycled

water to the North area of Novato. Recycled water quality from the Deer lsland facility was good,

with most samples having no detectable coliform bacteria. All test results were well within

regulations and guidance.

3
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NONIH }IARIN
WATER DISTRICT

North Marin Water District- 1st Quarter FY2018 I 2019

Bacteriological Quality Monitoring

246 Samples Analyzed. 1 sample positive for coliform bacteria.

22 Samples analyzed. No samples positive for coliform bacteria'
Novato:

Point Reyes

Ghemical Quality Monitoring

ND = Not
NA = Not

Detected
Analyzed

Constituent Units
Maximum

Contaminant
level

SCWA North Marin
Aqueduct

Stafford Treatment
Plant

Point Reyes
Treatment Plant

Conductivity umhos/cm 900 * 287 411 891

TDS mg/L 500 * 170 249 469

Hardness mg/L 113 1 1 B 243

Alkalinity mg/L 1 3 1 81.1 111

Calcium mg/L 22.4 22.5 35.1

Magnesium mg/L 13.9 15.1 38.8

Copper mg/L 1.0* ND ND ND

lron mg/L 0.3* ND ND ND

Manganese mg/L 0.05 * ND ND ND

Zinc mg/L 5.0 * ND ND ND

Sodium mg/L 19.1 34.9 84.0

Chloride mg/L 250 * 6.38 76.2 204

Sulfate mg/L 250* 12.2 7.53 19.7

Fluoride mg/L 2.0 (1.4-2.4) 0.0922 0.1 13 0.0845

Nitrite as N mg/L 1.0 ND ND ND

Nitrate as N mg/L 10 0.1 33 0.0526 0.0773

pH pH units 8.5 * 8.32 8.31 7.05

Turbidity NTU 5 0.07 0.09 0.04

Color PCU 15 <2.5 <2.5 <2.5

Free Chlorine mg/L 4.0 1.01 1.25 1.37

TotalChlorine mg/L 4.0 1.08 1.43 1.57

Temperature oc 20.0 21.4 15.7

Odor TON 3 <1 <1 <1

*lndicates secondary drinking water standard





Item #12
DISBURSEMENTS - DATED NOVEMBER 8, 2018

Date Prepared 1116118

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance
with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, being a part of the California Water District Law:

Seq Pavable To For Amount

.MARI 01 Marin County Planning Division

r All-American Printing Services

Board of Supervisors Appeal-PRE Tank 4A $1,408.00

217.54

2 Alphagraphics Marin Meter Letters for AMI lnstallation (1,275) &
Mailing Services ($5SO¡ 1,077.54

3 Athens Administrators Replenishment for Check Written (1011-
10131118) ($2,629) & November Workers' Comp
Admin Fee 3,628.96

4 AT&T
595.32

5

6

Printing Services: Customer Service
Questionnaires (600)

Telephone ($OZ¡, Fax ($74), Data ($270) &
Leased Lines ($189)

Bay Area Barricade Service

Bearings & Hydraulics

Spray Chalk (12)

4" Valve for Vac Excavator ($193) & Hose
Clamps

7 Brilliant Corners Refund Excess Advance for Construction Over
Actual Job Cost - 472 Alameda De La Loma-
Upsize Lateral-Paving Moratorium

Bruce Enterprises Parking Area Apply Sealcoat to Asphalt Surface @ 3 Farvue
Road

9 Clark, Robert E Exp Reimb: Hotel ($713) & Gas ($90) for CA-
NV AWWA Conference in Rancho Mirage
(10t21-10t24)

'10

48.29

1 99.1 I

6,383.30

950.00

803.39

100.00

251.76

270.00

977 .71

263.85

30.04

B

11

12

13

14

'15

DataTree

Direct Line

Emami, Shahnaz

Environmental Resource
Association

Evoqua Water Technologies

Fisher Scientific

October Subscription to Parcel Data lnformation

October Telephone Answering Service

Novato "Cash for Grass" Rebate Program

Yearly Performance Testing Study to Maintain
Lab Certification

Service on Lab Deionization System

Nitrogen Standard (Lab)

*Prepaid Page 1 of 3 Disbursements - Dated November 8, 2018



Seo Pavable To For Amount

22 Kehoe, Theresa

16 Forde, W.R., Associates

GMP Cars17

1B

19 Grainger

20 Holman, Mary L

21 Karkabi, Naaim

Lincoln Life

Madruga lron Works

Maltby Electric

Marin County Recorder

Micro Technology

Nationwide Retirement Solution

O'Reilly Auto Parts

Pace Supply

Rempe, Zac

Rist, Sharon

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

Refund Excess Advance for Construction Over
Actual Job Cost-86 Hamilton Dr Fire Service

Cafeteria Plan: Uninsured Medical
Reimbursement

Fuses for Auto Shop & Check Valve for Hayden
P/S ($311)

Novato "Cash for Grass" Rebate Program

Refund Excess Advance for Const Over Actual
Job Cost-747 Plaza Hermosa-Upsize to 1"

Meter

Exp Reimb: Hotel ($3OO¡, Food & Mileage for
District Secretary Conference ln Lake Tahoe
(10t22-10t24)

Deferred Compensation PPE 10131 118

Spring Nuts for Fire Service Vault Lids (50)

Wire Connectors (3)

Replenish Draw Down Account for Official
Records

Cedification of Fume Hood (Lab)

Deferred Compensation PPE 10131 118

Anti Fog Wipes for Vehicle Windows

Angle Meter Stops (57) ($2,606) & Butterfly
Valve

Novato "Washer" Rebate Program

Novato "Pool Cover" Rebate Program

Cafeteria Plan: Uninsured Medical
Reimbursement

Quarterly Maintenance on Engineering Copier
ff t16t18-1 0/1 5/18)

767.17

1,058.42

70.00

364.51

400.00

261.91

594.1 3

9,882.59

254.05

72.31

100.00

493.01

1,750.00

13.00

3,264.34

50.00

50.00

57.63

934.92

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

*Prepaid

Scott Technology Group

Page 2 of 3 Disbursements - Dated November 8, 2018



Seo Pavable To For Amount

35

36

37

3B

39

40

41

42

43

Sonoma Count! Water Agency

Thatcher of California

Thatcher Chemical

United Site Services

US Postal Service

VBS CAL

VWR lnternational

Wildcat Engineering

Wilson Bohannan

Conservation Program Support (7 l1 I 18-9130118)

Ferric Chloride (10 tons) (STP)

Chlorine (2,000 lbs) (STP)

Porta-Potty Rental (1 month) (O.M. Pond Storm
Drainage Project)

Meter Postage

Bond Paper (36" x 500')

Flask.for Lab

Prog Pymt #7: Onsite Retrofit for RW Central
Area (Balance Remaining on Contract $0)

Brass Padlocks (60)

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

7,466.83

5,354.98

2,169.00

172.82

1,000.00

73.12

129.70

73,327.03

505.34
$127,841.70

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling 9127,841.70 are hereby approved and
authorized for payment,

Aub RÁu- tt/tln
(SÅitor-controller Date

DateG er

*Prepaid Page 3 of 3 Disbursements - Dated November 8, 2018



NORTH MARIN WATER D/STRICT
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for Attendance at Meetings Other than District Board Meetings
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425 Corte Norte

Novato, CA 94949
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DISBURSEMENTS . DATED NOVEMBER 15, 2018

Date Prepared 11113118

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance
with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, being a part of the California Water District Law:

Seq Payable To For Amount

P/R* Employees

lnternal Revenue Service

State of California

CaIPERS

US Bank Card

EFT"

EFT*

EFT*

*90121

EFT* US Bank

I Able Tire & Brake

All Star Rents

A.S,T.I

Bank of Marin

Barlow, Angela

Bay Area Barricade Service

Biomarin Pharmaceutical

CDW-Government

Net Payroll PPE 10131118 & Final Payouts

Federal & FICA Taxes PPE 10131118 & Final

State ïaxes & SDI PPE 10131118 & Final

Pension Contribution PPE 10131118

External Drive for STP SCADA System ($1 t S¡,

Fastrak ($80¡, Payroll Tax Filings ($SS¡, Costco-
Lab & Admin Supplies ($1ZS¡, Part for Lab
Equipment ($1AZ¡, PC Monitor ($194) &
Lunches for Negotiations ($75)

August ($1 ,104) & September ($'t ,091) Bank
Analysis Charge (Lockbox 91,824 & Other
$715, Less lnterest of $344)

Tires (4) ($8Za¡ & Alignment ('12F250)

Propane (24.7 gals)

Annual Fire Service Testing (44)

Cafeteria Plan Reimbursement

Bank of Marin Loan Principal & lnterest (Pymt
85 of 240)

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

66" Fiberglass Posts (20) (STP)

Refund Overpayment on Open Account

Backup Batteries for Wildhorse P/S & Wing
Foot P/S

Retiree Exp Reimb (November Health lns)

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

2

3

4

5

9144,188.98

54,937.67

11,480.86

34,634.05

871.34

$2,195.07

936.49

80.1 3

4,560.00

416.66

46,066.67

33.30

457.56

15,053.46

222.06

343.66

79.57

6

7

B

I

10 Cilia, Joseph

Dagovitz, Melvin11

*Prepaid Page 1 of 4 Disbursements - Dated November 15,2018



Se Pa able To

13

DB Claims Services Group

DeGabriele, Chris

Diggs, James

Environmental Resource Center

14

15

16 Golden Gate Petroleum

17

Guthrie, Lenia

Hardy Diagnostics

Hart, Stephen

HERC Rentals

lndustrial Scientific

Jackson, David

Ladd, David

For

September Professional Services (2 Claims)

Retiree Exp Reimb (November Health lns)

Retiree Exp Reimb (November Health lns)

Hazardous Waste Manifest Training Webcast (4

Employees)

Gasoline ($3.33/gal), Diesel ($3.59/gal) ($3,517)
& Diesel Fuel for Portable Generator

Cafeteria Plan: Uninsured Medical
Reimbursement

Lights for Container "C" (3) ($212), Operation
Supplies, Concrete Saw Blade ($2Ze¡ & Slip
Hooks for Trailers (3)

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Media for Microbiological Analysis (Lab)

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Ride-On Roller Rental

Vision Reimbursement

Gas Monitor for Maintenance & STP

District Contribution Toward Cost of Retirement
Party per Board Policy #29

Exp Reimb: NexGen Users Conference.
Registrations ($650), Hotel ($458), Food ($16)
& Parking ($63)

Retiree Exp Reimb (November Health lns)

Retiree Exp Reimb (November Health lns)

Soil (2 yds)

Service Pafts ('12 F250,'15 Ford Escape & '18
Transit Van)

Misc Paving (Balance Remaining on Contract
$203,396)

18 Grainger

12

28

29

30

Amount

656.00

1,006.54

342.23

1,077.30

4,130.15

70.00

683.83

200.00

295.25

100.00

2,576.63

168.02

1,755.07

200.00

1,187.26

343.66

1,006.54

82.46

896.37

25,663.68

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27 Latanyszyn, Roman

Lemos, Kerry

Marin Landscape Materials

Marin County Ford

3'1 Mclellan Co, WK

*Prepaid Page 2 of 4 Disbursements - Dated November 15, 2018



Seo Pavable To For Amount

33

32

34

36

35

37 Novato Sanitary District

Open Spatial

Pace Supply

40 Pape Machinery

41 Petaluma Elks Lodge #901

NMWD Petty Cash

Pini Hardware

45 Red Wing Shoe Store

Retiree Exp Reimb (November Health lns)

Service Parts ('01 Portable Generator, '13 Vac
Excavator & Trailer, '12 F250,'02 Chevrolet
Silverado, '17 Nissan Frontier) Gas Pump Filters
(3) & Grease & Gun for Equipment

October Cylinder Rental

Association Dues (8/31 118-10131 118)

Wheel Barrow ($1SO¡, Drill Bits (5), Lumber,
Concrete (4 yds) ($7ll¡, Pad Lock, Parts for
Metal Pedestal Box & Parts for San Antonio
Tank Enclosure

Semi-Annual Billing for Yard/Office Sewer
Service Charge (201 8-201 9)

MYNSYS/GlS System Facility Map Updates

Leak Repair Clamps (16) ($387), Ells (2) ($SS¡,

Cap, Adapter, Plug, Solvent Weld & Soil Probes
(3) ($208)

Parts & Labor to Repair Broken ïPS Sensor &
Repair Linkage on Backhoe

Rental Cost Balance - Petaluma Elks Lodge for
Holiday Party (lncludes $250 Security Deposit)

Holiday Party Decorations ($Zt¡, Safety Snacks
($55) & Safety Bucks (6)

Painting Supplies, Hardware for Aquatic
lnvasive Species, Cleaning Supplies, Varnish
for Signs, Cable Parts for Lab Hood, Outlet &
Covers for Warehouse, Leaf Skimmer, Glue,
Smoke Alarm for Warehouse, Spray Lube,
Plumbing for STP Filters & Kitchen Supplies,
Coupling, Clamps, Power Strips for Engineering
Dept, Driver Bit Set, Door Sweep, Pruning
Shears, Hardware for Solar Bee, Nylon Rope
(50'), Hardware, Jig Saw Blade & Paint Roller

Cafeteria Plan: Uninsured Medical
Reimbursement

Safety Boots (Arendell & Davenporl)

Moore, Doug

Norlh Marin Auto Parts

North Bay Gas

NMWD Employee Association

Novato Builders Supply

1,006.54

1,577.04

1 13.00

1,215.0Q

1,178.09

2,619.90

4,700.00

738.02

483.39

1 ,919.81

82.52

57Q.22

60.00

400.00

3B

39

42

43

44
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46 RM Harris

Rosenberg, Kenneth

Sebastopol Bearing & Hydraulic

Sequoia Safety Supply

Stafford, Vernon

Synectic Technologies

Township Building Services

Verizon Wireless

Verizon Wireless

Refund Security Deposit on Hydrant Meter Less
Final Bill

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Valve ($193) & Hose Clamps

Brief Relief Urine Bags (100)

Retiree Exp Reimb (November Health lns)

Quarterly Phone System Maintenance

Bath Tissue & Cleaning Supplies

Cellular Charges: Data ($521), Airtime ($137) &
Equipment Charges ($1gt) (21)

AMI Gateways, SCADA, Novato ($6+S¡ & CIMIS
Station

Turf Reinforcement Mats (16 - 7'x 56")

September Legal Fees

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

635.25

100.00

1 99.1 I

259.91

343.66

446.70

155.33

849.1 3

658.36

3,027.50

13,347.00

505.41
TsWTsg-.m

White Cap Construction

Wiley Price & Radulovich

Wilson Bohannan Brass Padlocks (60)
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $396,189.49 are hereby approved and
authorized for payment.

I
ler Date

g
Ge

*Prepaid Page 4 of 4 Disbursements - Dated November 15,2018
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Subjecù Army Corps of Engineers approves request to allow more winter storage in Lake Mendocino

Sonorna
Water
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USAmyCorp¡
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[.OR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
November 7,2018

CONTACT
Barry Dugan
Senior Programs Specialist
Sonoma Water
707-547-1930
707-331-2040
barry.dugan@scwa.ca. gov

Brandon Beach
Deputy Chief, Public Affairs
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
(4 I 5) 503-6958 brandon.a.beach@usace.arm)¡.mil

Army Corps of Engineers approves request to allow more winter
storage in Lake Mendocino

Ukiah, CA - The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) will allow additional water to be stored in Lake Mendocino

during this winter's rainy season to improve water supply reliabilþ and environmental conditions in the Russian River,

while continuing to ensure flood management capacity of the reservoir. The decision would allow the Corps to use

modern weather prediction technology to operate the reservoir with more flexibility to store more water when no major

storms are forecasted.

A group of scientists and engineers from local, state and federal agencies, including representatives from the U.S.

Army Corps of Engineers, has been developing a proof-of-concept demonstration project for Forecast Informed

Reservoir Operations (FIRO) since 2014. Last year, the group, the Lake Mendocino FIRO Steering Committee, filed a
request with the Corps to allow a deviation from its established flood control operating rules. The deviation request was

supported by a Preliminary Viability Assessment, which contained detailed modeling, analysis and scientific research.

The assessment demonstrated that FIRO can provide water managers the information they need, with adequate lead

time, to selectively retain or release water from reservoirs. That request \ryâs approved earlier this month.

"The abilþ to leverage newer technology and knowledge base as it pertains to weather forecast enhances our abilþ to
safely deliver the multiple missions at Lake Mendocino," said Nick Malasavage, chief of Operations and Readiness

Division for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers San Francisco District. "In particular, the steps we are now taking to

further develop and incrementally implement the FIRO concept adds an additional tool to maint¿in our primary

responsibilities for flood risk management."



Under the approved request, a maximum of 3.8 billion gallons (l1,650 acre-feet) of additional water could be stored in

the reservoir between November I and February 28, which is enough water to supply approximately 97,000 people for

ayeaf.

Lake Mendocino, located near the city of Ukiah, is operated jointly by the Corps and Sonoma Water. The Corps

manages the flood control operations at the reservoir, or the water in what is refened to as the "flood pool." Sonoma

Water manages the water stored expressly for water supply, known as the "conservation pool" and is also responsible

for maintaining minimum in-stream flows in the Russian River below Lake Mendocino.

Studies show that about 50 percent ofthe rainfall and 80 percent ofthe floods in the Russian River watershed are due to

atmospheric rivers - long narrow bands of warm, moisture-laden air that carry huge amounts of water vapor propelled

by high winds.

"We know that a majority of our rain each year comes from these atmospheric rivers," said Sonoma 'Water Chief
Engineer and co-chair of the steering committee Jay Jasperse. "Because we now have the technology to better predict

the timing and intensity of these storms, it allows us the opportunity to manage our water supply more efficiently and

maintain flood management capacþ in Lake Mendocino."

A dramatic illustration of the potential benefits of FIRO occurred in December of 2012 when a large atmospheric river

storm filled the available water supply space in Lake Mendocino and filled about 25,000 acre feet of the flood pool that

is normally kept empty to take the crest off of floods. Operating under the Corps procedures, which dictate that water in

the flood pool be released as soon as possible to make room for the next storm, dam operators followed the operations

rules and released the water from the flood pool, even though no storms or flooding was forecasted in the near

future. But no additional storms occurred, and the next winter was the beginning of a severe and extended drought. If
improved forecasts had been available and used :lt.2012 and atrnospheric river storms were not predicted to occu, and

operation rules were more flexible, the water that had been released could have been put to beneficial usesjust as the

region entered a drought.

As noted by F. Martin Ralph, Dfuector of the Center for Western Weather and Water Extremes at UC San Diego's

Scripps Institution of Oceanography and co-chair of the FIRO Steering Committee, "The FIRO effort that has led to

this approval by the Corps is the result ofa highly collaborative effort between engineers, physical scientists, biologists

and forecasters. Sonoma Water and the Corps are to be commended for their leadership and innovation on FIRO at

Lake Mendocino, which is setting the stage for further exploration of this promising approach."

"This collaboration will have far-reaching benefits for the resiliency and reliabilþ of our water supply system in the

face of a changing climate," said James Gore, Chair of Sonoma Water's Board of Directors. "Improved forecasting

provides us with the abilþ to store more water and still maintain the flood protection benefits of our reservoirs. This is

another great example of the benefits of a multi-agency partnership that addresses our most challenging issues."

The Lake Mendocino FIRO Steering Committee consists of representatives from Sonoma Water (Sonoma County

Water Agency), the Center for Western Weather and Water Extremes at Scripps Institution of Oceanography (Scripps),

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps), National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), U.S. Geologic

Survey (USGS), U.S. Bureau of Reclamation and the California Department of Water Resources (DWR). The

deviation request was submitted on behalf of steering committee members from Sonoma Water, Scripps, the Corps,

NOAA andDWR.

Sonoma
Wåter
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Bond rejected for water infrastructure

PROPOSITION 3

By Don Thompson

The Associated Press

California voters rejected borrowing nearly $9
billion for water infrastructure improvement
projects despite the state suffering fi'om chlonic
water scarcity.

Proposition 3 lost Tuesday by a narrow margin of
less than 3 percentage points.

The initiative called for devoting the money to
storage and dam repairs, watershed and fisheries
improvements, and habitat protection and
restoration.

Much of the $8.9 billion was earmarked for
conservancies and state parks to restore and
protect watersheds, and to nonprofits and local
agencies for river parkways.

There also was money for improvements to meet
safe drinking water standards.

The measure was backed by agricultural and
water associations and groups devoted to
conserving wetlands, fish and wildlife . Together,
they had contributed more than $5 million to the
campaign by mid-October.

"Sadly, the voters rejected a measure which
would have provided safe drinking water to
disadvantaged communities and would have
helped California get through the next drought,"
said Jerry Meral, director of the California Water
Program, the measure's main proponent.
"Perhaps the Legislature will revisit this issue in
two years."

"Voters saw through the rhetoric and sent the
message that those who use water need to pay for
it," said Helen Hutchison, president of the League

of Vy'omen Voters of California. She agreed that
more money for water projects is needed but
supported working with state lawmakers.

"Particularly for bond measures, we are far more
supportive of those that come out of the
Legislature," she said. "We end up with more
transparency of how the money is spent and
there's legislative oversight for spending the
money."

It was the largest water bond proposal stnce
California' s nonpartisan legislative analy st began
keeping track in 1970.

Less than $500 million was tagged for surface
water storage and dam repairs, including $200
million to help repair Oroville Dam in Butte
County, where damaged spillways last year
caused the precautionary evacuation ofnearly
200,000 people living downstream.

With the payback cost estirnated at $430 million a
year for 40 years, the legislative analyst put the
total cost of the rreasure to state taxpayers at

$17.3 billion, or about double the underlying
benefit.

Local governments were projected to save about
$200 million annually for water-related projects,
with some matching funds required and
prefèrence given to disadvantaged communities.

Voters previously approved nearly $35 billion in
boncls since 1970 for water and environmental
projects, including $4 billion from a ballot
measure passed in June. About a third of all
funding remains unspent.Sielra Club California and the League of Women

Voters of California were among opponents who
said the measure benefited special interests while
siphoning money frorn other programs. No
significant money was spent by the opposition.

http://marinindependentjournal.ca.newsmemory.com/ee/_nmum/_default_bb_include_infia.., IIl8l20I8
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Inverness Public lJtility District general manager resigns, staff
steps up
ll), Â,ttto.tn.U
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Change is afoot at the Inverness Public Utility District. Ken Eichstaedt, the district's general manager since

May zo16, resigned last Wednesday for undisclosed reasons. "I enjoyed making positive changes to the
infrastructure and administration at IPUD and wish the organization well," Mr. Eichsteadt, an Olema
resident with more than 3o years of experience as a civil engineer, told the Light in an email. The board of
directors formally accepted his resignation at a special meeting last Friday, and approved reconfigurations to
the time and pay of existing and new staff to fill his role until a more permanent replacement is found. Wade
Holland, who serued as general manager at IPUD between r9B5 and zoor, will help fill Mr. Bichsteadt's
position in the short term as the district's administrator. He told the Light that the proximity of the
resignation to an article in this newspaper about the possibility that elevated corrosivity in the district's water
is leading to increased lead levels at the tap was merely "an unfortunate coincidence." Mr. Holland, who also

volunteers as a proofreader for the Light, is increasing his time at IPUD from one day a week to three days.

He will share prirnary managerial responsibilities with Jim Fox, the district's water system superintendent
and fire chief. Mr. Fox, who has loose plans to retire and has been chipping away at hundreds of hours of
stored vacation tirne, will also increase his hours. Kaaren Gann, another former general manager, will take
over the financial duties, and her daughter, Shelley Redding, will cover the remainder of the tasks as an

associate administrator. The change also means a financial hit for the district, which agreed to pay Mr.
Eichstaedt his salary-about $9,Soo per month-until next February. Although Mr. Holland has encouraged
the board to act quickly to find a replacement, at last week's special meeting, board members waffled over
whether to hire a new general manager right away or look for someone who could simply fill the
administrative duties-their most pressing need. Mr. Holland, who plans to draft a job description for the
board to consider in December, commended Mr. Eichsteadt for his role in the projects the district undertook
during his tenure. Those include the planning and engineering of the Tenney tanks and the replacement of
both a water main on Camino del Mar and the Stockstill tanks-all key aspects of the district's infrastructure.
As district employees work to pick up Mr. Eichsteadt's normal responsibilities, they are also pressing ahead

to complete another round of tests for the California State Water Resources Control Board this month,
required after three out of eo homes tested in Apriì showed lead levels that exceeded the federal limit. It

lrttps://www.ptreyeslight.com/article/inverness-public-utility-district-general-manager-res. .. I1l12l20l8
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remains unclear whether the problem is isolated to a few homes with aging infrastructrire or is more

systemic, the result of an overall increased corrosivity of the water that passes through the district's

nanofiltration system, which came online in zo15. In an effort to troubleshoot the problem, the district plans

to replace the faucets at the three test homes before conducting more testing.

https://www.ptreyeslight.com/article/inverness-public-utility-district-general-manager-res... lll12l20I8
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Appeal shrinks Paradise Ranch water tank
lÌ)' Attno 
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In a win for a property owner- at the top of Drakes View Drive concerned about his viewshed, the Planning Commission
rnoved last week to reduce the size of a water tank that North Marin Water District plans to install-a replacement for
an aging reclwoocl tank and another taken by fire in 1995.

The team of larvyers and consultants for the appellant, musician Jesse Colin Young, whose farnily owns two neighboring
properties atop the riclge, argued that the district had not provided adequate notification of the project, questioned its
safety ancl compliance, and clescribed that the clistressing visual impacts were possibly avoiclable with a redesign.

"I þelieve further consideration should'be made to the design of this water tank so we do not turn our beautiful forest
into a concrete jungle," Ethan Turner, Mr. Young's godson who has iived at the property for the majority of his life, told
the Planning Commission on Thursday.

Ultimately, commissioners founcl a county riclgeline code brought forward by Mr. Young's attorney, which states that
the height of new structures should not exceecl rB feet above the existing grade, the most compelling argument. They
granted his appeal in part, approving the watel district's application for a coastal permit on condition that it lower the
structure from the proposed zo feet B inches to rB feet and provide additional landscaped sc.reening.

Though a f'ew feet might seem negligible, it will have an impact fbl the water district, according to the replesentative
who spoke at Thursday's hearing, engineer Roclcy Vogler,

Mr. Vogler expìained that the district had hoped to build a 12S,ooo-gallon concrete tank to meet updated water storage
requirements from the Marin County Fire Department, which mandate a t,ooo-gallon per minute flow for a duration of
two hours in that area. The new tank will replace one burned in the Mount Vision Fire, which could hold 25,ooo
gallons, and a cullent stancling redwoocl tank, which has a 5o,ooo-gallon capacity.

Theoretically, the district could widen the diameter of the tank to account for the Planning Commission's directive, but
Mr. Vogler said the proposed tank is already approaching the property lines, at just five feet from Mr. Young's property
on one side. Lowering the tank into the ground was also not a preferable option, Mr. Vogler argued, because doing so

would lower the water pressure for nearby custorners, many of whom already receive the lowest limit of serviceable
water pressure.

Mr. Vogler also shot down the recommendation from Mr. Young's architect to divide the tank into two-that would cost

twice as much, he said.

https://www.ptreyeslight.com/article/appeal-shrinks-paradise-ranch-water{ank 112
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The tank is the largest of several capital improvement projects North Marin is planning in West Marin, and though it
was originally estimated to cost $5z5,ooo, it is now projected to leach $775,ooo. Furthermore, Mr. Vogler said, funding

wiìl come out of the pockets of West Marin customers only'

District Four Cornmissioner Chris Desser said she was in a "quandary." "Personally, I wouldn't waut a looming tank five

feet from my property line. I think two tanks would be preferable, but it's a lot of money," she said.

Overall, commissioners took no issue with Mr. Vogler's confirmation that the ploject was well-planned from an

engi¡eering standpoint and that the district adequately noticecl the appellant. It also providéd extensive public

notification, including in this newspaper, and erected story polls at the site in zo16'

Nevertheless, they remained sympathetic to Mr. Young's view concerns.

Despite photoglaphs shor¡m by both sides, it rernained unclear how impactful the watel tank might be for the Youngs'

resiãence. (There was also disagreement over the location of the sunset in the winter and summer months and whether

the tank would block it.)

Commissioners were most concerned about the Youngs' adjacent property, whose borders come within five feet of the
proposecl tank. A house burned clown in the Mount Vision Fire on that parcel, leaving the possibility of rebuilcling.

Describing the water district's efforts to minimize the visual impacts of the tank, Mr. Vogler said it planned to texture

and paint the concrete so it better blenclecl with the wooded habitat. A berm was planned for one side of the tank but,
given the tight proximity to the Youngs' property on the other sicle, the district decidecl against another to allow
maintenance crews to have full access.

Planning commissioners included a conclition in their approval of the permit that the district work with Mr'. Young to
corne up with some landscaping for that side.

All commissioners but one voted in favor of the decision. Commissioner Margaret Curran expressed concernecl about

the impact of lowering the tank, primarily in regard to aclequate water supply in a fire-prone landscape.

htips://www. ptreyeslight. com/article/appeal-sh rinks-parad ise-ra nch-water-tan k 212
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MMWD taps new general manager

THE COUNTY

By \ililt Houston

w hous t on@m ar ini.i. c om @Will _$ _Hous t on on
Twitter

The Marin Municipal'Water District Board of
Directors has selected Bennett Horenstein, a

longtime Bay Area water and wastewater official,
to become its new general manager.

Horenstein, who is now the director of the city
water department in Santa Rosa, said Monday
that after consulting with his family and based on
the district's and its staffls reputation in the Bay
Area and California, the opportunity was too
good to pass up.

"It's a special opportunity to be entrusted with the

Page 1 of2

leadership of this organization," Horenstein said

Monday. "And my role is to support the staff of
the district in meeting the policy directions of the
board, to meet our mission and the expectations
of the community. And I really look forward in
taking that on."

The board is expected to ftnalize Horenstein's
contract, which will provide him an annual salary

of $255,000, on Tuesday. The contract designates
Horenstein as an at-will employee.

The decision comes after the district general

manager Krishna Kumar announced his
retirement earlier this year after six years in the
position. Horenstein will begin his position on

Horenstein

Dec. 3, with Kumar staying on in an advisory role
until his last day on Dec. 28.

"'W'e're really excited to have a seasoned water
professional with 30 years of experience coming
in," said Emma Detwiler, communications
specialist for the district. "It seems like his
experience and expertise is a perfect fit for our
needs here at the district."

Horenstein has worked for the Santa Rosa

department since March2017. Prior to that, he

was appointed in 2013 to direct the East Bay
Municipal Utility District' s Wastewater
Department, where he had worked for 22 years in
various capacities. Prior to that he worked as a

process engineer for the city of Los Angeles'
Bureau of Sanitation.

the district to communicate with its customers
about the needs of the district in terms of repairs,
replacement and improvement of infrastructure to
provide high quality water. Horenstein said the

costof- living and housing issues that employees
face is a regional issue that natural partners like
school districts, fire districts and other should be

discussing together.

Along with his career positions, Horenstein also

serves on the board of the National Association of
Clean Water Agencies, is chairman of the
California Association of Sanitation Agencies'
Utility Leadership Committee, serves on the San

Francisco Baykeeper advisory board and is a
board member of the National Association of
Clean Water Agencies. He is also a former Bay
Area Clean'Water Agencies board member. Ian

http:llmarinindependentjournal.ca.ne\ilsmemory.com/eel_nmum/-default-bb-includlinf. .. llll3l20l8
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Having directed the Santa Rosa department
during last year's f,rre siege and based on past

experience, Horenstein said it may be the most
important role he has coming into this new
position to ensure the district is well prepared for
any natural disaster emergency - be it seismic,
fire or floods - through both response and
building resiliency.

"From what I've seen, it does feel to me that the

district has done some great work in terms of
preparation and is on the right track," he said.

"It's a bit premature for me to identify specific
areas of opportunities, but there are always some.

These are very big, complex issues. I hope and I
believe that the experience I went through - that
was very tough, but very educational - will
benefit the district and the comrnunity of Marin."

Beginning his position about seven months out
fiom another potential rate increase for district
customers, Horenstein said it's important for

Page2 of2

Wren, a staff scientist at San Francisco
Baykeeper, said he worked with Horenstein for a
nearly five-year period while Horenstein was at
the East Bay Municipal Utility District.

"He has a unique capacity to work with diverse
stakeholders and balance the needs of his rate
payers with that of the environment," Wren said,
"and who is not afraid to do what's best for the
environment and water quality and seeking next
generation technologies and approaches to
managing water resources."

Despite the fact that San Francisco Baykeeper
sued the East Bay Municipal Utility District while
Horenstein served as the wastewater department
director, Wren said Horenstein was critical to
reaching a settlement and even came on to serve
as an advisory board member for San Francisco
Baykeeper after leaving the district.
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